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BSE Limited 
PJTowers, 
Dalal Street, 
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National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (E), 
Mumbai - 400 051. 

Scrip Code: 543655, 974399, 974400 Symbol: ANZEN 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Sub: Intimation of outcome of the Meeting of Board of Directors of Edelweiss Real Assets 
Managers Limited (the "Investment Manager of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust'') held 
on May 25, 2023. 

Please note that, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 read with circulars and 
guidelines issued thereunder from time to time ("InvIT Regulations"), the Board of Directors 
of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited, ("ERAML"), in ERAML' s capacity as the 
Investment Manager of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust (" Anzen") at its meeting held on 
Thursday, May 25, 2023, has considered and approved the following matters: 

1. Audited standalone and consolidated financial information ("Financial information") of 
Anzen for the financial year ended March 31, 2023; 

Further, please note that the financial information of the Investment Manager is not disclosed 
as there is no material erosion in the net worth. 

2. Declaration of total distribution of Rs. 38,23,60,000/- payable to the unitholders of Anzen for 
the quarter ended March 31, 2023. The breakup of the same is as under: 

Particulars Amount 
Interest 2.35 

Principal repayment 0.04 

Other income 0.03 
Total per unit distribution 2.42 

Please note that Friday, June 2, 2023, has been fixed as the Record Date for the purpose of the 
payment of above distribution to the Unitholders which will be paid on or before June 8, 2023. 

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited 
Corporate Identity Number: U67110MH2021PLC362755 
Registered Office: Plot 294/3, Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai - 400 
098 

T: +91 22 4009 4400 I www.anzenenergy.in 
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The meeting of the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager commenced at 03.30 pm 
and concluded at O6.0O pm. 

Request you to take note of the same. 

Thanking you, 

For ANZEN INDIA ENERGY YIELD PLUS TRUST 
(acting through its Investment Manager Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited) 

JALPA PAREKH 
COMPANY SECRET ARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
ACS 44507 

CC: 

Axis Trustee Services Limited Catalyst Trusteeship Limited 
Windsor, 6th Floor, Office No - 604, 
C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East},
Mumbai - 400 098

Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills 
Compound Pandurang Budhkar Marg, 
Worli, 
Mumbai - 400 025 

Encl: As above 

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited 

Corporate Identity Number: U67110MH2021PLC362755 

Registered Office: Plot 294/3, Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai - 400 

098 

T: +91 22 4009 4400 I www.anzenenergy.in 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Unit holders of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

Ground Fl oor 
Panchsh il Tech Park. Yerwada 
/ Near Don Bosco Schoo l l 
Pune · 411 006. Ind ia 

Tel • 9 l 20 6603 6000 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Anzen India Energy 
Yield Plus Trust ("the lnvlT"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 , 2023, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Statement of Changes in Unit Holders' Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then 
ended, the Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Total 
Returns at fair value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows ('NDCFs') of the lnvlT for 
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
notes (hereafter referred to as "the standalone financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulation, 2014 as amended 
including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (the "lnvlT Regulations"), in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, to the extent inconsistent with lnvlT Regulations, of the state of 
affairs of the lnvlT as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, its 
cash movements and its movement of the unit holders' funds for the year ended March 31, 
2023, its net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2023, its total returns at fair value and the 
net distributable cash flows of the lnvlT for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Aud iting (SAs), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor 's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements' section of our report. We are 
independent of the lnvlT in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the lnvlT Regulations, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our profess ional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
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separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context . 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's 
responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report, 
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of 
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
standalone financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures 
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the 
accompanying standalone financial statements. 

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

lmRairment of investments in subsidiaries and loans given to subsidiaries (as described in 
Note 19 of the standalone financial statements) 

The lnvlT has significant investments Our audit procedures included, among others, the 
in subsidiaries and has granted loans following: 
to its subsidiaries amounting to INR 
22,700.41 million as at March 31, • Read the policy, evaluated the design and tested 
2023. The value of investments and the operating effectiveness of controls over 
loans in aggregate comprise 97% of assessment of impairment of investments in 
total assets in the Balance Sheet. subsidiaries and loans to subsidiaries and the 

assumptions used by management. 
The subsidiaries are in the business of 
owning and maintaining transmission • Obtained and read the valuation report of the 
assets and have entered into lnvlT's independent valuation expert, and 
Transmission Services Agreement assessed the expert's competence, capability 
("TSA") with Long Term Transmission and objectivity. 
Customers ("L TTC"). 

• Involved our subject matter experts to perform 
At each reporting period end, an independent review of methodology, 
management assesses the existence estimates and key assumptions (weighted 
of impairment indicators of average cost of capital, debt equity ratio, 
investments in subsidiaries and loans forecast period, terminal growth rate) used in 
given to subsidiaries. In case of the valuation by the Company's independent 
existence of impairment indicators, valuation expert. 
the investment and loan balances are 
subjected to impairment test, where • Tested on sample basis that the tariff revenues 
the fair value of the subsidiary is considered in the respective valuation models 
compared with the value of are in agreement with TSAs / tariff orders and 
investments and loans given to such evaluated the reasonableness of cost and 
subsidiaries. revenue attributes considered in forecast. 

The processes and methodologies for • Tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy and 
assessing and determining the fair validity of the data used in the calculations. 
value of the subsidiary is based on 
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

complex assumptions, that by their 
nature imply the use of 
management's judgment, in particular • Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures included 
with reference to identification of in the standalone financial statements. 
forecast of future cash flows relating 
to the period covered by the 
respective subsidiary's transmission 
license, debt equity ratio, cost of 
debt, cost of equity, residual value, 
etc. 

Considering the judgment involved in 
determination of fair values due to 
inherent uncertainty and complexity 
of the assumptions used in 
determination off air values, this is 
considered as a key audit matter. 

Classification of unit holders' funds as equity 

(as described in Note 19 of the standalone financial statements) 

The lnvlT is required to distribute to Our audit procedures included, among others: 
Unitholders not less than ninety 
percent of its net distributable cash • Obtained and read the requirements for 
flows for each financial year. classification of financial liability and equity 
Accordingly, a portion of the under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: 
unitholders' funds contains a Presentation and evaluated the provisions of 
contractual obligation of the Trust to SEBI Circulars for classification/presentation of 
pay to its Unitholders cash unit holders' funds in the financial statements of 
distributions. The Unitholders' funds an Infrastructure Investment Trust. 
could therefore have been classified 
as compound financial instrument • Evaluated the disclosures included in the 
which contains both equity and standalone financial statements for compliance 
liability components in accordance with the relevant requirements of lnvlT 
with Ind AS 32 - Financial regulations . 
Instruments: Presentation. However, 
in accordance with SEBI Circulars No. 
CIR/IMD/DF /114/2016 dated 
October 20, 2016 and No. 
CIR/IMD/DF /127 /2016 dated 
November 29, 2016 ("SEBI 
Circulars'') issued under the lnvlT 
Regulations, the unitholders' funds 
have been classified as equity in 
order to comply with the mandatory 
requirements of Section H of 
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Annexure A to the SEBI Circular dated 
October 20, 2016 dealing with the 
minimum disclosures for key financial 
statements. 

Considering the judgment required 
for classification of unit holders' 
funds as equity and liabi lity, this is 
considered as a key audit matter. 

Disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total 
Returns at Fair Value as per lnvlT regulations 

(as described in Note 19 of the standalone financial statements) 
The lnvlT is required to disclose Our audit procedures included, among others, the 
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value following: 
and Statement of Total Returns at 
Fair Value pursuant to SEBI circulars • Read the requirements of lnvlT regulations for 
issued under the lnvlT regulations disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets 
which requires fair valuation of the at Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns at 
assets. Such fair valuation has been Fair Value. 
carried out by the independent valuer 
appointed by the lnvlT. • Read the policy, evaluated the design and tested 

the operating effectiveness of controls over 
For the purpose of the above, fair assessment of fair value and the assumptions 
value is determined by forecasting used by management. 
and discounting future cash flows. 

• Read the policy, evaluated the design and tested 
The processes and methodologies for the operating effectiveness of controls over 
assessing and determining the fair preparation statement of Net Assets at Fair 
value is based on complex Value and Statement of Total Returns at Fair 
assumptions, that by their nature Value as per lnvlT regulations and the 
imply the use of the management's assumption used by management. 
judgment, in particular with reference 
to identification of forecast of future • Obtained and read the valuation report of the 
cash flows relating to the period lnvlT's independent valuation expert, and 
covered by the respective assessed the expert's competence, capability 
subsidiary's transmission license, and objectivity. 
debt equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of 
equity, residual value, etc. • Involved our subject matter experts to perform 

an independent review of methodology, 
Considering the judgment involved in estimates and key assumptions (weighted 
determination of fair values due to average cost of capital, debt equity ratio, 
inherent uncertainty and complexity forecast period, terminal growth rate) used in 
of the assumptions used in the valuation by the Company's independent 

valuation expert. 
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

determination of fair values, this is 
considered as a key audit matter. • Tested on sample basis that the tariff revenues 

considered in the respective valuation models 
are in agreement with TSAs / tariff orders and 
evaluated the reasonableness of cost and 
revenue attributes considered in forecast. 

• Tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy and 
validity of the data used in the calculations. 

• Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures included 
in the standalone financial statements . 

Other Information 

The Management of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (the "Investment Manager") is 
responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon . 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, 
consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, 
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Management of the Investment Manager ('the Management') is responsible for the 
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position as at March 31, 2023, financial performance including other comprehensive 
income, cash flows and the movement of the unit holders' funds for the year ended March 31 , 
2023, the net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2023, the total returns at fair value of the 
lnvlT and the net distributable cash flows of the lnvlT for the year ended March 31, 2023 in 
accordance with the requirements of the lnvlT Regulations, the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent 
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not inconsistent with lnvlT Regulations. This responsibility also includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate controls for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
ability of lnvlT to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the lnvlT or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Management is also responsible for overseeing the lnvlT's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion . Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

► Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

► Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the lnvlT's internal control. 

► Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management . 

► Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the lnvlT's ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the lnvlT to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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► Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards . 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

The financial statements of the lnvlT for the period ended from November 1, 2021 to March 
31 , 2022 included as comparative financial information in the accompanying standalone 
financial statements, have been approved by the Investment Manager's Board of Directors, but 
have not been subject to audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are in agreement with the books 
of account; 

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
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(c) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) and/or any addendum thereto as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, to the extent not 
inconsist ent with the lnvlT Regulations. 

For SR BC & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
!CAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 

"l:C Partner 
Membership Number: 408869 
UDIN:23408869BGXKKS1950 

Place of Signature: Pune 
Date: May 25, 2023 



Anzcn lndla Energy Yi•ld Plus Trust 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 
All amounts in Rupees mlllion unless otherwise stated 

Asat 
As at 

Particulars Notes 
March 31, 2023 

March 31, 2022 
(Refer Note 30) 

ASSETS 
(1) Non-current assets 

(a) Financial assets 
(I) Investments 3 11,386.41 
(Ii) Loans 4 11,314.00 
(iil) Other financial assets 5 0.7S 

(bl Income tax assets (net) 1.92 
Total non~urrent assets 22,703.08 

(2) Current assets 
(a) Flnanc;al assets 

(i) Investments 3 472.84 

(Ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6 4.10 
(iii) Bank balances other than (6) above 7 176.24 
(iv) Other financial assets 5 0.11 

Total current assets 653.29 

Total as.sets 23,356.37 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 
(a} Unit ca pltal 8 15,624.79 
(b) Other equity 9 272.87 
Total equity 15,897.66 

LIABllffiES 
(1) Non-current r.abilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 10 7.416.24 

Total non--current liiibilities 7.416.24 

(2) Current liabilitles 
(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Trade payables 
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

11 23.86 
and small enterprises 

(ii) Other flnanclal llabllltJes u 1.67 
(b) Other current liabilities 13 16.94 

Total current liabilities 42.47 

Total •qulty and liabllltles 23,356.37 

Summary or significant accounting policies. 2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone flnanclal statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For S R 8 C & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Fi~Regls::r?/E300003 

pKing! 

Partner 
Membership Number : 408869 
Place: Pune 
Date : May 25, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board or Directors of 
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers limited 
(AJ Investment Manager 10 Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust) 

~-RilnJtta Dco 

CIO & Whole-time Director 
OIN No. : 09609160 

,e:E=-5-#~ 
Jalpa Parekh 
Company Secretary 
Membership Number : A44507 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : May 25, 2023 

~~ 
Vaibhav Doshi 

Chief Flnancial Officer 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Standalone Statement of Profit and lo55 for the year ended March 31, 2023 

All amounts In Rupees million unless otherwise state d 

Pa rtlculars 

INCOME 
Revenue from operations 
Interest Income on investment In fixed deposits 

Income from Investment in mutual funds 

Total income 

EXPENSES 
Finance costs 

Legal and professional fees 
Annual listing fee 

Rating fee 
Valuation expenses 
Trustee fee 
Audit fees 

- Statutory audit fees 
- Other services (including certification) 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Profit before tax 

Tax expense: 

(I) Current tax 
(ii) Deferred tax 
Profit for the year [Al 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss In subsequent periods 
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 

Total othe r comprehensive income for the year, net of tax [BJ 

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A+BJ 

Earnings per unit (Rs. per unit) 

Basic and diluted 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

For the p eriod from 

Notes 
Year ended November 01,2021 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 
(Refer Note 30) 

14 668.29 

13.49 
24.33 

706.11 

lS 210.31 

1.11 
2.62 
2.66 

0.90 
0.64 

2.97 

0.15 
16 0.91 

222.27 

483.B4 

17 15.05 

468.79 

468,79 

18 7.68 

2 

The accompanyins notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For S R B C & CO UP 

Partner 

Membership Number: 408869 
Place: Pune 

Date: May 25, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited 
(As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust) 

CIO & Whole-time Director 
DIN No.: 09609160 

<)fo..,..-e..Kh 
~ 

Jalpa Parekh 
Company Secretary 
Membership Number : A44507 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : May 25, 2023 

lu& 
Vaibhav Doshi 

Chief Financial Officer 

-



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

Particulars 

Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit before tax 

Adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss) before tax to net cash flows: 

Interest income on investment in fixed deposits 

Income from investment in mutual funds 

Finance costs 

Interest income on loans given to subsidiaries 

Finance income on non-convertible debentures 

Finance income on optionally-convertible debentures 

Operating loss before working capital changes 

Working capital adjustment 

(Increase}/ Decrease in other assets 

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 

lncrease / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 

Cash flow generated from operations 

Income tax (paid)/ refund received (net) 

Net cash flow from operating activities [Al 
Cash flow from investing activities 

Purchase of OCD of subsidiaries 

Purchase of NCO of subsidiary 

Loan given to subsidiaries 

Loan repaid by subsidiaries 

Proceeds from maturity affixed deposits 

Investment in fixed deposits 

Investment in mutual funds 

Proceeds from sate of investment in mutual funds 

Interest received on loan given to subsidiaries 

Interest received on Optionally convertible debentures 

Interest received on Non convertible debentures 

Interest received on investment in fixed deposits 
Net cash flow used in investing activities [B] 

Cash flow from financing activities 

Proceeds from issue of Unit capital* 

Proceeds from non convertible debentures 

Payment of Unit issue expenses 

Payment of Interest on non convertible debentures 

Payment of distributions to unitholders 

Net cash flow from financing activities [CJ 

Net increase/ (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

For the period from 

Year ended November 01,2021 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 30) 

483.84 -

(13.49) . 
(24.33) -
210.31 

(556.74} . 
(20.65} . 
{90.90} 

(11.96) 

(0.75) 

23.85 

16.93 . 
28.08 -

(16.97} . 
11.11 I . 

(2,840.00) -
(291.00} 

(11,940.00) -
626.00 

8,752.17 ~ 

(8,928.41} 

(6,318.56} 

5,870.05 

556.74 

135.49 

20.65 

13.38 
(14,343.49} -

7,500.00 . 
7,500.00 

(175.21) 

(292.39) 

(195.92) 

14,336.48 -

4.10 -

4.10 

*The Trust has issued its units amounting to Rs. 8,300 million in exchange of the equity shares of NRSS and DMTCL. The same has not been reflected in cash 

flow since it was a non-cash transaction. 

For the period from 

Components of cash and cash equivalents: 
Year ended November 01,2021 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 30} 

Balances with banks : 

- On current accounts 4.10 -
- Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months -
Total cash and cash equivalents 4.10 -



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 
All amounts In Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

R ' II I b econc, at on etween open ng an c osmg a ances or a I ties arising rom mancing activrt1cs inc u 1ng current matunt1es d I ' b I f II b'll. fi ' ' ' (' I d' . . ) 

Particulars 

Opening total borrowings (Including interest accrued but not due) 
cash flow 
• Interest paid 
• Proceeds/(repayments) 
Interest accrued 
Others (ancillary borrowing cost) 
Closing total borrowings (including interest accrued but not duel 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

(292.39) 

7,500.00 

294.06 
(83.76) 

7,417.91 

2 

For S R B C & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited 

For the period from 
November 01,2021 

to March 31. 2022 

\rm Re:r ✓E300003 (As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust) 

Lsin:1 

Partner 
Membership Number : 408869 

Place : Pune 
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Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Standalone Statement of Changes in Unit holders' Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 

All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

A. Unit capital 

Particulars 

As at November 01, 2021 (Refer Note 30) 

Units issued during the year (refer note 8) 

As at March 31, 2022 

Units Issued during the year (refer note 8) 

Issue expenses 

As at March 31, 2023 

B. Other equity 

Pa rtlculars 

As at November 01, 2021 (Refer Note 30) 

Profit for the period 

Other comprehensive income for the period 

As at March 31, 2022 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Dist ribution durinR the year (refer note below} 

As at March 31, 2023 I 

Note: 

Number of units Amount 

- -
158.00 15,800.00 

(175.21) 

158.00 15,624.79 

Retained earnings Total 

468.79 468.79 

(195.92} (195.92} 

272.87 272.87 

The distribution during the year does not include the distribution relating to last quarter of FY 2022-23 which wi ll be paid after March 31, 2023. 

The distributions made by Anzen to its unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF} of Anzen under the lnvlT Regu lations and 

hence part of the same Includes repayment of capital as well. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 
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Anzen India Enercv Yield Plus Trust 
Notes to St.1ndalone Financlal Statements: for the yci!r ended March 31, 2023 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 
(SEBI Circular No. □R/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated October 20, 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 2016 issued under the lnvlT 

R•~ulatlons) 

A. Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2023 (refer note 2 below) 

(RI lnMll/ior,J 

Particulars Book Value Fair Value 

A. Assets 23,356.37 24,211.48 
B. Liabilities (at book value) 7,458.71 7.458.71 
c . Net Asset Value (A·B) 15,897.66 16,752 n 
D. NumbN of units 158.00 158,00 

E. NAV IC/DI 100 62 106,03 

Notes: 

. Project wise break up of Fair value of Assets as at March 31, 2023 (Rs. In Million) 

Partlcul.its Fair Value 

Oarbhanga • Motihari Transmission Company Umited roMTCL .. )# 13,849.80 

NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission limited ("NRSS"IU 10,337.42 

Sub total 24,187.22 

lnvlT Assets 653.18 

Payable to EIYP ' 1628.921 
Total Assets 24,211.48 

# The Trust has acquired OMTCL and NRSS with effect from November 11, 2022. 

•Pursuant to Securities Purchase Agreement, the entire economic and beneficial interest In all amounts due (net of tax) to the SPVs as per th e CERC 
Order pertaining to period prior lo and including M11rch 31, 2022 (including any amounts recer\led as one4 time settlements for issues raised in th!! 

petition) Is vested with Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus(EIYP) and upon receipt of the amounts (or any part thereof) shall be transferred to EIYP by 

SPVs. Accordingly, the same has not been considered In fafr value of Assets. 

2. Fair values of total assets (Including project wise break up for DMTCL and NRSS of rair value of total assets) as at March 31, 2023 as d isclosed above a re 
biJscd solely on the fair valuation report dated May 23, 2023 of the Independent valuer appointed by the Investment manager under the lnvlT 

Reculatlons. 

B. Statement of Total Return at Fair Value (refer note 1 below) 
(RI. in Mllllonl 

Pi!rti~uhJrS Year ended 
Marci, 31, 2023 

Total Comprehensive Income (As per the so,temenl of Proth and loss) 46879 
J\dd/(less): Other Chances In Fair Vo1lul! not recognized m Total Comprehensive Income 855.11 

Total Return 1,323.90 

Notes : 
1. Fair value of assets as at March 31, 2023 and other changes In fair value for the year lhen ended as dlsclosed in the above tables are b;JSed on fair 

valuation report dat ed M.1y '} 3, 2023 of the independent valuer .appointed by the Inves tment manager under the lnvlT Reeulations. 

2. Sensitivity analysis with respect to signific.ant unobservable inputs used in the fair v,1lue mei3Surment has been disclosed in Note 21 

As per our report of even date 

Far S R BC & CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registratir o: 324982E/E300003 

kt~ 
Partner 

MembersMp Number : 408869 
Plac,: Pune 

Date : May 25, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Edelweiss Re.JI Assets M.inacers Limited 
(As Investment Manager to An.z.en India Energy Yield Plus Trust ) 

~ 
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CIO & Whole-time Director 

DIN No.: 09609160 

m'C» -e,tW 
d~ 
Jalpa Parekh 
Company Secretary 

Membership Number : A44507 

Place: Pune 

Date : May 25, 2023 

Vaibhav Doshi 

Chief Financial Officer 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated October 20, 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 2016 issued 

under the lnvlT Regulations) 

ADDITIONAL DfSCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY PARAGRAPH 6 OF ANNEXURE A TO THE SEBI CIRCULAR NO. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 

Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Description 

Inflow from Project SPV Distributions 

Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of interest/ accrued interest/ additional interest 

Add: Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of dividend 

Add: Cash flows from the SPVs towards the repayment of the debt provided to the SPVs by the Anzen Trust 

and/ or redemption of debentures issued by SPVs to the Anzen Trust 

Add: Cash flows from the SPVs through capital reduction by way of a buy back or any other means as 

permitted, subject to applicable law 

Inflow from Investments/ Assets 

Add: Cash flows from sale of equity shares or any other investments in SPVs adjusted for amounts 

reinvested or planned to be reinvested 

Add: Cash flows from the sale of the SPVs not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to reinvest, or if such 

proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently 

Inflow from LiabHities 

Add: Cash flows from additional borrowings {including debentures/ other securities), fresh issuance of unrts, 
etc. 

Other Inflows 

Add: Any other income accruing at the Anzen Trust and not captured above, as deemed necessary by the 
Investment Manager, including but not limited to interest / return on surplus cash invested by the Anzen 

Trust 

Total cash inflow at the Anzen Trust level (A) 

Outflow for Anzen Trust Expenses / Taxes 

Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expenses incurred at the Anzen Trust, including but not limited to 

the fees of the Investment Manager, Project Manager, Trustee, Auditor, Valuer, Credit Rating Agency, etc. 

less: Income tax (if applicable) for standalone Anzen Trust and/ or payment of other statutory dues 

Outflow for Liabilities 

less: Repayment of third-party debt (principal} / redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc., net of 
any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt 

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowi!1g requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance, etc. 

Outflow for Assets 

Less: Amount invested in any of the SPVs 

Less: Amounts set aside to be invested or planned to be invested, as deemed necessary by the fnvestment 

Manager in compliance with the lnvlT Regulations 

Less: Investments including acquisition of other SPVs 

Other Outflows 

Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses which may be 

due in future 

Add/ Less: Amounts added/ retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the loan agreements 

in re!ation to the Anzen Trust 

less: Any other expense of the Anzen Trust not captured herein as deemed necessary by the Investment 

Manager 

Add/ Less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double counting 

of the same item for the above calculations 

Total cash outflow/retention at the Anzen Trust level (B) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows {C) = {A+B} 

* Rs 195.92 million distribution has been made during the year. 

{Rs in Million} 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

712.87 

626.00 

15,000.00 

35.09 

16,373.96 

{438.76) 

{15.05) 

(155.00) 

(15,071.00) 

(102.47) 

(15,782.28) 
591.68 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended Ma~ 31, 2023 

All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

l. Trust information 

Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust ("the Trust" or "Anzen") is an irrevocable trust settled by Seki.Ira Energy Private Limited (the "Sponsor') on November 01, 2021 pursuant to the Trust 

Deed under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and registered with Securities Ext:hange Board of India ("SEBI") under the SEBI (rnfrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 as 

an Infrastructure Investment Trust on January 18, 2022 having registration number IN/hwlT/2.1-22/0020. The Trustee of Anzen is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the "Trustee"). The· 

Investment manager for Anzen is Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (the "Investment Manager" or the "Management"), The objectives of Anzen are to undertake activities as an 

infrastructure investment trust in accordance with the provisions of the Inv IT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of Anzen is to own and invest in power tr.msmis,ion 

assets and renewable energy assets in India with the objective of producing stabfe and sustainable distributions to unitholders. 

As at March 31, 2023, Anzen has following project entities ("Special Purpose Vehicles" or "SPVs") which are transmission infrastructure projects developed on Build, Own, Operate and 

Maintain ('BOOM')·basis: 
1. Darbhanga -Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') 

2. NRSS XXXl(B) Transmission Limited {'NRSS') 
The address of the registered office of the Investment Manager is Plot 294/3, Edelweiss House, off CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz - East. Mumbai 400098. Maharashtra, India.. 

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with resolution of Board of Directors of the lnvestment Manager on May 25, 2023., 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Trust and comprise of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement. of Profit and Loss including the 

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flow, Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity for the year then ended, the Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at 

March 31, 2023, the Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows ('NDCFs') for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory notes In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(l)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), 

prescribed under Section 13.3 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Ind ASn) read with SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended and the circulars issued thereunder 

("lnv!T Regulations"). 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Million, except when otherwise indicated. 

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. 

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

The following is the summary of significant accounting policies applied by the Trust in preparing its financial statements: 

a} Current versus non-current classification 

The Trust presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An.asset is treated as current when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• Cash or cash equival_ent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at le2st twelve months after the repcrting period 

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification, 

The Trust classifies all other liabilities as non-current 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Trust has id~ntif1ed twelve months as its operating 

cycle; 

b) Foreign currencie.~ 

The Trust's financial statements are presented in INR, which is its functional cur~ency, The Trust does not have arry foreign operation and has assessed the functional currency of the Trust to 

belNR. 

Transactions and balances 
Transaaions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by 'the entity at functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies .rre translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
All amounts In Rupees minion unless otherwise stated 

cl Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the. price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Trust. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 

economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market partidpant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 

to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use, 

The Trust uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 

input that is significant to the fair vafue measurement as a whole: 

Level 1- Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level ;nput that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; 

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the iowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable, 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Trust determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re­

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting perio~ 

At each reporting date, the management analyses the moveme.nt of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or reassessed as per the Trust's accounting policies.. For this 

analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest vajuat.icin by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to.determine whether the change is reasonable. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Trust has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks ofthe asset or liability and the level of 

the fair value hierarchy, as explained above, 

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes. 

• Quantitative disclosures o! fair value measurement hierarchy fnote 21) 
• Investment in quoted mutual fund (note 3) 

• Finandal instruments {including those carried at amortised cost) (note 20) 

• Disclosures of statement of Net Assets at fair value and statement of Total returns at fair value 

d) Revenue 

The specific recognition criteria described befow must be met before revenue is recognised. 

Interest income 

For all debt instruments rr.easured at amortised cost, interest ,ncome is recorded u~ing the effective interest rate (EIRJ, EIR is the rate that exactly discounts t~e estimated future cash 

payments or receipts over the expected life of the financidl instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of 

a financial liability .. W'rten calculating the effective irterest rate, the Trust estimates the e~pected cash flows by conside~ing atl the contract:.ral terms cf the finandal instrument (for example, 

prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. · 

Dividends 

Income from dividend on investments is accrued in the year in which it is declared, whereby the Trust's right to receive is established. 

e) Taxes 

Current income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount 

are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss ts recognised outside statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in CCI or directly in equity, 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions 

where appropriate. 

Deferred tax 

Deferre<f tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the 

reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities a;e recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

• When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 

combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the ac.counting profit nor taxable profit or loss; 

• In respect of taxable temporary differences associated -.vith investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary 

differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporari1 

differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except: 

• When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, 

at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; 

• In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent 

that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient tax<1ble profit will be available to allow all 
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilfsed. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 

future taxable prgfits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 

that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of -profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same 

taxable Trust and the same taxation authority. 

Sales/value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses 

Expenses and assets are recognised net ofthe amount of sales/value added taxes paid, except 

• When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority, in which case, the tax p~id is recognised 

as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable 

• When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included 

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tc1x authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet. 

f) Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for 1ts intended use or sale are 

capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Trust incurs 

in connection with the borrowing of funds, Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

gl Impairment of non current fina~ial assets 

The Trust assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, 

the Trust estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU] fair value less costs of disposal and its value in 
use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value•in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 

money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an 

appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for pubticly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

The Trust bases its impairment cakulations on detailed budget and forecast calculations, These budgets are prepared for the entire project life, 

Impairment iosses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and ioss, 

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, If such indication 
1:x,sts, the Trust es:imates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount, A previously recognised impairment less is reversed only if ·there has been a change in the assumptions used to 

determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable 
amount, nor exceed the c.1rrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is 

recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 

h J Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

When the Trust expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the 

reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement. 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liabitity, When discounting 

is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent liability is disclosed for, (i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Trust, or {ii) Present obligations arising from past 

events where it is not probable that an outflow or resources will be required ·to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. 

i) Investments in subsidiaries 
The Trust accounts for its investments in subsidiaries at cost less accumulated impairment losses {ir any) in its separate financial statements, Investments accounted for at cost which are 

held for sare are accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and as held for sale. 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

j) Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cos-..s that are attributable to the 

acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular 

way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Trust commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the Trust's business model for managing them. 

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Trust has applied the practical expedient, the Trust initially measures a 

financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing 

component or for which the Trust has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section (d) 

Revenue from contracts with customers. 

Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

i Debt instrument5 ;it amortised cost 

ii, Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

iii, Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL} 

iv. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 

A 'financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost if"both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business modef whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIJ on the principal amount outstanding,. 

This category is most relevant to the Trust, After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral ·part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance 

income in the statement of profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, This category generally applies to interest receivable and loans 

given to subsidiaries (Refer Note 4). 

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments) 

A 'financial asset' is classified as the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and 

bJ The ass.et's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments included within the FVrOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value., Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive 

income (OCr}, However, the Trust recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss, On derecognition of tne 

asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit or loss, Interest earned whilst hording FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as 

interest income using the EIR method,The Trust does not have financial assets which are subsequently measured at FVTOCI. 

Financial assets designated at fair value through 00 (equity instruments) 

Upon initial recognition, the Trust can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity 

under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Prese/\tation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis_ Equity instruments which are held for 

trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL, 

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recpgnised 1ts other 1ncome in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has 

been established, except when the benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instrnments 

designated at fair value through OC! are not subject to impairment assessment. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOO, is classified as at FVTPL 

In addition, the Trust may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL However, such election is allowed only if doing so 

reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition incons[stency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'); The Trust has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Oerecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable. a part of a fimmcial asset or part cf a group of similar financial assets} is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Trust's balance sheet) when: 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have e.xpired, or 

• The Trust has transferred its rights· to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received ca;h flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 

'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (bj the Trust has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 

the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset 

When the Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and 

rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Trust continues to 

recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Trust's continuing involvement. In that case, the Trust also recognises an associated liabilitv, The transferred asset and the associated 

liability are measured on a basis that reflects the right5 and obligations that the Trust has retained. 

Impairment of financial assets 

Majorit'I of the financial assets of the Trust which are not reflected at fair value pertain to loans to subsidiaries and other receivables. Considering the nature of business, the Trust does not 

foresee any credit risk on its loans and other receivables whit;:h may cause an impairment. Majority of the other receivable· pertain to receivable from subsidiary companies only. Also, the 

Trust does not have any history of impairment of other receivables. 

For the financial assets which are reflected at fair value, no further impairment allowance is necessary as they reflect the fair value of the relevant financial asset itself. 
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Financial liabilities 

lnitiat recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging 

instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

All financ·ral liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, n,et of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Trust's financial liabilities include borrowings and related costs, trade and other payables. and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are dassified in two categories: 

• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

• Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings) 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financiar liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or 

loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments 

entered into by the Trust that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind .A.S 109 Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for 

trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost {Loans and borrowings) 

This is the category most relevant to the Trust. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequentiy measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and 

losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by ta King into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance 

costs in the statement of profit or loss. 

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 10. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is de recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender 

on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the 

recognition of a new HabHity. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Reclassification of financial assets 

The Trust determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments 

and financial liabilities, For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the 

business model are expected to be infrequent. The Trust's senior management determines change in the business model as a resuit of external or internal changes which are significant to 

the Trust's operations. Such chariges are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Trust either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to 

its operations. If the Trust reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period 

following the change in business model, The Trust does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for: 

Original classification 
Revised 

!Accounting treatment 
classification ! 

Amortised cost FVTPL 
Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous amortized cost and fair 

value is recognised in profit or loss, 

FVTPL Amortised Cost 
Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on 
the new gross carrying amount. 

Amortised cost FVTOCI 
Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous amortised cost and fair 

value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to reclassification. 

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost carrying amount. However, 
FVTOCI Amortised cost cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as 

if it had always been measured at amortised cost. 

FVTPL FVTOCI 
Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No other adjustment is 

required. 

FVTOCi FVTPL 
A.:ssets contim.:e to bi; measurci:Lat fafryalue. Cumu!atlve galri or lois prl?viouslyrecogniz,ed in OCI ls 
reciasslfied frt.>m equity to proflt or toss the redas.sl!lcation da,e. 
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Offsetting offinanda! instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and 

there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to reallse the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

k) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an 

insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding ban!c overdrafts as they are 

considered an integral part of the Trust's cash management. 

I) Cash distribution to unit holders 

The Trust recognises a liability to make cash distributions to unit holders when the distribution is authorised, and a legal obligation has been created As per the lnvlT Regulations, a 
distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity 

m) Earnings per unit 

Basic earnings per unit is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to unit holders of the Trust (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes if any) by the 

weighted average number of units outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of units outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus 

e!elT1€nt in a rights issue, split, and reverse split {consolidation of units} that have changed the number of units outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

n) Recent accounting pronouncements 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. 

On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable 

from April 1, 2023. These amendments are not expected to have any significant impact in the Trust's standalone financial statements. 

!This space is intentionally left blank] 
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3 Investments 

N<>n<Jm.e!lt ·-

Particulars 

[a) Equity investments, at ccst (unguotedl 

Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited (16,2S6,661 equity shares of Rs, 10 each fuUv paid up) · 

frefer note<: and note dl 
NRSS XXXI (B} Transmission limited {9,S32,137 equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up) {refer note c and '10te dj 

[bl Non-wnvertible debentures (unquoted) (at amortised cost} 

Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited (291.000 of 16% Non-convertible debentures of Rs .. 1,000 

each fully paid upl (refer note a) 

[c) Optionally convertible debentures (unquoted) (at amortised cost) 

Darbhanga- Motlhari Transmission Company Limited (87,710,000 of 18% Optionally convertible debenture$ of Rs, 

10 each fully :,aid up) (refer note b and c) 
NR5S XXXI (Bl Transmission Limited (63,243,500 of 18% Optionally convertible debentures of Rs,.10 each fully paid 

up) (refer note b Mn cJ 

As at 
A5 at Marr..h 31, 2023 March 31, 2.022 

/Refer No.te 301 

5,453,00 

4,132 S7 

291.00 

sn,10 

532.44 

11,386.41 ! 

la) Non Convertible debenture (NCO) of Face value of Rs.1,000 each were issued by DMTCL The NCO are redeemable at the option of the NCO holder anytime out of cash 

surplus, but ,f the NCO holders do not exercise theirr,ghtof redeeming the NCDs, the same are due for repayment at the end of March 2030, 

(bl Optionally convertible debentures (OCD) of Face value of Rs- 10 each were issued by DMTCL and NRSS-

. 

-

The OCD Holders, subject to necessary appw,als as needed and any shareholding restrictions under the TSA to which the Borrower is a party, have the option to convert the 

OCO at :any time before the Final Redemption Date subjea to the terms of the Agreement and valuation report and applic3ble law, 

The OCD are redeemable at the option of the OCD holder anytime out of t3Sh surplus, 

(cl Uder Ind AS, for these optionally convertible debentures the difference between transaction cost and fair value calculated b•r present value of all future cash receipts 

discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest has been reclassified as investment in equity of the subsidiary, 

(d} The Trust has acquired the entire equity share capital of Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company limited ('OMTCL') and NRSS XXXl(S) Transmission Limited ('NRSS') from 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus ('EIYP') pursuant to share purchase agreement dated on November 01, 2022 and subseq~t closing on November 11, 2022, The Trust 

issued its units amounting to R'- 4,700 million and Rs. 3,600 million to 8YP in exchM1ge of 100% equity stake in OMTCL and NRSS respectively. 

Name of subsidiary 

Directly held by the Trust: 
Oarbhar.ga • Motihari Tr;1nsmission Company limited 

NRSS XXXI IBl rr.:insmission Lir,,ited 

lnvestments at fair value through i:rofit or lass 

investment in mutual funds 

ABSL Liquid Fund-Growth-Direct Plan• 900,428.32 units {March 31, 2022: Nil) 
ABSL Overnight i'und-Growth-Oire<:t Plan -10,87S,30 units [March 31, 2022: Nil) 

!CICI Prudential Liquid rtmd·Oirect Plan-Growth• l9f.l.)32.91 units !March 31. 2022. 

Aggregate value of quoted invetments 
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 

4 loans 

Non Current 

Particulars 

(Unsecured, considered good) 

LQan to subsidiaries (refer note 221 • 
Total 

Details o( loan to subsidiaries 

Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 

NRSS XXXI (8) Transmission Limited 

Ccuntr1 of incoq::::orationf 

India 

India 

Asat 

March 31, 2023 

326.93 
13..19 

132,72 

472.84 

11,386.41 

Asat 
March 31, 2023 

U.314.00 
U.314.00 

Rate of Interest 

16% 

16% 

Own ersh1p interest% 

k. at March 31, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

I Refer Note 30) 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 3(1} 

100% 
100% 

Secured/ unsecured 

Unsecured 

Unsecured 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 

!Refer Note 301 

A5at 

March 31, 2023 

6,582,50 

4,731.50 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 

!R~.fer Note 301 

'Loans are non-derivative rinancial assets which are repayable by subsidiaries any time at its discretiOll or subject to mutual agreement between the parties. Further, the subsidiaries can prepay all 

or any portion of the outstanding principal term loan !along with accrued interest) without any pre payment penalty at such terms as may be agreed between the borrower and Trust, 
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S Othl?rflnancial assets 

l'aniculars 

Non-Current 

{Unsecured, considered good) 
Security deposits 

Total 

Current 
(Unsecureil, considered good) 

fnterest accrued on fixed cteoosits 
Total 

5 Cash and cash ~"al11ttt1 

! 

Particulars 

Cash and cash eqJJivafents 

Balances with banks in current accounts 

Total 
Balances with bank on current account does not earn i.~tt•~~ 

Particulars 

Other bank balances 

Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 

Balances with bank held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees 
and other commitments•• 

Total 

1 

I 
) 

i 

' 

Asat 
March 31, 2023 

075 

0.75-

011 
0.11 

A5at 

March 31, 2023 

4.10 

4.10, 

Asat 
March 31, 2023 

2'.L24 
155-.00 

176.24 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 
(Refer Note 30) 

A$at 

March 31. 2022 

IRefer Note 301 

A.sat 

March 31, 2022 
IRFf-• "'~._ ~Ol 

. 

.. Fixe<i deposits with banks of Rs.155..00 rl'it~n~ at March 31, 2023 and interest ...:u,;.,,:i th<x,;;;,i of Rs. Nil are lien marked with Catalyst 
Trusteeship Limited (debenture truslee) 

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of 

the trust, and eam interest at the resix,ctive short-term deposit rates., 

[This space is intentior>ally left blank) 
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8 Equity 

U. . l mtcapib 

Particulars 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up: 

Units of Rs. 100 each 

Less: Issue expenses 

Note: 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

No, ofunlts ln mllll0n Amount No. of un{ts tn million Amount 

158.00 15,800.00 

(175.21) 

15,624.79 

(a) Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has made an initial issue of 75,000,000 units, for cash at a price of Rs 100 . .00 per unit, aggregating to Rs. 7500 Million to the eligible 

unitholders (as defined in the Final Placement Memorandum) (the "Issue") on private placement basis, in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Infrastructure investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 including the circulars and guidelines issued thereunder. The issue opened en November 10, 2022 and closed on 

November 11,2022. Additionally, pursuant to the share purchase agreement with Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus Trust (#EIYP"), E!YP was allotted 83,000,000 units of 

Anzen. 

The lnvlT Committee of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (Investment Manager of Anzen). considered and approved allotment cf 1,58,000,000 units to the eligible 

(b) Issue expenses of Rs. 175.21 Mi!lion incurred in connection with issue of units have been reduced from the Unitholders capital in accordance with tnd AS 32 Financial 

Instruments: Presentation. 

(i) Terms/Rights attached to the 1J nits 

The Trust has only one class of Units having a par value of INR 100 per Unit, Each Unit represents an undivided beneficiar interest in the Trust. Each holder cf unit is entitled to 

one vote per unit. The Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows cf the Trust at least once in each financiai year in accordance with 

the lnvlT Regulations. The Investment Manager approves dividend distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of units held by the unitholders .. The 

Trust declares and pays dividends in tndian Rupees. 

A Unitholder has no equitable or proprietary interest in the projects of the Trust and is not entitled to any share in the transfer of the projects (or any part thereof) or any 

interest in the projects (or any part thereof) of the Trust. A Unitholder's right is limited to the right to require due administration of the Trust in accordance with the provisions 

of the Trust Oeed anti the lnv~tment Management Agreement. 

[HJ Details of Unithoklers hc!tlfnr, more than 5% units in the Tnm 
A$ at M;m·.h 31, :ma l As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars 
' No. o0t units in mllikis!'I No. of units in million % holding l % holding 

! 
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 93.80 59,37%1 
Sekura Energy Private Limited nso 15.C6%. 
Larsen & Toubro Limited 15.20 9,62~~1 

132.80 84.05%! 

(iii) Reconciliation of units outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 

As at March 31, 2023 ! As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars 
No. of units in million Amount No. of units in million Amount 

At the beginning nf thP year -
Add : Issued during the year 158.00 15,800.00 

Less: Issue expenses (refer note (b) above) (175.21) 

Outstanding at the end of the 'lear 158.00 j 15,624.79 · - I 

(a) The Trust has acquired the entire equity share capital of Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('OMTCL') and NRSS XXXl(B) Transmisslon Limited ('NRSS') from 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus ('EIYP') pursuant to share purchase agreement dated on November 01, 2022 and subsequent dosing on November 11, 2022 .. The Trust 

issued its units amounting tc Rs, 4,700 million and Rs. 3,600 million to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and NRSS respectively 

{iv} The Trust has not altotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of incorporation till the balance sheet date, 

Asat 

Particulars 
Asat 

March 31, 2022 
March 31, 2023 

(Refer Note 30) 

Retained earnings 

Balance as at the beginning of the year/ period 

Profit for the year/ period 468.79 
Less: Distribution to Unit Holders (195.92) . 
Closing balance 272.87 

Retained earnings are the profits earned by the Trust till date, less distribution paid to unithoiders, if any. 
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10 Borrowings 

Non - current: 

Particulars 

Borrowings at amortised cost 

A. Secured 

8.01% Series A Non convertible debentures 

(4500 debentures of Rs.1,000,000 each fully paid up)*'" 

8.34% Series B Non convertible debentures 

(3000 debentures of Rs.1,000,000 each fully paid up) ** 
Less: current maturities of debentures 

Total non-current borrowings 

Effective Interest 

Rate 

8.47% 

8.70% 

~~Net of ancillary borrowing costs amounting to Rs. 83.76 mi!lion for Series A and Series B. 

Non-current borrowings 

Current borrowings 

(a) Terms of borrowings 

Asat 
Asat 

March 31, 2023 
March 31, 2022 

I Refer Note 30) 

4,450.33 

2,965.91 

I 7,416.24 

7,416,24 

On December 01, 2022 the Trust has issued and allotted 7,500 secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of face value of Rs 

1,000,000 each for an aggregate consideration of Rs.750.00 million on private placement basis. 

Repayment schedule of NCO 

Particulars 
Amount Maturity date 

Series A 4,500.00 01-12-2025 

Series B 3,000.00 01-12-2027 

(b) Security 

-
-

(i) a first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all the Issuer's current assets and other assets (excluding DSR and OSRA), both present and future, 

including: (i) all the receivables, right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Issuer in, to and under all the loans and advances 

extended by the issuer to the SPVs and HoldCo(s), present and future (collectively, the "Issuer Loans"); (ii) the receivables, right, title and interest and 

benefits of the Issuer in, to and under all the financing agreements, deeds, documents and agreements or any other instruments (both present and 

future} which are now executed or may hereafter be executed by the Issuer with respect to the Issuer Loans; Step in rights on the Loans shall be with the 

Common security Trustee. (iLi) all bank accounts of the Issuer, including but not limited to the Escrow Account and the Sub-Accounts (including Cash Trap 

Sub Account) (if any) (excluding the distribution account and the accounts opened to meet the debt service reserve requirements in respect of any 

Additional Debt) or any accounts in substitution thereof that may be opened in accordance with the Debt Securities Documents, and in all funds from 

time to time deposited therein (including the reserves), a!i designated account opened with designated banks and the Permitted Investments or other 

securities reoresentim, all amounts credited to the Escrow Account: 
(ii) a first and exclusive charge on the DSR and DSRA to be created in favour of the Common Security Trustee for benefit of Debt Securities under this Deed, 

and all amounts lying therein; 

(iii) a first pari passu pledge over 100% (one hundred percent} of the equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, optionally convertible 

debentures, non-convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer in all the Project SPVs. 

(iv} pari passu pledge over unencumbered equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, optionally convertible debentures, non-convertible 

debentures and securities held by the Issuer and Holdco(s) in all the Other SPVs and Holdco(s) (as applicable}. 

(c) Interest 

tnterest shall accrue at the end of every quarter and shall be payable on the last date of each quarter. 
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11 Trade pa-,ables{canied atamorti~ co:.t) 

Particulars 

Trade payables 

Tot,1l outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Totat outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total 
lra(le payables 

• to related parties 

-tootM<1 

'rot.ii 

Trade p;ivabl~ ageing schedule: 

As at 
Asat 

March 31, 2022 
March 31, 2023 

(Refer Note 30) 

23.86 

23.86 

19.90 

3.96 

I 23.86 

Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction 
Particulars 

As at March 31, 2023 

fowl outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 

To.bl outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises 

Ohµvt"'.d dues of creditors other than microeilteri;&.e~ and small enterprises 

At. at March 31, 2022 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 

Tot~! outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Disputed dues oi micro and small enterprises 

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small ,;rnteq::riU!S 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 

23.86 

Details of dues to Mkrc, Small, and Medium Etiterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Oevefopment Act, 2006 (MSMEO Act>: 

The princ,pal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at th~ end cf each accol!ntir.g year 

Principal amcur.t due to micro and small enterprises 

Interest due en above 

2-3 years 

The amount of interest paid by the bu,er in terms of section 16 cf the MSMED Act 20G6 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 

'7'::: amount cf interest due and payable for the period cf delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyol".d the appointed day during the year) but 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting vear 

The amount of further interest t<e,l'l't,aining due and p;a,r,;bie even in the succeeding y~ar$. until such date when the interest dues as above are actuat!'; µ.;,jtl to the 

Trade payables are not- interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 days terms. 

For explanation on the Trust's risk management policies, refer note 26 

12 Other finano:if liabilities 

Asat 
Particulars 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 

March 31, 2023 
(Refer Note 30) 

Cur~ent 
!nttre5laccrued but not due on borrowings 1.57 -
Total 1.67 

13 Other current liabilities 

Asat 
Particulars 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

March 31, 2023 
{Refer Note 30) 

Current 

Statutory dues 16.94 -
Total 16.94 ' 

(This space is intentionally left blank] 

l 

I
! 

More than 

Asat 
March 31, 2023 

Total 

23.86 

23.!16 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 

{Refer Note 30) 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

14 Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Interest income (refer note 22) 

- on loans given to subsidiaries 

- on non-convertible debentures issued by subsidiaries 

- on optionally-convertible debentures issued by subsidiaries 

Total 

15 Finance costs 

Particulars 

Finance cost on Non-convertible debentures 

Total 

16 Other expenses 

Particulars 

, Miscellaneous expenses 

!Total 

[This space is intentionally left blank] 

For the period from 

Year ended November 01,2021 
March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 30) 

556.74 -
20.65 -
90.90 -

668.29 . 

For the period from 

Year ended November 01,2021 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 
(Refer Note 30) 

210.31 

210.31 -

For the period from 

Year ended November 01,2021 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 30) 

0.91 I -
0.91 -
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17 Ta,c e,cpense 

The major components of income tax expense for the period are: 

Particulars 

Current income tax: 

Current income tax charge 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

15.05 

15.05 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for March 31, 2023: 

Particulars 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Profit before tax 483.84 

Enacted income tax rate in India 42.74% 
Computed expected tax 206.81 

Effect of: 
Impact of exemption u/s 10(23FC) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 available to the Trust {191.76) 

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 15.05 

18 Earnings per unit (EPU) 

For the period from 
November 01,2021 

to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 30) 

For the period from 

November 01,2021 

to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 30) 
~ 

-

-

Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable.to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during 

the year 

Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding 

during the year plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital. 

Particulars 

Profit after tal( for cak:ulatl.ng basic and dilute.cl earnings pe; unit attribut;abie to t:nitholt!ers {fNR 

miUionsJ 

Face •,rJiue per unit (ln INRJ 
Basic and dHuted enmlngs µ~t l.ll'lit (ln !NRi 

[This space is intentionally left blankJ 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

468.79 

61.04 

1cio 
7.68 

For the period from 

November 01,2021 

to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 30) 
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19 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of the Trust's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, 

expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 

adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

Judgements 
In the process of applying the Trust's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in 

the financial statements. 

(a} Classification of Unitholders' funds 

Under the provisions of the lnvlT Regulations, Anzen is required to distribute to unitholders not less than ninety percent of the net distributable cash flows of Anzen for each 

financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the unitholders' funds contains a contractual obligation of the Trust to pay to its unithoJders cash distributions. The unitholders' funds could 

therefore have been classified as compound financial instrument which contain both equity and liability components in accordance with tnd AS 32 - Financial Instruments: 

Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circulars (No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20-0ct-2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016) issued under 

the lnvlT Regulations, the unitholder.:;' funds have been classified as equity in order to comply wilh the mandatory requirements of Section H of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular 

dated 20 October 2016 dealing with the minimum disclosures for key financial statements. In line with the above, the distribution payable to unit holders is recognised as liability 

when the same is approved by the Investment Manager. 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to 

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities or fair value disclosures within the next financial year, are described below. The Trust based its assumptions and estimates on 

parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market 

changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Trust. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

(b) Fair valuation and disclosures 

SEBI Circulars issued under the lnvff Regulations require disclosures relating to net assets at fair value and total returns at fair value (refer note 20). In estimating the fair value of 

investments in subsidiaries (which constitute substantial portion of the net assets), the Trust engages indeperident qualified external valuers to perform the valuation. The 

management works closely with the valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The management reports the valuation report and findings 

to the Board of the Investment Manager annually to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the transmission projects. The inputs to the 

valuation models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements 

include considerations of inputs such as WACC, Tax rates, Inflation rates, etc.. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value. 

(c) Impairment of non-current financial assets 

Non-current financial assets of the Trust primarily comprise cf investments in subsidiaries, 

The prevision for impairment/(reversal) of impairment of investments in subsidiaries is made based on the difference between the carrying amounts and the recoverabie amounts. 

The recoverable amount of the investments in subsidiaries has been computed by external independent valuation experts based on value in use caiculation for the underlying 

projects (based on discounted cash flow model). On a periodic basis, according to the recoverabre amounts of individual portfolio assets computed by the valuation experts, the 

Trust tests for impairment on the amounts invested in the respective subsidiary companies based on the valuation exercise so carried out, There is no impairment for the year 

ended March 31, 2023. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the underlying projects are disclosed and further explained in Note 21. 

[rhis space is intentionally left blank] 
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20 Financial Instruments by category 

Set out below is a comparison, bv class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Trust's financial instruments as of March 31, 2023: 

Fair value through 
Fair value through 

Particulars Amortised cost other comprehensive 
profit and loss 

income 
Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivafents 4.10 
Investments [including loan to subsidiaries) 22,700.41 . 
Investments in Mutuaf funds •. 472.84 
Other bank balances 176.24 
Other financial assets 0.36 

!Total 22,881.61 ; 47Z.84 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 7,416,24 

Trade payables 23,86 
Other financial liabilities 1.67 

iTotal i 1,441.n l ~ . 

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Trust's financial instruments as of March 31, 2022 ·; 

Particulars 

Financial assets 
'Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Loans 

Other bank balances 

Other financial assets 

!Total 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 

Trade payables 

Other financial liabifities 

\Total 

Amortised cost 
Fair value through 

profit and loss 

Fair value through 

other comprehensive 

income 

f 

Carrying values of Jnvestmer.ts, Loans, otnerfinancial a~sets, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their fair values. 

21 Fair value hierarchy 

rhe f:cr:!~~ ... -<~t;i table ~d'~1:$~~'-~.:- fair va!ue hiera.~thV of -i;'.>•~.t,~! and liabilities as of .. 
i Fair value measurement at end of the reoorting year using j 

Particulars Quoted prices in Significant Significant 

active markets (Level 1) obsen,able inputs unobservable inputs 

(Level 2) (level 3) 

Assets measured at fair value: 

March 31, 2022 

Quoted investments· Investment in mutual funds -
March 31, 2023 

Quoted investments - Investment in mutual funds 472.S4 

Assets for which fair values are disclosed: 

March 31, 2022 
Investment in subsidraries (including.loan to subsidiaries) 

March 31, 2023 

Investment in subsidiaries (including loan to subsidiaries} - - 23,55552 
liabilities for which fair value disclosures are given: 

March 31, 2022 

Borrowings - . -
March 31, 2023 

Borrowings 7,394.03 

There have berm no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and level 3, 

!nvestmellt in mutual funds though unlisted, are quoted on recognised stock exchanges at their previous da',I NAVs which is the quote for the day. 

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation: 

/Significant unobservable inputs 

l Input for 

March 31, 2023 

Increase /(decrease) in 
;;!:, Sensitivity of input to the fair value 

WACC 

Tax rate [normal tax and MAT) 

[Escalation rate for expenses 

7.50% to 8.55% 

MAT-17.47% 

Normal tax - 25.17% 

2.5%to5% 

fair value ----------1 
Marcil 31, 2023 

+0.5% -1.204.00! 

-0.5% 1,355.00[ 

+2% -402 .. □of 

389.□0! 
+20% -220,021 

·20% 184.421 

[This space is intentionally left blank] 

Total carrying value Total fair value 

4,10 4.10 
22,700.41 23,555,52 

472..84 472,84 

175.24 176,24 

0.86 0.86 

23.354.45 24.209.56 

7,416-24 7,394.03 

23.86 23.86 

c.67 1.67. 

7,441.77 7,419.S6 

Total carrying value Total fair value 
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22 Related party disclosures 

I. list of related parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures 

a) Entity with control over the Trust 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus (w.e.f. November 11, 2022) 

b) Entity with significant influence over the Trust 
Sekura Energy Private Limited {SEPL) - Sponsor and Project Manager 

Edelweiss Rear Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager 

Edelweiss Financial Services limited - Ultimate holding Company of ERAML 

c) Subsidiaries 

Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited {w.e.f. November 11, 2022) 

NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited (w.e.f. November 11, 2022} 

II. List of related parties as per Regulation 2(l)(zv) of the lnvlT Regulations 

a} Parties to the Trust 

Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project manager 

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager 

Axis Trustee Services Limited (ATSL) - Trustee of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

b) Promoters of the parties to Anzen specified in (a) above 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisers Limited (w.e.f. March 29, 2023) 

Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited {upto March 28, 2023} 

Axis Bank Limited 

c) Directors of the parties to Anzen specified in (a) above 

i) Directors of SEPL 

Avinash Prabhakar Rao 

Sushant Sujir Nayak 

Tharuvai Venugopal Rangaswami 

ii) Directors of ERAML 

Venkatchalam Ramaswamy 

Subahoo Chordia 

Sunil Mitra 

Prabhakar Panda (ceased to be director w.e.f. April 1, 2023) 

Ranjita Deo 

Shiva Kumar 

Bala C Deshpande {appointed as director w.e.f. April 1, 2023} 

iii) Key Managerial Personnel of ERAML 

Ranjita Deo (Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer} 

Vaibhav Doshi (Chief Financial Officer) {w.e.f. 1 February 2023) 

Jalpa Parekh (Company Secretary) 

iv) Directors of ATSL 

Deepa Rath 

Rajesh Kumar Dahiya 

Ganesh Sankaran 

Promoters of SEPL 

Promoters of ERAML 

Promoters of ERAML 
Promoters of ATSL 
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!If, Relatiro p.arty transactions· 

Particulars 

Issue of units 

Issue of units 

l!>->Ue of units 

l~i.e of NCO 

Interest expense on NCD 

lnte1'1$t incom_e on Loan given 

Interest income on Loan given 

Interest income on OCD 

Interest income on OCD 

Interest income on NCD 

Loan given 

Loan given 

Loan repaid 

Li;i-.mrepaid 

Rclm!:mn:l!ment of expenses 

R()lmi:iut>l1mt:nt of expenses 

Unit placement fees 

Arranger fees for NCD facilities 

Trustee Fee 

Distribution to unit holders 

Distribution to unlt holders 

Distribution to unit holders 

Investment in Equity instruments of DMTCL 

"tm,estment in Equity instruments of NP.SS 

fn:-estmcnt. in OCD of DMTCL 

l!'>Yt.!$l'.t>w.nt in OCD of NRSS 

ln~ttlW'lt in NCD of DMTCL 

N. Related p:Jrtybalances: 

Particulars 

!r..l::!ti pnv.;:tie;; 
Tr.;4~ ;;;t)•.:bl~ 

rra-;:tt:< ~y~t?!-e.Jo. 

Interest .io::ruet:: but not dire on borrowing; 
01.tst.imiil'l8 oei>· 
04.;tstal\di(lg oco 
Cv!!Sta.TTdfr~g NCP 

Name of related party 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

Sekura Energy Private Limited 

Axis Bank Limited 

Axis Bank Limited 

Axis Bani< Limited 

Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 

NRSS XXXI (8) Transmission Lim·1ted 

Darbhanga • Motihari Transmission Company Limited 

NRSS XXXI (BJ Transmission Limited 

Oarbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 

Oarbhanga · Motihari Transmission Company Limited 

NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited 

Darbhanga • Motihari Transmission Company limited 

NRSS XXXI (Bl Transmission Limited 

Sekura Energy Private Limited 

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 

Edetweiss Financial Services limit:d 

Axis Bank Limited 

Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

Sekura Energy Private limited 

Axis Bank Limited 

Edetweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

Edelwerss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

l'il=e of related party 

0-;.;rhho;;r;e;; • Motihari Transmission Company Limited 

NRSS XXXI {B) Transmission limited 

Sekura Energy Private Limited 

Edelweiss Alternative Asser Advisors Limited 

Ax:s Trustee Services Limited 

A:<ii Bank Limited 

Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 

NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited 

O.Ji'llhiir)~;i • Mct,had Tr;irum•~~ion Com;:::i.01 Limited 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

9,380.00 
2,380.00 

500.00 
3,000.00 

79,66 
313.25 

243.49 

5883 

32.07 

20.65 

6,910.00 
5,030,00 

327,50 

29850 

101,59 
0.05 

11.09 

8.89 
0.26 

116.31 
29.51 

3.97 
5,453.00 
4,132.87 

877,10 

632-44 

29rnO 

Asat 

March 31, 2023 

[Receivable/ (Payablell 

6,582.50 

4.73150 
-19.5$ 

-0.05 
-0.26 
-0.66 

877.10 
632,44 

291,0:0 

For the period from 

November 01,ZOZl 

to March 31, 2022 
IR,,.~~."'-•" ::ml 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

(Refer Nate 30) 

Details in respect of related party transactions involving acquisition of lnvlT assets as required by Para 4.4(b)(iv) of Section A of Annexure A to SEBI Circular dated 20 October 2016 are as 

follow: 

For the year ended March 31, 2023: 

Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has acquired Darbhanga - Motiharr Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXl(B) Transmission limited ('NRSS') from Edelweiss 

Infrastructure Yield Pius ('EIYP') pursuant to share purchase agreement dated on l No'Jember 2022 and subsequent closing on 11 November 2022. The Trust issued its units amounting to 

Rs. 4,700 million and Rs. 3,600 million to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and NRSS respectively. 

Summar, af valuation n!-i:rort 

EnterpriJt! value as at 30 June 2022 

Method ot valuation 

~~nt rate fWACCi 

12,907.00 

Discounted Cash F½w 
<Q,4$% 

Nl?SS l 
9,897.00 ·, 

Discounted Cash F~•tJ 

8,24% 

Enterprise value as disclosed above are based solely on the fair valuation report dated 18 October 2022 of the independent valuer appointed by the Investment manager under the lnvlT 

Regulations. 

[This space is intentionally left blank) 
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23 capital and other commitmen1:> 

The Trust has no commitments as on March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: Nill-

24 Contingentliability-

The Trust has no contingent liability as on March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 : Nil). 

25 Segment reporting 
The Trust's activities comprise of owning and investing in SPVs to generate cash flows for distribution to unitholders. Based on the gu_ic:ling principles given in Ind AS - 108 "Operating 

Segments", this activity falls within a single operating segment and accordingly the disclosures of Ind AS-108 have not separately been given, 

26 Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Trust's principal financial liabilities comprise of oorrowings and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Trust's operations. The Trust's 

principal financial assets include investments, loans, cash and bank balances and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.The Trust may be exposed to market risk, 
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Investment Manager oversees the management of these risks. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that 

have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Trust's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The management reviews and 

agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.The Risk Management policies of the Trust are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Trust, 

to set appropriate risk limit5 and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions 

and the Trust's activities.Management has overail responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Trust's risk management framework. 

(a) Market risk 
Market risk is the risk th~t the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest 

rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and investments. 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Trust's borrowings are at fixed rate, 

hence the Trust is not exposed to Interest rate risk. 

Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rateS- The Trusi did not have any exposure in 

foreign currency as at March 31, 2023 and as at March 31, 2022. 

Equity price risk 

The Trust's investments in equity shares of subsidiaries are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of those investments. Reports on the equity 

portfolio are submitted to the senior management on a regular basis.. The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager reviews and approves all equity investment decisions. At the 

reporting date, the exposure to equity investments in subsidiary at carrying 1raiue was Rs. 9,585.88 MiHion (March 31, 2022: Nil) . Sensitivity analyses of significant unobservable inputs used 

in t.'ie fair value measurement are disclosed in Note 21. 

(b) Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, reading to a financia I loss. The Trust is exposed to credit risk from its 

investing activities including loans to subsidiaries, deposits with banks and other financial instruments. As at March 31, 2023, the credit risk is considered low since substantial transactions of 

the Trust are with its subsidiaries 

[This space is intentionarly left blank} 
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(c) Liquidity risk 
·uquidity risk is the risk that the Trust may encounter difficuity in meeting its present and future obligations associated with financial liabilities that are required to be settled by delivering cash or another 

financial asset. The Trust's objective is to, at all times, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral obligations. The Trust requires funds both for short term operational needs as 

well as for long term investment programs, The Trust dosely monitors its llquidlty position and deploys a robust cash management system. It aims to minimise these risks by generating sufficient cash 

flows from its current operations, which in addition to the available cash and cash equivalents and liquid investments will provide Ilquidity. 

The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial.liabilities. The other fmancial liabilities are with short term durations. The table below summarises the maturity profile 

of the Trust's financial liabilities based on contractual und_iscounted payments: 

Particulars On demand I Less than 3 months 3 months to l vear l vear to S ve:an nm«: than S years Total 
As at March 31, 2023 

Non convertible debentures (Secured) . 7,415.24 7,416.2<+ 
Trade payables 23.85 23.86 
Other financial liabilities 1.,67 1.67 
Interest on borrowings 152.24 459.66 1.530.96 2,142.86 

. 177.77 459.66 8,947.20 9,584.63 
As at March 31, 2022 

I I Non convertible debentures {Secured) I 
Trade payables ! I l j 

Other financial liabilities i I I I - l 
~ l 

[This space is intentionaHy left blank] 
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27 Capital management 

For the purpose of the Trust's capital management, capital includes issued unit capital and all other reserves attributable to the unit holders of t he Trust. The 

primary objective of the Trust's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support Its 

business and ma•imize unit holder value. 

The Trust manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes In economic conditions and the requirements of the financial 

covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure. the Trust may adjust tl1e d istribution to unitholders (subject to the provisions of lnv!T regulations which 

require distribution of at least 90% of the net distributable cash flows of the Trust to unit holders), return capital to unitholders or issue new units. The Trust 

monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which Is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Trust's policy Is to keep the gearing ratio optimum. The 

Trust indudes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and short 

term investments. 

Asat 

Paniculars 
As at 

March 31, 2022 
March 31, 2023 

(Refer Note 30) 

Borrowings 7,416.24 

Trade Payables 23.86 
Other financial liabilities 1.67 
Less: cash and other bank balances (180.34) 

Net debt (Al 7,261.43 

Unit capital 15,624.79 

Other equity 272.87 
Total equity capital [BJ 15,897.66 
Capital and net debt [C=A+B) 23,159.09 
Gearing ratio{%) [A/q 0.31 

Financial Covenants 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Trust's capital management. amongst other things, alms to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to 

the interest•bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any Interest­
bearing loans and borrowing in the current year. 

No changes were made in the objectives. policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2023. 

28 Subsequent event 

On May 25. 2023, the Board of directors of the Investment Manager approved a distribution of Rs.2.42 per unit for the period January 01, 2023 to March 31, 
2023 to be paid on or before 15 days from the date of declaration. 

29 Contingent Consideration 

As per the Securities Purchase Agreement, any amounts due to Oarbhanga - Motlhari Transmission Company limited ('OMTCL') and NRSS XXXl(BI Transmission 

limited l'NRSS') pursuant to any future order passed by any competent authority pursuant to daims or appeals filed by Oarbhanga • Motlhari Transmission 

Company limited ('OMTCL') and NRSS XXXl(BJ Transmission limited ('NRSS') until the Closing Date (including any claims or appeals filed in relation to the 

CERC Order such as the appeal filed by DMTCL dated June 24, 20221 ("Future Receivables") Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust/Oarbhanga • Motlhari 

Transmission Company limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXl(B) Transmission Limited ('NRSS') shall pursuant to the receipt of final, non•appealable orders of a 

court of competent jurisdiction, be transferred to Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus. Based on the management assessment of the possible outcome of these 

matters and timine thereof, the same Is not considered as contineent considerat ion as oer Ind AS 103 Business Combination. 
30 Previous year figures 

The Trust was registered as an irrevocable trust under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on November 1, 2021 and as an Infrastructure Investment Trust under the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 on January 18, 2022. However there were no transactions duri ng 

the period November 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022. Further, the financial statements of the Trust for the year ended March 31, 2022 included as comparative 

financial information in the standalone financial statements, have been approved by the Investment Manager's Board of Directors, but have not been subject 

to audit. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Unit holders of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

Ground Floor 
Panc hshil Tech Pa rk, Yerwada 
( Near Don Bosco Sc hool J 
Pune - 4 11 006, India 

Tel . +9 1 20 6603 6000 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Anzen India Energy 
Yield Plus Trust (hereinafter referred to as "the lnvlT") and its subsidiaries (the lnvlT and its 
subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet 
as at March 31 2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other 
comprehensive income, the consolidated Statement of Changes in Unit Holders' Equity, the 
consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, the consolidated Statement of 
Net Assets at fair value as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated Statement of Total Returns at 
fair value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows ('NDCFs') of the lnvlT and each of its 
subsidiaries for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory notes (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements") . 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as 
amended including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (together referred as the 
"lnvlT Regulations") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with lnvlT 
Regulations, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2023, its 
consolidated loss including other comprehensive income, its consolidated cash movements and 
its consolidated movement of the unit holders' funds for the year ended March 31, 2023 , its 
consolidated net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2023, its consolidated total returns at fair 
value and the net distributable cash flows of the lnvlT and each of its subsidiaries for the year 
ended March 31, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements' section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the lnvlT Regulations 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2023 . These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's 
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, 
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of 
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements. The results of audit procedures performed by us, including 
those procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit 
opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements . 

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

AQQlicability of AQQendix D of Ind AS 115 'Service Concession Arrangement' (as described 
in Note 30 of the consolidated financial statements) 

The Group through its subsidiaries acts Our audit procedures included, among others, 
as a transmission licensee under the the following: 
Electricity Act, 2003 holding valid 
licenses for 25 years . Generally, the • Obtained and read the TSAs to 
subsidiaries have entered into understand roles and responsibilities of 
Transmission Services Agreements the grantor. 
("TSA") with Long Term Transmission 
Customers ("L TTC") through a tariff- • Evaluated the TSAs to understand 
based bidding process to Build, Own, whether the granter controls significant 
Operate and Maintain ("BOOM") the residual interest in the infrastructure at 
transmission infrastructure for a period the end of the term of the arrangement 
of 35 years. through ownership, beneficial ownership 

or otherwise. 
The Management of Investment Manager 
("management") is of the view that the • Discussed with management regarding 
granter as defined under Appendix D of the extent of grantor's involvement in the 
Ind AS 115 ("Appendix D") requires transmission assets and grantor's 
transmission licensee to obtain various intention not to control the significant 
approvals under the regulatory residual interest through ownership, 
framework to conduct its operations beneficial entitlement or otherwise. 
both during the period of the license as 
well as at the end of the license period. • Assessed the positions taken by other 
In the view of management, generally entities in India with similar 
the grantor's involvement and approvals projects/TSAs as to the extent of 
are to protect public interest and are not involvement of the grantor and the 

/~fJ:·-' 
<:t:-q, 
~ 

/. 



SR BC & CO lLP 
Chartered A ccoun tants 

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

intended to control, through ownership, consequent evaluation of the applicability 
beneficial entitlement or otherwise, any of Appendix D for such entities and 
significant residual interest in the confirmed our understanding. 
transmission infrastructure at the end of 
the term of the arrangement . • Read and assessed the disclosures 
Accordingly, management is of the view included in the consolidated financial 
that Appendix D is not applicable to the statements for compliance with the 
Group. relevant accounting standards 

requirements . 
Considering the judgement involved in 
determining the grantor's involvement 
and whether the grantor controls, 
through ownership, beneficial 
entitlement or otherwise, and any 
significant residual interest in the 
transmission infrastructure at the end of 
the term of the arrangement, this is 
considered as a key audit matter. 

lm~airment of i:1roi:1erty:, i:1lant and eguii:1ment 
(as described in Note 3 and 30 of the consolidated financial statements) 
The Group owns and operates various 
power transmission assets. The carrying 
value of the power transmission assets 
as at March 31, 2023, included under 
property, plant and equipment INR 
20,976.72 million. 

In accordance with Ind AS 36, at each 
reporting period end, management 
assesses the existence of impairment 
indicators of property, plant and 
equipment. In case of existence of 
impairment indicators, property, plant 
and equipment and balances are 
subjected to impairment test . 

The processes and methodologies for 
assessing and determining the fair value 
is based on complex assumptions, that 
by their nature imply the use of 
management's judgment, in particular 
with reference to identification of 
forecast of future cash flows relating to 
the period covered by the respective 
subsidiary's transmission license, debt 

Our audit procedures included , among others, 
the. following: 

• Read the policy, evaluated the design and 
tested the operating effectiveness of 
controls over assessment of impairment of 
property, plant and equipment and the 
assumptions used by management. 

• Obtained and read the valuation report of the 

• 

• 

Group's independent valuation expert, and 
assessed the expert's competence, capability 
and objectivity. 

Involved our subject matter experts to 
perform an independent review of 
methodology, estimates and key 
assumptions (weighted average cost of 
capital, debt equity ratio, forecast period, 
terminal growth rate) used in the valuation 
by the Company's independent valuation 
expert. 

Tested on sample basis that the tariff 
revenues considered in the respective 
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of equity, valuation models are in agreement with 
residual value, etc. TSAs/tariff orders and evaluated the 

reasonableness of cost and revenue 
Considering the judgment involved in attributes considered in forecast. 
determination of fair values due to 
inherent uncertainty and complexity of • Tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy 
the assumptions used in determination and validity of the data used in the 
of fair values, this is considered as a key calculations. 
audit matter. 

• Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures 
included in the consolidated financial 
statements 

Classification of unit holders' funds as equity (as described in Note 30 of the consolidated 
financial statements) 
The lnvlT is required to distribute to Our audit procedures included, among others the 
Unitholders not less than ninety percent following: 
of its net distributable cash flows for 
each financial year. Accordingly, a • Obtained and read the requirements for 
portion of the unitholders' funds classification of financial liability and equity 
contains a contractual obligation of the under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: 
lnvlT to pay to its Unitholders cash Presentation and evaluated the provisions of 
distributions. The Unitholders' funds SEBI Circulars for classification/presentation 
could therefore have been classified as of unit holders' funds in the financial 
compound financial instrument which statements of an Infrastructure Investment 
contains both equity and liability Trust. 
components in accordance with Ind AS 
32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. • Evaluated the disclosures included in the 
However, in accordance with SEBI consolidated financial statements for 
Circulars No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 compliance with the relevant requirements of 
dated October 20, 2016 and No. lnvlT regulations. 
CIR/IMD/DF /127 /2016 dated November 
29, 2016 ( 11 SEBI Circulars") issued under 
the lnvlT Regulations , the unitholders' 
funds have been classified as equity in 
order to comply with the mandatory 
requirements of Section H of Annexure 
A to the SEBI Circular dated October 20, 
2016 dealing with the minimum 
disclosures for key financial statements. 

Considering the judgment required for 
classification of unit holders' funds as 
equity, this is considered as a key audit 
matter. 
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Acquisition of Transmission Special Purpose Vehicles ("SPVs") classified as asset 
acquisitions (as described in Note 30 of the consolidated financial statements) 

The Group acquires operational 
transmission SPVs from the Sponsor or 
from third parties. The purchase 
consideration primarily pertains to the 
fair value of the transmission assets. All 
such assets are operational assets with 
fixed tariff revenues under the 
Transmission Services Agreements 
(TSAs) for 35 years . The only key 
activity for these SPVs is the 
maintenance of the transmission assets 
which is outsourced to third parties. 
There are very few employees in these 
entities and no other significant 
processes are performed for earning 
tariff revenues in any of the SPVs. 

Based on evaluation of the above fact 
pattern vis-a-vis the guidance on 
definition of business under Ind AS, 
including evaluation under the optional 
concentration test, and also keeping in 
view the relevant guidance on similar 
fact pattern available under accounting 
standards applicable in other 
jurisdictions, management classified the 
acquisition of transmission SPVs as 
asset acquisition. 

Considering the judgement involved in 
determining if the acquisition of 
transmission SPVs constitute business 
or asset, it is considered as a key audit 
matter. 

Our audit procedures included, among others, 
the following: 

• Read the relevant guidance under Ind AS on 
determining if the acquired SPVs constitutes 
a business. 

• Assessed the activities of the transmission 
SPVs. 

• Read and assessed the Group's accounting 
policy for recognition and classification on 
the acquisition of transmission SPVs. 

• Discussed with management the key 
assumption underlying the Group's 
assessment and tested the underlying data 
used for classification made by the Group. 

• Read and assessed the disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements for 
compliance with the relevant accounting 
standards requirement. 

Disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total 
Returns at Fair Value as per lnvlT regulations 

(as described in Note 30 of the consolidated financial statements) 

The Group is required to disclose 
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value 
and Statement of Total Returns at Fair 
Value pursuant to SEBI circulars issued 

Our audit procedures included, among others the 
following: 
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

under the lnvlT regulations which • Read the requirements of lnvlT regulations 
requires fair valuation of the assets. for disclosures relating to Statement of Net 
Such fair valuation has been carried out Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total 
by the independent valuer appointed by Returns at Fa ir Value. 
the Group. 

• Read the policy, evaluated the design and 
For the purpose of the above, fair value tested the operating effectiveness of 
is determined by forecasting and controls over assessment of fair value and 
discounting future cash flows. the assumptions used by management. 

The processes and methodologies for • Read the policy, evaluated the design and 
assessing and determining the fair value tested the operating effectiveness of 
is based on complex assumptions, that control s over preparation statement of Net 
by their nature imply the use of Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total 
management's judgment, in particular Returns at Fair Value as per lnvlT regulations 
with reference to identification of and the assumption used by management. 
forecast of future cash flows relating to 
the period covered by the respective • Obtained and read the valuation report by 
subsidiary's transmi ss ion license, debt the lnvlT's independent valuation expert, and 
equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of equity, assessed the expert's competence, capability 
residual value, etc . and objectivity. 

Considering the judgment involved in • Involved our subject matter experts to 
determination of fair values due to perform an independent review of 
inherent uncertainty and complexity of methodology, estimates and key 
the assumptions used in determination assumptions (weighted average cost of 
of fair values, this is considered as a key capital, debt equity ratio, forecast period, 
audit matter. terminal growth rate) used in the valuation 

by the Company's independent valuation 
expert. 

• Tested on sample basis that the tariff 
revenues considered in the respective 
valuation models are in agreement with 
TSAs/tariff orders and evaluated the 
reasonableness of cost and revenue 
attributes considered in forecast. 

• Tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy 
and validity of the data used in the 
calculations . 

• Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures 
included in the consolidated financial 
statements . 
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Other Information 

The management of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (the "Investment Manager") is 
responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and 
our auditor's report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after 
the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, 
consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein , 
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Management of the Investment Manager ('the Management') is responsible for the 
preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including 
other comprehensive income, consolidated cash movements and the consolidated movement 
of the unit holders' funds for the year ended March 31, 2023, the consolidated net assets at 
fair value as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated total returns at fair value of the lnvlT and 
the net distributable cash flows of the lnvlT and each of its subsidiaries in accordance with the 
requirements of the lnvlT Regulations, the Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 
2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with lnvlT 
Regulations. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements by the management, as aforesaid . 
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Investment 
Manager and the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
The Management and respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

► Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

► Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. 

► Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

► Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the 
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

► Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
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represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

► Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, 
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such 
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which 
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the lnvlT and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

The financial statements of the lnvlT for the period ended from November 1, 2021 to March 
31, 2022 included as comparative financial information in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements, have been approved by the Investment Manager's Board of Directors, but 
have not been subject to audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements; 
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(b) The Consolidated Balance Sheet and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss a re in 
agreement with the books of account; 

(c) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and/or any addendum thereto as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, to the extent not 
inconsistent with lnvlT Regulations. 

For SR BC & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 v~ ~c&,,,, 
per Amit Singh .r:.-l~ z,_, ~\ 
Partner ~ 1 ~, \i 
Membership Number: 408869 ~ =;. It; ,.I 
UDIN: 23408869BGXKKU8210 \~\~ ._ .,.<_~'~/ 
Place of Signature: Pune •·. '•") r,,•c•~°:'>-,,:/ ,,~~ 
Date: May 25, 2023 



Antcn fndlJ Energy Yield Plu.s T,un 
Consolldo1ted Statement of Profit .Jnd Lou for the year ended March 31, 20Z3 

All ilmounts In RupC!e.s mllllon unless otherwise sllted 

P,uticulars 

INCOME 

Revcm,e from conrra:t •,v1th c,ntomen 
lnco:ne from 1nve;.tmont 1n mutu;1I fund 
lnierut me:omi, on ln\•cn mcnt ,n fi(ed deao~i~ 

Other ,nc.ome 
T01.1I Income 

EKPENSES 
OP!r.:1tt.)n ind m.11lnl.C!l.1nte e•pen-.~ 
Employu bonef1t e,cpc-.,,se 

Oearttia1;on ~,oense 
F,n.,ncc coiu 
lnYCitment mo1naeemtnt fees (refer Nole 19) 

ProJttt ffl31't-.l 81!fflOnt fee:. rr-e-fe:r Nott' 19) 

lr.:t:rJr.:ecxFcn~~ 
tcr.-,t .tnd :.rofeuror::.l leru 
Annual h~ur-e ftt 

Ruing fee 
Valuuloo e,,ptn~s 
Trus:cc fee 

Pavrnent :e aud ltcu 

• Statutory .iud1: teu 
• Otht'r ~et'tkes (fncludinc ct-nmcJtlons) 

Olhcr t.Jlptl\SU 

Tot:1l ,xpcnsc$ 

Los.i: before ta• 

T11x eapcm:c: 
(lJ Curren1 tu: 

(2) Otfctred 1-,i. 

Lon '°' 1he yu r/pc,iod (Aj 

Other Comp1chcnsivc, Income 

llcm~ : l\~t will not tH! rtdlSJ1flrd to pral1t o, Ion 1n wosequc.nt FCt1cd1 
ltcrr::. :h;: t::!I te :-.:dukn11J 10 i,1uf1l u, lo,-l ,n >0b,e-qu~n1 penOO, 
ro1;11 other comp,ch11111ive l~tome for 1hc ve:,rJF:crlod, ne1 of 11 , {SJ 

rot.ii comp,theniiv«! Income to, 1hc yt:>r/pC!rlou. net of 1;:,x (A•8J 

lo,s le, th " year/~trfod 
Amlb1Jt1blc to : 

Unit t:oldcrs 

Non• Coniroltinr lnterCl t 

Tot.11 compr,hcnsivo Income for the yur/pcrlod: 

,\tmbut;ib~ to ; 

Unlthofdcu 

Non-Con1roll/ng lrucrttt 

E.1rnln1r5 per unit (RJ. per unltJ 
~sfc and diluted 

Summary of sli:nlficont 1ccounlln1 pollcil!:l 

The •cc;ompanyine noles are an intogral part of the consolldated fln3nclal SQtt'menu. 

As per our report of even date 

For SR BC&CO UP 

Ch1rtered Acccunt.:ints f\ Real":J._No: 32<9BZE/E300003 

pt:::.gh}A/ 
Partner 
Membership Number : 408869 
Plaee : Pune 
Oat• : May 25, 2023 

For the period from 

Nares 
Ve;,r ended November 01, 20U 

Marth 31, 20Z3 to Milrch 31, ::Z:OZZ 
(Reier Note 3SI 

(161 936.'9 
5137 
B.62 
z.sz 

999.Z0 

30.60 

(171 6.79 

(31 770.13 

(18) 439.20 

24.18 
10.53 

zo 87 
35.S9 

2,62 

2.66 
0 90 
0,64 

3.73 
0.02 

11'1 7.82 

1.356.U 

(357.081 

(Z61 (37.841 
(26) 

(319.24) 

10.011 

10.011 

@19,251 

(l19,ZdJ 

(319,ZSI 

1281 
(5,231 

For and C111 behatf of the l!loud af Olre<ton of 

Edelweiss RHI Assets ManagC!rS Umlted 

(As Investment M1r1ager to Anzen lndii> Eitcrcv vl,ld Pfu1. Trust) ~> ~ 
CIO & Whole~tlmc Director 

OIN No, : 09609160 

.gil~._ut:>---, 
~;,;~rekh 

Comp1ny Secretary 
Membership Numbu : A44S07 

Pl.tte : Mumbai 
D.ltc : May 2S, 2023 

Valbhn Doshi 

Olief Finandal Officer 



Anzen India Energy Vleld Plus Trust 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 
All amounts in Rupees mllnon unless otherwise stated 

Asat 
Asat 

Particulars Notes 
March 31, 2023 

March 31, 2022 
IReler Note 351 

ASSETS 

(11 Non-current assets 
(al Property, plant and equipment (3) 20,976.72 

(ii Other financial assets (4) 7.37 

(bl Income tax assets (net) 24.36 
Total non•current assets 21.008.4S 

(2) Current assets 
(al Financial assets 

(i) Investments (5) 1,306.42 
(ii) Trade receivables (7) 12.03 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents (8A) 65.35 

(ivl Bank balances other than disclosed in note 8A above (88) 176.24 
(v) Other financial assets (4) 656.62 

(b) Other current assets (6) 31.13 

Total current assets 2,247.79 

Total assets 23,2S6.24 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 
(a) Unit capital (9) 15,624.79 
(b) Other equity (10) (515.19) 
Total equity 15,109.60 

LIABILITIES 
(1) Non-current liabilities 

(a) Financial llabllltles 
(I) Borrowings (11) 7,416.24 

(b) Provisions (12) 1.89 
Total non-current liabilities 7,418.13 

(2) Current liabilities 
(a) Financial llab111tles 

(i) Trade payables (13) 

(al total outstanding dues of micro and .small enterprises 4.72 
(bl total outstanding dues of creditors other than r'llicro enterprises 

58 42 
and small enterprises 

(iii Other financial liabilities (14) 632.99 

(b) Other curre~t liabilities (15) 31.75 
(c) Provisions (12) 0.63 

Total current liabilities 728.51 

Total equity and liabilities 23,256.24 

Summary of significant account ing policies 2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial s1atements. 

As per our report of even date 

Fors RB C&CO LLP 

/'~ 
p Amit Singh 

Partner 
Membe,shlp Number : 408869 
Place : Pune 
Date : May 25, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited 
(As Investment Manager to Amen India Energy Yield Plus Trust) 

Ran]lt.1 Deo 
CID & Whol<>-tlme Director 
DIN No.: 09609160 

~~ 
Jalpa Parekh 
Company Secretary 
Membership Number : A44507 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : May 25, 2023 

~~ 
Vaibhav Dlishl 
Chief Financial Officer 

. 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

All amounts in Rupees million unless othezwise stated 

Particulars 

Cash flow from operating activities 

Loss before tai,: 
Ailjll$tments to ~condk! foss before tax .to net rash flow:s: 

Deprec;ation eY.penses 
tnterest!ncome on lnwstmentin fixed deposits 

income from.investment1n mutual fofld 
Finance cost> 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Working caph:,~t adjustment 
tfncrease} / Decrease in other assets 
{Increase}/ Decrease ln othe, finatic-al assets 
{!ncrease}/~ciease in tradetecelval:iles 
Increase/ {Decrease} in trade payab!es. 
ln<:r~ase / (Decrease} in prowsions 
Increase / {Decrease} m other liabilities 
lnc,ease / (Deuease)lr) otherfinanclal H.il;lllities 

Cash flow generated from operations 
Direct taxes paid (net r.:f r.efuiidsj 

Net cash flow from operating activities [AJ 

Cash flow from investint .activities 

Acquisition of property, plani; and equipment# 
Acquisition of oth>?.r asser-.s ( net of other !!abi!lties)!t 

lmiestment irrfixed deposits 
Proettds from maturity of fixed (fopcslts 
im,estment in mutuai funds 
Proceed'!i &cm sale of invertment In mutual funds 
lnteri!St inccrr& on lnves,mcnt in focetl d~pcsits 

Net ca~hfiow used ,n investing acth1ities f BJ 

Cash flow from financing activities 
Procee<l.s from issoe oi Unit t.af}tta!· 
Payment of unit issue e.xpenses 
Proceeds from non convertible debentures.(seeured} 
Hepa•1ment of !'lon corwertil:J!e debent..:res t~ei:ured) 
t.,.:quisltion of borrowings# 
payment of dlstributi(ms to unit h~lders 
Paymentofintereston NCO 
?ayr.Hmt of upfront fees for NCO 

Net cash flow from finandng activi~ [CJ 

Net increase/ (decrease} in cash and cash equivatents fA+s+q 

cash and cash equiva!.ents at the begkm1ng of the year {refer Note 8Ai 

Cash and cash equivalents on acquisition 
<:ash and cash equivalents a, the.em! of the ·;ear {refer Note SA} 

For the period from 

Year ended November 01, 2021 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 35) 

(357.08) 

770.13 

(8.62) -
(51.37) -

439.20 -
792.26 . 

(10.17) . 
(313.68) -

1,407.59 -
32.19 

(0.16) . 
29.35 -

{994.78) 

942.60 -
(60.89) ~ 

881.71 -

(13,446.85) -
(1,811.45) . 
(9,426.33) 
10,424.36 
(8,693.97) 

8,006.51 
8.46 -

' (14,939.27) { -' ·--·---·· ! 

7,500.00 -
(175.21) 

7,500.00 

(12,294.00) 

12,160.67 

f19SiS2} 
(296..33} 

(91.63} 

14.107.58 -

50.02 ~ 

- . 
15.33 -
65.35 

•Trust has purchased for 16.30 million and 9.83 million equity shares issued by Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS 
XXXl(B) Transmission Limited ('NRSS') in exchange of issue if its 83.00 million units. The same has not been reflected in cash flow being a non- cash 

transaction. 

# Pertains to projects acquired during the year viz. DMTCL and NRSS- Refer Note 32 

Components of cash and cash equivafents: 
Asat 

March 31, 2023 

Balances with banks : 
- On current accounts 65.35 
~ Deposit with original matutitv of less than 3 months 
Total cash arn;i i;ash equfvafents {refer note 8A} 65.35 



Anzen India Eneri:v Yield Plus Trust 
Consolldated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 
All amounts In Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

ii" • b Aeconc 1ation . 1· · ctwccn opening and closinl? bi)lanccs or lmb lilies arising rom 

Particulars 

Opening total borrowings !Including interest accrued but not due) 
C.shflow 
- Interest paid 
• Proceeds/(repayments) 
Interest accrued 

Others (ancillary borrowine cost) 
ClosinR tota l borrowin1ts (including interest accrued but not d ue) 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

As per our report of even date 

ForSRBC&COUP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registv2E/E300003 

~ ' 
Partner 
Membership Number : 408869 
Place: Pune 
Date : May 25, 2023 

nanclnr, activitie s inc u ln1t current maturiti I' I d · es) 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

(296.33) 
7,500.00 

298.00 
(83.76) 

7 ,417.91 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers limited 
(As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trus 

~ ~~~ 
A~ Valbhav Doshi 

CIC & Whole-time Director Chief Financial Officer 
DIN No. : 09609160 

~OJ.,LJ:.L 
~ 
Jalpa Parekh 
Company Secretary 
Membership Number : M4507 

Place : Mumbai 

Date: May 25, 2023 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unit holders' Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 

All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

A. Unit capital 

Particulars 
No. of units In 

Amount 
million 

As at November 01, 2021 (Refer Note 35) 

Units issued during the year (refer note 8) 

As at March 31, 2022 -
Units issued during the year [refer note 9(a)) 158.00 15,800.00 

Less: Issue expenses (refer note 9(bl] (175.21) 

As at March 31, 2023 158.00 15,624.79 

e. Other equity 

Reserves and 
Other 

Surplus 
comprehensive 

Particulars income 

Retained Earnings 
Actuarial gain/(ioss) 

on defined liabllltles 

As at November 01, 2021 (Refer Note 35) 

Profit for the period -
Other comprehensive income for the period -
As at March 31, 2022 -
Loss for the year (319.26) 

Other comprehensive income for the year (0.01) 

Less: Distribution during the year (195.92} 

As at March 31, 2023 (515.18) (0.01) 

Note: 

Total 

-

(319.26) 

(0.01) 
(195.92} 

(515.19) 

The distribution during the year does not include the distribution relating to last quarter of FY 2022-23 which will be paid after 

March 31, 2023. 

The distributions made by Anzen to its unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) of Anzen under the lnvlT 

Regulations and hence part of the same includes repayment of capital as well. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For S R B C & CO UP 

Chartered Accountants 

~;;<98>~E30000l 
per Amit Singh 

Partner 

Membership Number: 408869 

Place: Pune 

Date : May 25, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers limited 

(As Investment Manager to Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust) 

~ 
Ranjffil Dec 

CIO & Whole-time Director 

DIN No. : 09609160 

8b-~cJ--, 
Jalpa Parekh 

Company Secretary 

Membership Number: A44507 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : May 25, 2023 

\__~ 
Vaibhav D;;-shi , 

Chief Financial Officer 



Anzen India En orgy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to consolldated flnandal statements for the year ended March 31. 2023 

Dlsdosures Pursuant To SEBI Orwlars 

(SEDI Grcular No. CIR/IMO/OF/114/2016 dated October 20, 2016 and No. CIR/IMO/DF/127/2016 dated No vember 29, 2016 lmied under the lnvlT Regulations ) 

A, Statement of Net A,sets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2023 (refer note 2 below) 
(Rs In million) 

Particulars Book Value Fair Value 

A. Assets B .256.24 24,840.40 

B. Uabllitles (at book value) 8,146.64 8,146.64 

C. Net Asset Value (A-0) 15,109.60 16,693.76 

0. Number of units 158.00 158.00 

E. NAV(C/0) 95.63 105.66 

Notes: 
. ProJcct wise break up of Fair value of Assets a.s at March J 1, 202:3 !Rs. In mllllon) 

Particulars Fair Value 
Oarbhanga • Motihar, Transmission Company Limited r oMTCL11

) ll,849.80 

NRSS XXXI (Bl Transmission Limited (" NRSS") 10,337.42 

Sub total 24,187.22 

fnvff Assets 653.18 

Total Assets 24,840.40 

2. Fair \/illues of tot.>I assets (includin~ project wise break up for DMTCL and NRSS o f fair value of total assets} as at March 31, 2023 a.s disdose:d above 

are based solely on the fair valuation re port dated May 23, 2023 of the independe nt valuer appointed by the Investment manaQer under the lnvlT 

Regulat ions. 

B. Statement of Total Return at Fair Value {refer note 1 below) 

(Rs In mllllon) 

Part1culars Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Toal Comprchens:lve Income ias per the State ment of Profit and Lou) (319.25) 
Add/(less): Other Changes in Fair Value (e.g., In Investme nt property, property, plant & 

equipment {if cost model is followed)) not recoanized In Total Comprehensive Income (refer 1,584.16 

note 1 belowl 

Total Return 1,264-91 

Notes: 
1. Fair v.,lue of asseu as at March 31, 2023 and other Chilnges In fair v.»lue for the ye.:ir then ended as disdosed In the above ta.bles u e based on fair 

valuation report is.sued by the Independent valuer appointed under the lnvlT regulations. 

2. Sensitivity analysis with respect to sicnific..1nt unobserv:rble Inputs used In the fair value mtasurement has been dlstlased in Note 23. 

As per our report or even date 

Fors R BC& co LLP 

Partn~r 
Membership Number: 408869 

Place : Pune 

Date : Moy 25, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Edelwelss Real A>sets Managors Umlted 

(As Investment Manager to An1en India Energy Yield Plus Trust) 

CID & Whole-lime Dl<ector 

DIN No. : 09609160 

<\"POJ-0-c1__ 
Ja"iiii,a,cldl -
Company Se cretary 

Membl!!rShip Number: A44507 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : Moy 25, 1023 

~ ~~ 
Yalbhav Doshi 

Chier Financia l Officer 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBr Circulars 

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated October 20, 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 2016 issued 

under the lnvlT Regulations} 

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY PARAGRAPH 6 OF ANNEXURE A TO THE SEBI CIRCULAR NO. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 

A) Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

{Rs. in Minion) 

Description Year ended 

March 31., 2023 

Inflow from Project SPV Distributions 

Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of interest/ accrued interest/ additional interest 712.87 

Add: Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of dividend -
Add: Cash flows from the SPVs towards the repayment of the debt provided to the SPVs by the Anzen Trust 626.00 

and/ or redemption of debentures issued by SPVs to the Anzen Trust 

Add: Cash flows from the SPVs through capital reduction by way of a buy back or any other means as -
permitted, subject to applicable law 

Inflow from Investments/ Assets -
Add: Cash flows from sale of equity shares or any other investments in SPVs adjusted for amounts reinvested -
or planned to be reinvested 

Add: Cash flows from the sale of the SPVs not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to reinvest, or if such -
proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently 

Inflow from Liabilities -
Add: Cash flows from additional borrowings {including debentures/ other securities), fresh issuance of units, 15,000.00 

etc. 

Other Inflows -
Add: Any other income accruing at the Anzen Trust and not captured above, as deemed necessary by the 35.09 

Investment Manager, including but not limited to interest/ return on surplus cash invested by the Anzen 

TnJ.st 

Total cash inflow at the Anzen Trust level (A) 16,.373.96 

Outflow for Anzen Trust Expenses/ Ta>Ces 

Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expenses incurred at the Anzen Trust, including but not limited to (438.76) 

the fees of the Investment Manager, Project Manager, Trustee, Auditor, Valuer, Credit Rating Agency, etc. 

Less: Income tax (if applicable) for standalone Anzen Trust and/ or payment of other statutory dues {15.05) 

Outflow for Liabilities ~ 

less: Repayment of third-party debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, etc., net of 

any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt 

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance, etc. (155.00) 

Outflow for Assets -
Less: Amount invested in any of the SPVs (15,071.00) 

Less: Amounts set aside to be invest~d or planned to be invested, as deemed necessary by the Investment -
Manager in compliance with the lnvlT Regulations 

Less: Investments including acquisition of other SPVs 

Other Outflows -
Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses which may be (102.47) 

due in future 

Add I Less: Amounts added/ retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the loan agreements ~ 

in relation to the Anzen Trust 

Less: Any other expense of the Anzen Trust not captured herein as deemed necessary by the Investment -
Manager 

Add/ less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double counting -
of the same item for the above calculations 

Total cash outflow/retention at the Anzen Trust level (8) (15,782.28} 

Net Distributable Cash Flows {C} = (A+B} 591.68 

* Rs 195.92 million distribution has been made during the year. 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated October 20, 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 2016 issued 

under the lnvlT Regulations) 

B) Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) of underlying SPVs 

i) Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited ('DMTCL'} 

Description 

Profit after tax as per profit and loss account (standalone) {A) 

Reversal of Distributions charged to P&L 

Add: Interest (including interest on unpaid interest, if any) on loans availed from/ debentures issued to the 

Anzen Trust, as per profit and loss account 

Adjustment of Non-cash items 

Add: Depreciation, impairment (in case of impairment reversal, same will be deducted) and amortisation as 
per profit and loss account. 

Add/ less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non-cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items), 
including but not limited to 

• Any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on 

measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value; 

• Interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

• Deferred tax, lease rents, provisions, etc. 

Adjustments for Assets on Balance Sheet 
Add/ less: Decrease/ increase in working capital 

Add I less: Loss/ gain on sale of assets/ investments 

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of assets / investments adjusted for proceeds 

r~irwested or planned to be reinvested. 

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes} from sale of assets/ investments not distributed pursuant to an 

earlier plan to reinvest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently. 

less: Capital expenditure, if any. 

Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any .. 

Adjustments for Liabilities on Balance Sheet 

less; Repayment of third-party debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc., net of 

any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt. 

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance, etc. 

Add: Proceed~ from additional borrowings (including debentures/ other securities), fresh issuance of equity 

shares/ preference shares, etc. 

Less: Payment of any other liabilities (not covered under working capital} 

Other Adjustments 

Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager.for expenses/ liabilities which 

may be due in future. 

Add / less: Amounts added or retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the loan 

agreements in relation to the SPVs. 

Add I less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double counting 

of the same item for the above calculations. 

Add: Such portion of the existing cash balance available, if any, as deemed necessary by the investment 

Manager in line with the lnvrT Regulations. 

Total Adjustments (B) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows {C} :::{A+B) 

During the period, amount being at least 90¾ has already been distributed to Anzen. 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

(248.70} 

391.94 

246.96 

(8.81) 

73.58 
3.50 

388.98 

(8.52) 

(7.02) 

(385.33) 

695.28 
446.58 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated October 20, 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 2016 issued 

under the Inv IT Regulations) 

ii) NRSS XXXl{B) Transmission Limited ('NRSS') 

Description 

Profit after tax as per profit and loss account {standalone} (A) 

Reversal of Distributions charged to P&L 

Ac:fd: Interest (including interest on unpaid interest, if any) on loans availed from/ debentures issued to the 

Anzen Trust, as per profit and loss account 

Adjustment of Non-cash items 

Add; Depreciation, impairment (in case of impairment reversal, same will be deducted) and amortisation as 

per profit and loss account. 

Add/ less: Any other item of non-cash expense / non-cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items}, 

including but not limited to 

• Any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a llability recognised in profit and loss account on 

measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value; 

• Interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

• Deferred tax, lease rents, provisions, etc. 

Adjustments for Assets on Balance Sheet 
Add/ less: Decrease/ increase in working capital 

Add/ less: Loss/ gain on sale of assets/ investments 

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of assets / investments adjusted for proceeds 

reinvested or planned to be reinvested. 

Add: Net proceeds {after applicable taxes} from sale of assets/ investments not distributed pursuant to an 

earlier plan to reinvest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently. 

less: Capital expenditure, if any .. 

Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any. 

Adjustments for Liabilities on Balance Sheet 

Less: Repayment of third-party debt {principal) / redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc., net of 

any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt. 

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance, etc. 

Add: Proceeds from additional borrowings {including debentures/ other securities), fresh issuance of equity 

shares/ preference shares, etc. 

Le:,:,: Payment of any other liabilities (not covered under working capital) 

Other Adjustments 

Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses/ liabilities which 

may be due in future. 

Add I less: Amounts added or retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the loan 

agreements in relation to the SPVs. 

Add/ less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double counting 

of the same item for the above calculations. 

Add:. Such portion of the existing cash balance available, if any, as deemed necessary by the Investment 

Manager in line with the lnvlT Regulations. 

Total Adjustments (B) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C} = (A+S} 

During the P€riod, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to Anzen. 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

(167.36) 

287.47 

140.08 

(3.36) 

58.50 

1.06 

199.07 

(6.35) 

{196J53) 

479.84 

312.48 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 
Notes to consolidated financial statement,s for the year ended March 31, 2023 
Ali amounts 111 Rupees million unless othe1Wi5e stated 

1. Group information 
The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust ("the Trust" or "Anzen") and its subsidiaries ( collectively, the Group).Anzen is an 
Irrevocable trust settled by Sekura Energy Private Limited{the "Sponsor") on No~ember 01, 2021 pursuant to the Trust Deed under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and registered 
with Securities Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") under the SESI (Infrastructure Investment Trust} Regulations, 2014 as an Infrastructure Investment Trust on January 18, 2022 having 
registration number fN/lnvlT/21-22/0020., The Trustee oF Arllen is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the "Trustee"). Tne Investment manager for Anten is Edelweiss Real Assets Managers limited 
(the "Investment Manager" or the "Management"), The objectives of Anzen are to undertake activities as an infrastructure investment trust in accordance with the provisions of the lnvlT 
Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of Anzen is to own and invest in power transmission assets and renewable energy assets in India with the objective of producing stable 
and sustainable distributions to unitholders, • 

As at March 31, 2.023, Anzen ha~ following project entities ("Specfal Purpose Vehich:,s" or "SPVs") which are transmissfon infrastructure projects developed on Build, Own. Operate and 
Maintain ('BOOM') basis:. 
{a} Darbhanga • Motihari Transmission Companv Limited ["DMTCL") 
(b} NRSS XXXI (Bl Transmission Limited ("NRSS"} 
These SPVs have esecutcd Transmission Services Agreements ("TSAs") with Long term transmission customers under which the SPVs have to maintain the transmission infrastructure for 35 
years post commissioning, 

The address of the registered office of the Investment Manag-er is Plot 294/3, Edelweiss House, off CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz• East. Mumbai 400098. Maharashtra. India, 
The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution of Board of Directors of the lnvestmP.nt Mam1eer on May 25, 1013 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION, MEASUREMENT.AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIOES 
Z.l Basis of preparation of financial statements 

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and the Consofidated Statement of Changes in Unit Holders' Equity for the year t~en ended and the Consolidated Statement 
of Net Assets at fafr value as at March 31, 2023 and the Consolidated Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows ('NDCFs') of the Trust, the 
underlying holding company ("HoldCo") and each of its subsidiaries for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(l)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015(as amended), prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 {"Ind AS") read with SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Tru~ts) Regulations,· 2014, as amended and the drculars issued thereunder {*lnvlT Regulations"), The consolidated 
financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for the followtng assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value: 
• Derivative financial instruments 
• Certain financial assets measured at fair value (e.g,. Liquid mutual funds} 
The consolidated finandal statements are presented in Indian Rupees Million, except when otherwise indicated, 

As per regulat!On 20 of INVlf regulations 2014, the Group is eligibie fora total debt (net of cash and cash equivalents) of70% to AUM, As at March 31, 2023, the total debt (net of cash and cash 
equivalents) to AUM is within the prescribed limits,. 

Basis of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Trust and its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2023, Controf is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to 
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if 
the Group has 
• Power over the investee (i,e, existing nghts tha~give it the current abilit'I to direct tne rel-evant activities of the investee 

• Exposure, or rights, to variabfe returns from ,ts inYolvement •t.ith the investee, and 
• The .ibility to use ,ts power over the investee to affect its return,-
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control, To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting 
or similar rights oF an investee, the Group considers all relevant fac-..s and circumstances in assl!.,.ing whether it has power over an investee, includin~ 

• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee 
• Rigl--:ts :1rrsing from ether ,ontractuaJ arrangemenl$ 

• The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights 

·• The size of the Gr~up's holding of voting rights relative to tne size and dispersion of the holdings of .the other voting rights holders 

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of controt Consolidation of a 
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary, Assets. liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary 
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolldated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary, 

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for rike transactions and other events in similar circumstances, If a member of the group uses accounting 
policies other than those adnpti>d in thP r,:,n$olidated finam::ial stiltaments for like transactions ;:ind events in similar circumstences. appropriate adjustm<!nts au, 111.ue Lu Lhal i,:1uuµ member's 
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the group's accounting policies, 

The financial statements of arr entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent, i.e,., period endecl on March 31. 

Consolidation procedure: 

(a) Combine like items of assets. liabilities. equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. l'or this purpose, income and e~penses of the subsidiary ;,re 
based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial stateme{lts at the acquisition date. 

(bl Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary. 

{c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flaws relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup 
transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in fuH), 

lntragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements.. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the 
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transaction:.. 

Profrt or lass and each component of other comprehensive iricome (OCI) are attributed to the unit holders of the Trust and to the non controlling interests (if anv), even if this results in the non­
controlling interests having a deiteit balance, When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial stat~ments of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's 
acco~nting palicies, All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, Ir.come, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eriminatec! in fuR an 
con:solidation, 

A chang11 in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a lass of control, is accounted ior as an equity transaction, If the Group loses control over a. subsidiary, it: 

• r'lP.re~ngni<P.stne assets (including goodwill) and liabilitic= of the subsidiary 
• Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests 
• Derecognises the cumulati~e translation differences recorded in equity 
• Recognises tile fair value of the consideration received 
• Recognises the fair value of any investment retained 
• Recognises anv surplus or deficit in profit or loss 
• Reclassifies the parent's. share of components previously r«ognised in CCI tc, profit or !oss or retained earnings, as appropria,e. as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of 
the related assets or liabiHties, · 



Amen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

2.2 Summary of signmcant accounting policies 
The following is the summary of significant accounting policies applied by the Group in preparing its Consolidated finandal statements: 

a) Acquisition of Transmission SPVs classified as asset acquisitions 
The Group acquires operational transmission and Solar Project SPVs from the Sponsor or from third party, The purchase ::onsideratioFl primarily pertains to the fair value of the transmission 
assets. All such assets are operational assets with fixed tariff revenues under the Transmission Services Agreements (TSAs) for 35 years, The only key activity for these SPVs is the maintenance 

· of the transmission assets which is outsourced to third parties and partially done in· house, There are few employees in these entities and no other significant processes are performed for 
earning tariff revenues. 

Based on evaluation of the above fact pattern vis-a-vis the guidance on definition of business under I C\d AS and also keeping in vie,v the relevant guidance on similar fact pattern available 
under accounting standards applicable in other jurisdictions, the management has classified the acquisition of transmission SPVs as asset acquisition., 

b) Current versus non-current classification 
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 
• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting year, or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a l1ab1htv tor at least twelve months after the reporting year 
All other assets are classified as non-rurrent. 

A liabifity is current when: · 
• It is expected to be settfed in normal operating cvcle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Jt is due to be settled within twelve months a~er the reporting year, or 
• There is no unconditional righl to defer the settlement of the liability for at least t,11el11e months after the reporting jlear 
The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterpart'/, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 
The Group classifies aD other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for proce55ing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents, The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

c) Foreign cu,rencies 
The Group's Consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is ,ts functional currency, The Group does not have any foreien operation, 

Transactions and balances 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entities at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for reco~nition 
Monetary assets and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date, 

Differences arising on settlement er translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms cf historical ccst in a foreign currency are translated using the ~xchan~e rates at the date; of the initial transactions 

d) Fair value measurement 

The Group measures financial instn.iments such as mutual funds at f.:Jir value at each balance sheet date, 

Fair value is the crice that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transier a liabilitV in an orderly transaction betwcer, m3rkct participants at the measurement date, The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or cransferthe liability takes place either: 
In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
In the absence of a principal market, in the most adwantageous market for the asset orliabmty, 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group, 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liabmty, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest.. 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to 
another market participant that would use the asset in its hiehP<;t .>nd best use · 
The Group uses varuation technique~ that are appropricte in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. · 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclcsed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based en the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
Levell· Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; 
level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable .. 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re­
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
In estimating the fair value of transmission assets/projects, the Group engages independent qualified external varuers to perform the valuation, The management works closely with 
the external valuers to establish the app,-opriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The management in conjunction with the external valuers also compares the change in fair 
value with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable, The management reports the valuation report and findings to the Board of the Investment Manager 
annually to explain the cause offiuctuations in the fair value of the transmission projects. 

At each reporting date, the management anatyses the movement of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured er reassessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this 
analysis, the management verifies the major inputs a pp lied in the latest valuation by agreeing the infonnation in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 

The management also compares-the €hange in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable, 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabir.ty and the level of the 
fair value hierarchy, as explained above, · 

This note summarises accounting poiicy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes. 
• Di,closures of Statement of Net Assets at fair value and Statement ofTotal Returns at fair value 
• Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 23) 

• investment In quoted mutual fund (note S) 
• Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 24) 

e) Revenue from contracts with customer 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group 
expects to be entitled in e~change for those goods or services, The Group has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before 
transferring them to the customer, 
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Power transmission services 
Revenue from contractS with customers comprises of revenue from power transmission services rendered in India to Long. Term Transmission Customers (LTTCs) pursuant to the respective 
Transmission Services Agreements (TSAs) executed by the Group with LTTCS for years of 35 years, The Group is required to ensure that the transmission assets meet the minimum availability 
criteria under the respective TSAs, The Group's performance obligation vide the TSAs is to provide power transmission services. The performance obligation is satisfied over time as the 
customers receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs,, Accordingly, the revenue from power transmission services is recognised over time 
based on the transmission asset availabilities and the tariff charges approved under the respective CERC tariff orders and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the accounting 
year. The ~vment is generally due within 60 days, 

Operation and maintenance service 
Revenue from operation and maintenance contracts are recognised pro-rata over the year of the contract as and when services are rendered 

Contract balances 
A receillable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i,e, only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due), Amounts 

which have been billed to the customers are disclosed as trade receivables and amounts which are to be bilred to the customers (and not conditional on the group's future performance) are 
disclosed under "Other financial assets'". Refer accounting policies for financial assets in Financial instruments• initial recognition and subsequent measurement 

Interest income 

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. 

Dividend 
Income from dividend on investments is accrued in the year in which generally it is approved by the shareholders, whereby the Group's right to receive is established, 

f) Taices 

Current income tax 
Curren:t income tax assets and fiabilities are meawrec1 at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities, The tax rates and tax iaws used to compute trieamount are 
those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date .. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current 
tax items a.re recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCJ or directly in equity., 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax return.s with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions 
where appropriate. 

Deferred tax 
°'-!ferred tax is provided using tM liability method on temporary difforences between the ta;; bases of assets and liabilities and their carr,,.ing amounts for iin<>ncial repotting purposes at the 
reporting date, 
Deferred tax liabifities are recognised for aJI taxable temporary differences, except: 
• When the deferred-tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affeas neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; 
• In respect of taxable tempcrary differences associated with in'1estments in subsidiaries, as.sociates ar,d interests in joint ventures, when the timing of rhe reversal of the temporary 
differences can be controllad and it is probabre that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for an dedu~tible temporary differences, the carry fon.uard of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences. ar.d the carry forward of unused tax credit. or.d unused 1.,, lesses canoe utilised, except: 
• When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at 
the time of the transactron, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; 
• In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments irt subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint verttures, deferred tax assets are recognised onlv to the extent 
that it is probable that the temporary difference~ will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be availabre against which the temµorary differences can be utilised 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting c!ateand reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to al!ow all or 
part of the deforred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future 
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 

have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

~ferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside ·statement of profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred t.tx liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same 
taxabre group and the s:ame taxation authority-, 

Sales/varue added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses 

Expenses and assets are recognised n~t of the amount of sales/value added taxes paid, except: 
• When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised 
as part of the cost of acqu'isition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable 
• When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included 

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet 

g) Property, plant and equipment 
Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any, Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
Impairment losses, if any. ·such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. 

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervafs, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major 
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied, All ether repair and maintenance 

costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. No decommissioning liabilities are expected or be incurred on the assets of plant a nl equipment. 

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capita~sed as part of the construction costs to the extent the 
expenditure can be attributable to construction activif'i or is incidental there to. Income earned during the construction period is deducted from the total oi the indirect expenditure., 

~tm>d;tliotds <:ealn.lll w em .•l'llt.1 b/1<;$ oo ;i wrim,11 d<l-Wfl value. Freehold land is not depreciated. The Group is providing depreciation at the following useful life: 
Asset dass Useful..lll1es. 
Plant and eauipment 5 -35 years 
Office eQuipments 5. 7 years 

. furniture and fixtures 10 years 

ters 3 ears 
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The Group, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain items of plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are 
different from the useM life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 which is applicable to the subsidiary companies, The management believes that these estimated useful lives 
are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the year over which the assets are likely to be used. 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of 
profit or loss when the asset is derecogoised, · 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciatfon of property, plant and equipment are revie-.ved at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate, 

1'} • Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial year of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 
c.>pitalised as part of the cost of the asset.. All other borrowing costs·are expensed in the year in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in 
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

It Impairment of non current finandat assets 
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, 
the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount,. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in 
use. Recoverable amount is determi11ed for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely indeperident of those from other assets or groups of assets. 
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds it:. recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate 
valuation model is used, These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair 
value indicators. 

The Group bases its impairment calculations cin detailed budget and Forecast calculations, These budgets are prepared for the entire project life. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss,. 
An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indicatfon that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.. If such indication 
exists, the Group estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change In the assumptions used to determine 
the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised, The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recovcr.-iblc amount, nor 
exceed the carryir,g amou·nt that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years, Such reversal is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 
In determining fair value measurement, the imp.:ct of potential climate-related matters, including legislation, whii:h may affect the fair value measurement of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements has been considered. These risks in respect of climate-related matters are included as key assumptions where they materially impact the measure of recoverable amount. 
These assumptions have been included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value-in-use amounts., 
At present, the impact cf climate-related matters is not material ta the Group's financial statements, 

j) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be re(luired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount cf the obligation" 
When the Group e~pects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance ccntract, tl-.e reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. but only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to a provision is presented in -the state·ment cf profit or loss net of any reimbursement .. 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are d&ounted usine;; current pre·-tax rate th.it reflects, wl1en 3ppropriale, the risks specific ta the liability. When discounting is 
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost, 

Contingent liability is disclosed for, (i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Group, or (ii) Present obligations arising from past 
events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements, 

kl Retirement and other employee beneflt.'l 
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme, The Group has no oblig.ation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group 
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense. when an employee renders the related service, If the contr,btJtion payable to the scheme for se:rvice received 
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a Nability after deducting the contribution already paid, If the 
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead 
to, for exa.mple, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund 

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit fiability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through CCI in the year in 
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsectuent years, 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an 
expense int~ Consolidated statement of profit and loss: 
• Ser;ke costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settfern<ents; and 
• Net interest expense or income 

Accumulated leave, which is expected.to be utiized within the next 12 months, is treated as short:term employee benefit, The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as th<? 
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Group ,ecogniZes expected cost of short-term employee benefit 
as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. 

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long•terrn employee benefit for measurement purposes, Such long-term compensat~ absences 
are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss 
.i"'4iilf<!!-tiOtde:fo~. . 

The group operates defined benefit gratuity plan in india, 

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and pest-employment benefits received Presidential assent on 28 September 2020. The Code has 
been published in the Gazette of India. While section 142 of the Code pertaining to mandatorily registering Aadhar by beneficiaries has come into force on 03 May 2021, however, the date on 
which the entire Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued,. The Group will assess the impact of the Cede when it comes into 
effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective. 
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I) Financial instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a finandal liabi&ty or equity instrument of another entity, 

Financial assets 
· Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the ease of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular 

way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits tc purchase er sell the asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
L Debt instruments at amortised cost 

ii, Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

iii. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (MPL) 
iv. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 
A 'financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost 1f both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for co~ecting contractual cash flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR) method, Amortised cost is calculated by taking intc account 

any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. Tne losses 

arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial assets at fair value through OCl·(FVTOCl) (debt instruments) 

A 'financial asset' is classified as the FVTOCJ if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both b-/ collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and 
bl The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 
Debt instruments induded within the MOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive 

income !OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit or less. On derecognition of the 

asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is ,eclassified from the equity to statement of profit or loss. Interest earned whilst holding MOO debt instrument is reported as 

interest income using the EIR method, 

_Financial assets designated at fair value through 00 (equity instruments! 
Upon initial recognition, the Group ean elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity 

under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading, The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held fer 

trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at MPL. 

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement cf profit and loss when the right of payment has been 

established, except when th<> benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset. in which ease. such gains are recorded in 00, Equity instruments designated at 

fair value through OCJ are not subject to impairment assessment. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets ct fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet atf;irvalue with net chan~es in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition 
A financial asset (er. where applicable, a part ci a financial asset or ;:,art cf a group of similar financial assetsi is primarily de recognised {i e-. rcmcved from the Group's Consolidated baiance 
sheet} when: · 

• The rights to receive cash nows from the asset have expired. or 
• The Group has transferred ,ts rights to receive c.ash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 

'pass-through' arrangement; ~nd either (a) the Group has transfer,ed substantially al! the risks and rewards of the asset. or fb) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 

the risks and rewards of the asset. but has transferred control of the asset,. 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-throogh arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and 

rewards of ownershi~. When it has neither transferred nor retained substant;allv all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise 
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement, In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability., The transferred asset and the associated liability are 

meaS1Jred on a basis that ren .. r.r, thP riehts and obligations that the Group h;it rct:iinod. 

impairment of financial assets 
Majority of the financial assets of the Group pertain to Trade and other receivables. Considering the nature of business, the Group does not foresee any credit risk on its trade and other 
receivables which may cause an impairment. As per the TSA, the receivables are covered by clause of payment security mechanism which ensures re<:eipt of all trade receivables, Alsc, the 

Group does not have any past history of impairme~t ofTrade and other receivables. 

Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabmties at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging 

instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate .. 

All financial liabnities are recognised initially at fair ~alue and, in the c'ase of loans and·borrawings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction ccsts. 

The Group's financial liabilities indude borrowings and related costs, trade and other payables, and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial /iabmties are classified in two categories: 

• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

• Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings) 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial flabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, 

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term, This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into 

by the Group that are not designated as he<:lging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also dassified as held for trading unless they 

are designated as effective hedging inst;uments. Gains or los_ses on liabifities held for trading are recognised In the profit or loss, 

Financial liabirities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings) 
This is the _category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and 

losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as we!! as through the EIR amortisation precess. 
Amortised cost is calculated by t~king into account any discount or premium on acquisitior> and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance 

costs in the statement of profit or loss, 

This category generally applies to borrowin~ For more informatfon refer Note 11. 
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Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the fiability Is discharged or cancelled or expires .. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender 

on sul,stantially different terms, or the terms of an existing flabilitv are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as.the derecognition of the original liability and the 

recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Reclassification of financial assets 
The Group determines classifi.:il~km of financial assets and liabilities on initial 211'<:~ition, A~er initial recognition, no reclassification Is made for financial assets which are equity instruments 

and financial rlabilities. For lfo;i,,,;folassets which are debt instruments, a redl$slf'icition is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the 

business model are expected to be infrequent._The Group's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internaf changes which are significant to the 

Group's operations. Such changes are evident to eJCternal partfes.A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its 

operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassif@cion prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting year 

following the change in business model. The Group does not restate any pre-,1"!.ls!r recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest, · 

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for. 

)Qriri,iai dassificatlon I . 

k,mortised cost 

Amortised cost 

FVTOCI 

FVTPL 

FVTOCI 

!l!-!M~ed 
\d;i,..iifk~tlcn 

MOO 

FVrOCI 

Offsetting of fmancial instruments 

;At¢::1mtl'n1, treatment 

!Fair value is measured at reclassification date, Difference between previous amortized cost and fair 

!v~e is roro;?tli".cc! fn·pro1,t ot !0$s. 

!Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount, .EIR is calculated based on 

;th~.ncwwo¾~rryi11gamount. · 

!fair value is measured at redassification date. Oifference between previous amortised cost and fair 

,,,,;ii~ is t"""°"msee ,n OCI, ,~dl:inze· m EIR due to red;is~liaiticn, 

!F.il~Wf:lue at redassification date becomes its new :imortitoo cost carrying amount. However, 

!o,ttnubti\l(l'gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value .. ConseQuently, the asset is measured as 
lit lthad ~llli,ffl b>Ct-n mc-~wP.ed at amortised pcm. 

\Fl,irvalue at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount...No other adjustment is 

iret'HJitt.:-d~ 
(As~ COlllitt\l!l-:O-bemeasured at fair value. Cumulative gain or fess previously recognized in OCJ is 

lr~,i!itd ftc,r. =iw ta profit or los.s the reclassification date. 

financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 

amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabiUties sfmultaneously. 

m) cash and cash equi11alents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an 

insignific:ant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they 
are consider~ an integral part of the Group's cash manaeement, 

nl Cash distribution to unit holders 

The Group recognises a liabttity to make cash distributicns to unit holders when the distribution is authorised and a iegal obligation has been created.- As per the lnvlT Regulations, a distribution 

is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Oirectors of the Investment Manager, A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equiry, 

o) Earnings per unit 

Basic eamings per unit rs calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to unit holders of the Trust (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes if any) by the weighted 

average number of units outstanding durine the period, The weighted average number of units outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus erement in a 

rights issue, split, and re~erse split (consolidation of units) that have changed the number of units outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per unit, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to unit holders of the Trust and the weighted average number of units outstanding 

during the period are adjusted for the effects of al! dilutive potential units. 

p) Recent accounting pronouncements 
The Mrnistry of Corporate Aft.lirs (#MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards, There is no such notification which wou Id have been applicable from April 01, 2022 

having material impact on th~e financial statements.., There is no impact of standard or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective, 

[This space is intentronally left blank) 
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

(3) Property, plant and equipment 

Particulars Freehold land 

Gross Block 
As at November 01, 2021 (Refer Note 35) 
Additions during the period 
Disposals during the period 
As at March 31, 2022 

Addition on account of acquisition (refer note 32) 78.39 
Additions during the year 

Disposals during the year 

As at March 31, 2023 78.39' 

f 
Accumulated depreciation I 

I 
As at November 01, 2021 (Refer Note 35) 
Depreciation for the period 

Disposals during the period 

As at March 31, 2022 . 
Depreciation for the year 

Disposals during the year 

As at March 31, 2023 

Net Block 

I As at March 31, 2022 . 
As at March 31, 2023 78.39 

Plant and 
equipment 

-

21,664.80 

21,664.80 

i 
. 
-

-
769.33 

769.33 

- I 
20,895.471 

{This space is intentionally left blankJ 

Furniture and Office 
Computers Total 

fixtures equipment 

- . 

-
- . 

0.60 2.39 0.58 21,746.76 

0.09 0.09 

- - -
o.Go 2.48 O.S8 21,746.85 

. 

. -

. . -
N . . -

0.07 0.54 0.19 770.13 

- . -
O.D7 0.54 0.19 no.13 

J - -
0.53 0.39 20,976.72 



Anzen India Energv Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

(4) Other financial assets 

Non - Current 

Particulars 

{Unaecured, considered goad) 

Security deposits 

Total 

Current 

(Unsecured, considered good) 

Unbilled revenue• 

Interest accrued on fixed deposit 

Fixed deposit having remaining maturity of less than twelve months 

Othe receivables 

Total 

Asat 
Asat 

March 31, 2022 
March 31, 2023 

(Refer Note 351 

7.37 

7.37 

655.45 . 
0.16 . 
036 -
0.65 

656.62 
... 

•unbilled revenue 1s the transm1ss1on charges for the last quarter of penod and incentive billed to transm1SS1on ut1l1t1es m the next month 

subsequent to year end .. 

(5) Investments 

Current 

Particulars 

Investments in mutual funds (valued at fair value throug,h Profit or loss) 

ICJCJ Prudential Liquid fund-Direct Plan Growth( 1,904,747.211 units) 

A6St liquid fund-Growth-Direct Plan( 900,428.322 units) 

-~~ Liquid Fund-Direct Growth( 120,494.916 units) 

ltlO Prudential Liquid Fund - Direct Plan -Growth- overnight( 25,088.682 units) 

ABSL Overnight Fund-Growth-Direct Plan( 10,879:295 units) 

Total 

Aggregate value of quoted investments 

AK1:regate value of unquoted investments 

(6) 0 ther assets 

C,:immt 

Particulars 

(Unsecured, ccnsideted good) 

Prepaid expenses 

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 

1 Total 

(7) Tr.ide receivables 

Particulars 

{Unsecured, considered good) 

Trade rec<iilr.1bh1. 

Total 1 

A.sat 
Asat 

March 31, 2022 
March 31, 2023 

ID J... Nr>•,> 'l'-1 

634.64 

326.93 

301.34 

30.32 

13.19 
1,306.42 

1,306.42 

Asat 
Asat 

March 31, 2022 
March 31, 2023 

£Rl"fer Nc:,te 351 

30.98 
0.15 

31.13 i 

Asat 
Asat 

March 31, 2022 
March 31, 2023 

IReferNnh• :1.5) 

!2.03 

12.03 

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Group either severally or joint£y with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private 

companies respectively Ir. which any director rs a partner, a director or a memeber. 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 60 days. 

See Note 24(a) on credit risk of trade receivables, which explains how the Group manages and measures credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired. 

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023: 

Ag1!!ng Schedule as at 31 March 20Z3 

IJr;,,iiput~Trade Receivables ,c.o>tidercd{l~ 

tJ~1:pm.~-dTrade Receivables -which have,signtfi<:ant ~ncrease in credit risk 

Vftdi~:t"d Trade receivable - credit impaired 

Disputed Trade r~ceivables • considered good 

Disputed Trade receivables-which h311e significant increase in credit risk 

Ci:".,p.tlM Trade receivables - credit ifr'ot,.;i,ed 

less than 6 monltls 

12.03 

12.03 

6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 
Morethan3 

vears 
Total 

12.03 

l2.03 



Anzen fndia Energy Yiefd Plus Trust 

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

All amounts in Rupees milHon unless otherwise stated 

(SA) cash and c;rn, e<tUivl)ierttt 

Particulars 

Cash and cash equivalents 
cash in hand · 

i3alances with banks in CLirrent accounts 

Total 

Balances with b:a!I)( ~!'> current account does not earn interest. 

., 

Particulars 

Other bank balances 
Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but fess than 12 months 

- -

Balances with bank held as margin money or securit',I against borrowings, guarantees and other 

commitments# 

Total 

Asat 
Asat 

March 31, 2022 
March 31, 2023 

!Refer Note 351 

65.35 -
65.35 -

Asat 
Asat 

March 31, 2022 
March 31, 2023 

(Refer Note 351 

21.24 

155.00 

176.24 

#Fixed deposits with banks of Rs. 155.00 miliion as at March 31, 2023 { March 31, 2022: Nil) and interest accrued thereon of Rs. Nil are lien marked with Catalyst Trusteeship Limited (debenture 
trustee). 

Short•term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending an t~e Immediate cash requirements of the trust, and earn interest at the respective short-term 
de posit rates. 

[This space is intentionally left blank] 
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

{9) Unit aipital 
As at Match 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars No. of units in 
No. of units in million Amount 

million 
Amount 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up: 
Units of Rs. 100 each 158.00 15,800.00 

les.s: Issue expenses (175.21) -
15,524.79 

Note: 

[a) Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has made an initial issue of 75,000,000 units, for cash at a price of Rs 100.00 per unit, aggregating to Rs. 7500 Million to the eligible unitholders 

{as defined in the Final Placement Memorandum) (the "Issue") on private placement basis, in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment 

Trust) Regulations, 2014 including the circulars and guidelines issued thereunder. The issue opened en November 10, 2022 and closed on November 11,2022. Additionally, pursuant 

to the share purchase agreement with Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus Trust rEIYP"), ElYP was allotted 83,000,000 units of Anzen. 

The lnvlT Committee of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (Investment Manager of Anzen). considered and approved allotment of 1,58,000,000 units to the eligible unitholders 

of Anzen on Nc•,ember 11, 2022, 

(b) Issue expenses of Rs.175~1 Million incurred in connection with issue of units have been reduced from the Unitholders capital in accordance with Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: 

Presentation 

{i) Terms/Rights attached to the equity capital 

The Trnst has only one class of Units having a par value of Rs. 1□□ per Unit. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of unit is entitled to one 

vote per unit. The Unitholders have the right to receive at feast 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in ever{ year in accordance with the lnvff 

Regulations. The Investment Manag2r approves dividend distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of units heid by the unitholders. The Trust declares and 

pays dividends in Indian rupees. 

A Unitholder has no equitable or proprietary interest in the projects of the Trust and is not entitled tc any share in the transfer of the projects {or any part thereof] or any interest in 

the projects (or any part thereof) of the Trust. A Unit holder's right is limited to the right to require due administration of the Trust in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed 

and the Investment Management Agreement. 

(ii) Details of tlnlthatde!'$ holdirog more than 5% units in the Trust 
As at March 31. 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Particulars No. of units in 
No. of units in million % holding 

million 
% holding 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 93.80 59,37% 

Sekura Energy Private Urr.ited 23 ao 15.06% 
Larsen & Toubro Limited 15,20 9.62% 

132.80 84.os%l j 

{iii) Reconciliation of units outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 

J As at March 31, 2023 i M .it M;;tdl 31. '.ro22 
'Particulars No. of units in 

No. of units in million Amount 
million 

Amount 

At the beginning of tne year 

Add : Issued during the year 158,00 15,300.00 

Less: Issue expenses {refer note (b) above} (175.21) . 
Outstanding at the end of the year 158.00 15.624.79 -

The Trust issued its units amounting to Rs..8,300 million to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and NRSS respectively and Rs., 7,500 million fer Cash 

consideration. 

(i11) The Trust has not allotted any fuliy paid up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of incorporation till the balance 

sheet date. 

(10] Otherecuity 

Particulars Asat Asat 

March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022 
Loss for the year (319.26) 
Other comprehensive income (0.01) 
less: Distribution to Unit Hoklers (195,92) 
Closing balance l515.19J l ·! 
Total /515.19} 

Retained earnings are the profits earned by the Trust till date, less distribution paid to unitholders, if any. 

! 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Alf amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

(11} Borrowings 

Non - current: 

Particulars Effective Interest Rate 

Borrowings at amortised cost 
A.Secured 

8.01% Series A Non convertible debentures 8.47% 

(4,500 debentures of Rs.1,000,000 each fully paid up) ** 
8.34% Series B Non convertible debentures 8.70% 

(3,000 debentures of Rs.1,000,000 each fully paid up)** 

Less: current maturities of debentures 

**Net of ancillary borrowing costs amounting to Rs. 83.76 million for Series A and Series B. 

Aggregate non-current borrowings 
Aggregate current borrowings 

(a) Terms of borrowings 

Asat 
As at March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 35) 

4,450.33 

2,965.91 -

-
7,416.24 

7,416.24 

On December 01, 2022 the Trust has issued and allotted 7,500 secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of face value of 

Rs. 1,000,000 each for an aggregate consideration of Rs. 750.00 million on private placement basis. 

Repa,,ment schedule of NCD 
Particulars 

Amount Maturity date 

Series A 4,500.00 01-12-2025 

Series B 3,000.00 01-12-2027 

{b) Security 

(i) a first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all the Issuer's current assets and other assets (excluding DSR and DSRA). both present 

and future, including: (i) all the receivables, right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Issuer in, to and under all the 

loans and advances extended by the Issuer to the SPVs and HoldCo(s), present and future (collectively, the "Issuer Loans"); (ii) the receivables, 

right, title and interest and benefits of the Issuer in, to and under all the financing agreements, deeds, documents and agreements or any other 

instruments (both present and future) which are now executed or may hereafter be executed by the Issuer with respect to the issuer Loans; 

Step in rights on the Loans shall be with the Common security Trustee. (iii) all bank accounts of the Issuer, including but not limited to the 

Escrow Account and the Sub-Accounts (including Cash Trap Sub Account) (if any) (excluding the distribution account and the accounts opened 

to meet the debt service reserve requirements in respect of any Additional Debt} or any accounts in substitution thereof that may be opened in 

accordance with the Debt Securities Documents, and in all funds from time to time deposited therein (including the reserves}, all designated 

account opened with designated banks and the Permitted Investments or other securities representing all amounts credited to the Escrow 

Account; 

(ii) a first and exclusive charge on the DSR and DSRA to be created in favour of the Common Security Trustee for benefit of Debt Securities unde·r 

this Deed, and all amounts lying therein; 

(iii) a first pari passu pledge over 100% (one hundred percent) of the equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, optionally 

convertible debentures, non-convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer in all the Project SPVs. 

(iv} pari passu pledge over unencumbered equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, optionally convertible debentures, non­

convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer and Holdco(s} in all the Other SPVs and Holdco(s) (as applicable): 

(cl Interest 

lnterst shall accrue at the end of every quarter and shall be payable on the last date of each quarter. 
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Notes to consollclatedffnandal statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023 

AU amounts in Rupees million unless otherNise stated 

(12) Provisions 

Particulars 

Non-current : 

Pr011ision fer employee benefits 
Gratuity (refer n·ote 31) 

Compensated absences 

Total 

Particulars 

Current: 

Pr011ision for employee benefits 

Gratuity (refer note 31) 

Compensated absences 

Total 

Particulars 

Tr.ade payables 
Tot:il.• outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Tobi outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

Trade payables 

- to related parties 

·to others 

TradE payallles ageingseheclule as at Mardi 31, 2023: 

Particulars 

As~! t,¼_<dl 31, 2023 

1<>t-~i a~standing dues of micro and small enterprises 

·;,.!,) outstanding d,J es of creditcts other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Ph;i;,le<l dues of micro and small enterprises 
o;'44)\il~~ dues of acditOf"S other than micro ~tc<p,1:5~ and smart .ent\"f'pri~ 

,>¾ at March :n. izu 
To:it outstanding dues of mic:ro and small enterprises 

1'4t;,I outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Disputed dues cf micro and smatl enterprises 

0\,;lX!!~ dues of creditors ether than micro ~n!(!<!l'I= and small ~t~,:yfr;,r. 

Asat 

As at March 31, 2023 March 31, 2D22 
tr>M4• M~•- ~<;\ 

1.31 

0'58 
1.89 

Asat 
As at March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 35) 

0.16 -
047 

0.63 

Asat 

As at March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 35) 

4.72 

5&42 

63.14 -

42.65. 

20.49 

63.14 

Outstanding for following years from the date oftransactlo~ 

More than 
Less than 1 year l-2years 2-3years 

3...,.~,,; 

4.72 

5819 021 0.02 

62.91 O.Zl 0.02 

[This space is intent/anally left blank] 

Total 

4.72 

58.42 

63.14 
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

AU amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

Details of due~ to Micro, Strnill, and Medium EtU:erpriSe:$ under the Micro, Small and Medium 1:nterprf~ Development Act, 2006 (M5MEO Act}: 

Particulars 

Th-, principal amount and the interest ch1e thereon remaining unpaid to any suppfier as at the end of each accounting year 

ilrl'.>l:i~1 amount due to micro and small enterprises 

fnM::,Mt due on above 

Thll' amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms ,:,f section 16 of the MSMEO Act 2005 along with the amounts of the payment made to the 

supptier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 

T!-1'!! amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year} but 

,~i.t~ut adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006. 

Ti'-.c·amcunt of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the s11cceeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actuarly paid to 

;!;.~ small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMEO Act 2006 

Tr.,<Ue P..'V;:t~ ~ n«· mk,!!'$1 be.i,mg and are normally settled oil .30·90 d<I','% terms 

For explanation on the Group's risk management policies, refer note 24 

(14) Other flminoal liabilities 

Particulars 

Current 
P<1Y.lble to related parties {refer note 29) 
inte.rest accrued but not due on borrowings 

Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment 

Payable to employees 

Particulars 

Current 

Athrlll'i¢!! from customer 

S!:i!Ult~dues 

As at March 31, 2023 

628.93 

1.67 
0.28 
2.11 

53z.9s l 

As at March 31, 2023 

1.55 
30,20 

! 31.751 

fThfs space is Intentionally left blank] 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 

{Refer Note 35) 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 
!Refer Note 35l 

l 

Asat 
March 31. 2023 

4.72 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

AU amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

(16) Revenue from contracts with customers 

(a) 

For the period from 

Year ended November 01, 2021 
Particulars 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 35) 

Income from transmission charges 930.64 

Income from operation and maintenance 6.05 . 
936.69 -

Revenue from contracts with customers comprises of revenue from power transmission services rendered in India to Long Term Transmission 

Customers (LTTCs) pursuant to the respective Transmission Services Agreements (TSAs) executed by the respective SPVs with LTTCs. The TSAs are 

executed for a period of 35 years and have fixed tariff charges as approved by CERC (except some incentives/penalties relating to transmission assets 

availabilities). Under the TSAs, the Group's performance obligation is to provide power transmission services. The Group is required to ensure that the 

transmission assets meet the minimum availability criteria under the respective TSAs failing which could result in certain disincentives/penalties. The 

performance obligation is satisfied over-time as the customers receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group's' performance as the Group 

perform. The payment is generally due within 60 days upon receipt of quarterly invoice by the customer. The Group receives payments as per the 

pooling arrangements specified under the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Sharing of Inter State Transmission Charges and Losses) 

Regulations ('Pooling Regulations'). In the Point of Connection (PoC) mechanism, the transmission charges to be recovered from the entire system are 

allocated between users based on their location in the grid. Under the PoC mechanism, all the charges collected by the Central Transmission Utility 

(i.e. Power Grid Corporation of India Limited) from L TTCs are disbursed pro-rata to all Transmission Service Providers from the pool in proportion of 

the respective billed amount. 
Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 11S, the Group has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures since 

the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date. 

Oisamtreftated revenue information 

Year ended 
For the period from 

Particulars 
March 31, 2023 

November 01, 2021 

to March 31, 2022 

Income from transmission charges 930.64 

Income from operation and maintenance 6.05 -
Tota! 936.69 1 • I 

(b) Assets and liabilities related tc cuntracts with customers 

! As at 

Particulars 
Asat 

March 31, 2022 
March 31, 2023 

(Refer Note 35\ 

Trade receivable 12.03 -
Unbilled revenue 655.45 -
Contract fiabi!Wes 1.55 -
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 60 days. Contract liabilities include advances 

(cl Project wise break tip of revenue from contracts with customers 
As at 

Particulars 
-Asat 

March 31, 2022 
March 31, 2023 

!Refer Note 35l 
Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 544.51 
NRSSX:XXl (B) Transmission Limited 392.18 -
Total i 936.69 -, 

(d) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted :price 

For the period from 

Particulars 
Year ended November 01, 2021 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 35} 

Revenue as per contracted price 936.69 

Add : Surcharge 

Less : Rebate -
936.69 -



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Ali amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

(e) Recondliatiort of contract assets and liabilities 

Particulars 

Opening bafance 

Unbilled revenue 

Trade receivable 

Contract liabilities 

Amounts billed to customers 

Power transmission services provided, but remaining unbilled as at year end 

Advance received from customer 

Closing balance 

Unbilled revenue 

Trade receivable 

Contract liabilities 

(17) Employee benefit expense 

Particulars 

Salaries, wages and bonus 

Gratuity expenses (refer note 31) 

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 31) 

Staff welfare expenses 

(18) Finance costs 

Particulars 

Interest on 

Secured Non-convertible debentures 

(19} Other exP<,l.nses 

Particulars 

Rates and taxes 

Membership charges 

Power and fuel 

ITraveJ!lng and conveyance expenses 

Rent (Expense relating to leases of low-value assets) 

Mlsceilaneous expenses 

{A) 

(B} 

{A+SJ 

! 

I 

For the period from 

Year ended November 01, 2021 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 35) 

-
- -
- . 
- * 

12.03 . 
655.4S ~ 

(1.55) 

665.93 . 

655.45 
12.03 . 
{1.55) -

665.93 . 

For the period from 
Year ended November 01, 2021 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 
(Refer Note 35) 

5.99 -
0.16 . 
0.28 

0.36 

6.79 . ' ! 

For the period from 

Year ended November 01, 2021 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 35) 

439.20 -
439.20 I -

for the period from 
Year ended November 01, 2021 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 

{Refer Note 35} 

1.05 -
0.27 

1.69 .• 
1.77 

0.20 

2.84 

7.82 ! 

(a) Pursuant to the Project Implementation and Management Agreement dated November 1, 2022, Project Manager is entitled to fees @ 15% of gross 

operation and maintenance expenses (excluding insurance and statutory costs) incurred by each SPV per annum plus Goods and Service tax at rate as 

applicable effective from November 11, 2022. Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 includes amount of Rs 

10.53 Milrion towards Project Manager fees. There are no changes during the year in the methodology for computation of fees paid to Project 

Manager. 

(bi Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated December 8, 2021, Investment Manager is entitled to fees of Rs. 55 million per annum 

plus Goods and Service tax at rate as applicable which is allocated to each project SPV equally. Consolidated statement of Profit and loss for the year 

ended March 31, 2023 includes amount of Rs. 24.18 Million towards Investment Manager Fees. There are no changes during the year in the 

methodology for computation offees paid to Investment Manager. 

[This space is intentlonally left blank} 
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All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

(20) Capital and other commitments 

(al Cilpital Commitments 

The Group has no capital commitments for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

(bl Other Commitments 

The Group has entered into transmission services agreements (TSA) with long term transmission customers for the period of 35 (thirty five) years pursuant to which the Group 

have committed to transmit power of contracted capacity and ensure minimum availability of transmission line over the period of TSA. The TSA contains provision for penalties in 

case of certain defaufts. 

(21) Cootingtmt !rabllltles 

I Asat 
Particulars 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 

March 31, 2023 
I Refer Note 351 

o::ret m1ane.rs 78.43 I 
/Total ' 78.431 

L During the financial year 2016-17, land owners had filed a case with the District Court, Ludhiana, Punjab towards compensation for the value of land over which the transmission 

line is passing. The Group is of the view that required amount of compensation to these landowners have already been paid and no further compensation is payable. Based on the 

legal odvice, the Group does not anticipate any liability against the same and has disclosed a contingent ·liability of Rs. 61.65 million. Accordingfy, no provision for any liabifity has 

been made in these financial statements. 

ii. During the financial year 2020-21, land owners had filed a case with the Civil Court, Pehowa, Haryana towards compensation for costs incurred on account of transmission line 

passing. The Group is of the view that required arr.aunt of compensation to these landowners have already been paid and no further compensation is payable, Based on the legal 

advice, the Group does not anticipate any liability against the same and has disclosed a contingent liability cf Rs. 2.00 miflion. Accordingly, no provision for any liability has been 

made in these financial statements. 

i,i. During the financial year FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20, Power Grid Corporation of rndia Limited claimed recovery of Interest During Construction ("IDC"), Incidental Expenses During 

Construction ("IEDC") and transmission charges respectively on account of delay in commissioning of transmission lines by the Group. The Group is of the view that the delay in 

commissioning of transmission lines was due to force majeure events wnic:h were beyond the control of the Company. Central Electricity Regulatory Commission concluded in 

another matter through order dated 29/03/2019 passed in Petition No. 195/MP/2017 that delay in commissioning was not due to reasons attributable to the Company. Based on 

the legal advice, the Group does not anticipate any liability against the same and has disclosed a contingent liability of Rs, 14.78 million. Accordingfy, no prevision for any riabiiity 

has been made in these financial statements. 

(22) Financial Instruments by category 

Set out below ls a comparison, by cl.ass, of the carry"ing amounts and fair value cf the Group's financial instruments as of March 31, 2023 ·: 

! : Fair varue thro.ugh 
Fair value through 

!Particulars Amortised cost other comprehensive Total carrying value 
profit and foss 

income 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 65.3._S 65.35 

lmestments in mutual funds 1,306.42 1,306,42 

Other bank balances 176.24 . 176.24 

Trade receivables 12.03 12,03 

Other financial assets 663.99 - 653,99 

Tota! I 917.61 l,306A2 2.224.03 

Financial llal>illties 
Borrowings 7,416.24 7,416.24 

Trade payables 63.14 63.14 

Other financial liabilities 632.99 632.99 

Toul 8,ll2.37 ~ 8,lU.37 

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Trust's financial instruments as of March 31, 2022 '. 

Fair value through 
Particulars Amortised cost 

Fair value through 
profit and loss 

other comprehensive Total carrying value 

Fmanciai assets 
Q:Ji and cash equivalents 

in~~tmems 
!.cans 
Other bank balances 

Ot.he:r fr.oa~.ct.iil·~$$.eU 

Financial Uabilities 
Borrowings 

rrade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

Total 

mcome 

. I 

Carrying values of tract!! ;,;;i,;e;vabf.es, other financial assets, tr-~<l!i payables and other financial llabihtiez approximate their farr values. 

Total fair value 

65.35 

1,306 .. 42 

176.24 

12.03 

663.99 

2,224.03, 

7,394.03 

63.14 

632 99 

8,090,16 

Total fair value 
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(23) Fair value hierarchy 

The following table o~:.ents fair vaiue hli!r.vchy of assets and liabilities as of 

Particulars Fair value measurnment at end of the repe rtin~ year using 

Quoted prices in Significant Slgniticant 

active markets (Level 1) observable inputs unobservable inputs 

(Level2} (Level 3) 
Assets measured at fair value 

March 31, 2022 
Quoted investments - Investment in mutual funds * 

March 31, 2023 

Quoted investments - Investment in mutual funds 1.306-42 

Asset for which fair varue disdosures are given 

March 31, 2022 

Property, plant end equipmenr ~ 

March 31, 2023 
?:repe, .. t, ~:L .. ,<"::t and -~.,.:'"i·•;Z"r-r;.~< ~ .. 22,560,88 

liabilitie~ for whlch fil1r value dischm1res are given 

M,nd1 31, 2022 
Borrcwiflg.s. 
March 31, 2023 

Borrowings ~ 7,394,03 

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3, 

Investment in mutual funds though unlisted, are quoted on recognised stock exchanges at their previous day NAVs which is the quote for the day, 

•statement of net asset at fair value and statement of total returns at fair value require disclosures regarding fair value of assets {liabilities at considered at book val·Jes). Since the 

fair values of assets other than property, plant and equipment approximate their book values, hence only property, plant and equipment has oeen disclosed above, 

The Trust is required to present the Statement of total assets at fcirvalue and Statement of total returns at fair value as per SEBI Circular No. OR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20 

October 2016 as a part of these financial statements - Refer Statement of Net assets at fair value and Statement ofTotal Returns at fair value. 

The inputs to the valuation moders for computation of fair value of transmission assets for the above mentioned statements are taken from observable markets where possible, 

but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishins fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as WACC, Tax rates, Inflation rates, 

etc. 

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fcir value measurement required for disciosures categorised within Level 3 of the fcir value hierarchy together with a qua ntita tise 

sensitivity analysis as at March 31, 2023 are as shown below: 

Description or significant unobservable inputs to valuation: 

Significant unobservable inputs 
Input for Sensitivity of input to 

Increase /(decrease) 

in fair value 
March 31, 2023 the fair value 

March 31, 2023 

WACC 7.50"/4 to 8.55% 0$0% (1,204.00) 

-0.50"/4 1,355.00 

Tax rate (normal tax and MAT) MAT-17.47% 2.00% (402.00} 

Normal ta:< - 25,17% -2.00% 389,00 

Inflation rate for expenses 2.5% to5% 20.00% {220,02) 

-20.00% 184,42 

(24) Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities rs to finance 

the Group's operations. The Group's principal financial assets include im,estments, loans, trade receivables, cash and short-term deposits and other financial assets that derive 

directly from its operations, 

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Tile Investment manager oversees the management of these risks. The management re'liews and agrees policies 

for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below. 

The Risk Management policies of the Group are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and coritrols and to monitor risks and 

adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are revrewed regularly to reflect ~hanges in market conditions and the Group's activities. 

Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. 
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_{a) Credit risk on financial assets 
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a finantjal loss. The Group is exposed to credit 

risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables} and from its financing aJ:tivlties, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments. As at March 31, 2023 
the credit risk is considered low since substantial transactions of the group are with its subsidiaries. 

The Group through its subsidiaries is engaged in transmission business under BOOM (Build, Own, Operate and Maintain) model and currentlv derive its revenue primarilv from 

BOOM contracts with longterm transmission customers ['LTTC'). Being transmission licensee, the Group receives payments as per the pooling arrangements specified under the 

Central Electricity Regulatorv Commission (Sharing of Inter State Transmission Charges and Losses) Regulations, 2010 ('Pooling Regulations'), In the PoC method, the transmrssion 

charges to be recovered from the entire system are allocated between users based on their location in the grid, Under the PoC mechanism, all the charges collected by the Central 

Transmission Utility ('CTU ') from LTTC's are disbursed pro-rata to all Transmission Service Providers ('TSPs') from the pool in proportion of the respective billed amount. Due to 

this, the TSPs are shielded against anv potential default by a particular customer. If a particular customer delays or defaults, the delay or shortfall is prorated amongst all the TSPs. 

Based on past history of payments, payments due have always been paid and there have been no write-offs for due amounts. 

Due to the pavment mechanism explained above as well as due to no history of any write-off's of payments which were due, the Group has not considered any expected credit 

loss on the financial assets in the nature of trade receivables:. During the various periods presented, there has been no change in the credit risk of trade receivables. 

Credit risk from balances deposited/invested with banks as well as investments made in mutual funds, is managed by the Group's senior management in accordance with the 

Group's Treasury policy approved by the Board of Directors. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within limits assigned to each 

. counterparty, Counterparty limits are reviewed by the top management on a11 annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Soard of · 

Directors. The limits are set to minimise ·the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financiar loss through a counterparty's potential failure to make payments. Based on this 

policy, the Group does not foresee any risk on account of credit losses, either in the scheduled commercial bank deposits which are made with AA+ rated banks and also in regard 

to mutual funds which is primarily debt oriented funds. No loss allowances have been provided for any trade receivables, or other receivables from finam:."1ng activities like cash 

and bank deposits, mutual funds and other similar deposit:s..Afso, there have been no modifications in contractuar cash flows on financial assets. 

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 ls the carrying amounts of Investments, Trade Recei\1ables, Cash and 

bank balances and Other Assets as disclosed in Note 5, 7, 8, and 4 respectively. However, the credft risk ls low due to reasons mentioned above. 

(b} Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: 

interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. Fi11ancial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and investments. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk thatthe fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Trust's borrowings are at 

fixed rate, hence the Trust is not exposed to Interest rate risk., 

Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Trust did not have any 

exposure in foreign currency as at March 31, 2023, 

Equity price risk 

The Trust's investments in equity shares of subsidiaries are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of those investments. Reports en the 

equity portfolio are sub~itted to the senior management on a regular basis. The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager reviews and approves air equity investment 

decisiOnS-. The· Trust did not have any exposure of equity price risk as at March 31, 2023, 

[This space is intentionally left blank] 
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(c} Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may encounter difficulty in meeting its present and future 9blieations associated wit, financial liabilities that are requir"d to be settled by delivering cash or 

another financial asset. The Trust's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collatef31 obligations, The Group requires funds both for short term operational 

needs as well as for long tem, investment p..-ograms mainly in growth projects. The Group dosely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It aims to minimise 

these risks by generating sufficient cash flows from its current operations, which rn addition to the available cash and cash equivalents, Rquid investments and sufficient committed fund facilities, will 
µrovide liquidity. 

The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The average credit vear taken to ~ettle trade payables is about 30 days,. The other payables are with 

short term duration<. The carrying amounts are assumed to be reasonable approximation of fair value, The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on 
contractual undisc:cunted payments: 

!Particulars i On~nd ~.s than J month$ 3 months to 1 vear 1 vear to 5 vears ll'!Cf/1i!ttl.in.sve~ rotal 
As at Marcil 31, 2023 
Non convertible debentures (Secured) 7,415.24 7,416.24 
Trade payables 63.14 6'.U4 
Other financial liabilities 511,18 121.81 532.99 
Interest on borrowings 1si.24 459,66 1,530.96 2.14286 

. 726.56 581.47 8,947.20 10.255.23 
As at March 31, 2022 i 

I I t rro -,SO,e Oe>M<~~ i""•<<d) ) I Trade payables ~ 
Other financial liabilities · l I 

! I . 
[Tnis space is intentionally left blank) 
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(25) Capital management 

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued unit capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the unit holders of the 

Tru;:t. The primary objective of the Trust's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to 

support its business and maximise unitholder value. 
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial 

covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Trust may adjust the distribution to unitholders (subject to the provisions of lnvlT regulations which 

require distribution of at least 90% of the net distributable cash flows of the Trust to unit holders), return capital to unit holders or issue new units. The Trust 

monitors capita! using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Trust's policy is to keep the gearing ratio optimum. The Trust 

indudes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances excluding 

discontinued operations. 

Asat 

Particulars 
As At 

March 31, 2022 
March 31, 2023 

(Refer Note 35) 

Borrowings 7,416.24 
Trade Payables 63.14 -
Other financial liabilities 632.99 
Less: Cash and other bank balances (241.59) -
Net debt [AJ 7,870.78 * 

Unit capital 15,624.79 -
Other equity {515.19) 
Total equity capital [Bl 15,109.60 -
Capital and net debt [C=A+B] 22,980.38 -
Gearing ratio{%) [A/CJ 0.34 * 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached 

to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of the Non 

convertible debentures. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2023. 

(26) Tax expense 

The major components of income tax expense for the year are: 

Profit or !oss section 

Year ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2023 

Ct#l"l?f'lt income tax: 
Currei;t. income tax charge {37.84) 

Adjustments in respect cf current income tax cf previous year . 

Deferred tax: 

MAT credit entitlement fer current year 

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss: I (37.84} 

For the period from 

November 01, 2021 

to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 35) 

~ 

The reconciliation between the provision of income tax and amounts computed by applying the Indian statutory income tax rate to profit before tax is as 
fo!fows: 

For the period from 

Particulars 
Year ended November 01, 2021 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 

{Refer Note 35) 

Loss before tax (357.08) 

Enacted income tax rate in India 25.17% -
Com;::t1ted expected tax (89.88) 

Effect of: 
lmpa:::t of exemption u/s 10(23FC) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 available to the Trust 

Non re<ognition of deferred ta1< on unabsorbed depreciation and other timing differences 52.04 

Income tax el<pense ,~rognise-d in the statement of profit and loss (37.84) 
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(27) Deferred Tax Liabilltv (n~t) 

Asat 

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 35) 

Deferred Tax Assets 

TalC losses 2,292.38 -
Gratuity payable 0-43 -
Leave encashment payable 0.31 

Total 2,293.12 -

Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Propertf, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation for 1,567.11 

Ancllla1v borrowing cost -
Total 1,567.11 . 

j 

I Net d~furred tax asset recognised (OTA restricted to the extent of OTI.} - -

For the computation of deferred tax assets/liabilities, the Group has not considered tax holiday available under the Income Tax Act. The management based on 

estimated cash flow workings, believes that since ther.e will be losses in the initial years of the SPVs, no benefit under the Income tax Act would accrue to in 

respect of the tax holiday. Management will re-assess this position at each balance sheet date. Tax losses represents unabsorbed depreciation. Unabsorbed 

depreciation can be carried forward indefinitely. 

(28) Earnings per unit 

Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during 

the year. 
Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during 

the year plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital. 

Particulars 

!.oss•aft& ra1, for CTikula,iiig basic al'ld diluted earnings per unlt ,mrlbuti.ibl:e to unithcldel's f!!s. mil!lonj 
W~igh~# .r.n:~e number ofun\ts in c,ak1.1iatlng bi~~ ;mtf diluted e;im!ng~ per unit (NI}. irt mrnioo) 
F~ce.v:ah.iti Pi?f r.initfin As.1 
~ic and ailutl!d E.iroi~~ ~n.trdt (!,: Rs.1 

(This space is intentionally left blank] 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

(319.25) 

61.04 
100 

(5,23) 

For the period from 

November 01, 2021 

to March 31, 2022 
(Refer Note 35) 
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(29) Related Party Disclosures 

I. List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures 

a) Entity with control over the Trust 
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus (EIYP} 

b) Entity with significant influence over the Trust 
Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project Manager 

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAMl) - Investment Manager 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - Ultimate holding company of ERAML 

II. List of related parties as per Regulation 2(1)(zv} of the lnvlT Regulations 

a) Parties of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) -Sponsor and Project manager 

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML} - Investment Manager 

Axis Trustee Services Limited (ATSL) - Trustee of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

b} Promoters of the parties to specified in (a) above 
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited (wef March 29, 2023} 

Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited (upto March 29, 2023) 
Axis Bank Limited 

c) Directors of the parties specified in {a) above 
i) Directors of SEPL 

Avinash Prabhakar Rao 

Sushant Sujir Nayak 

Tharuvai Venugopal Rangaswami 

ii) Directors of ERAM L 

Venkatchalam Ramaswamy 

Subahoo Chordia 

Sunil Mitra 

Prabhakar Panda (ceased to be director w.e.f. April 1, 2023) 
Ranjita Deo 

Shiva Kumar 

Bala C Deshpande (appointed as dkector w.e.f. April 1, 2023) 

iii) Key Managerial Personnel of ERAML 
Ranjita Deo (Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer) 

Vaibhav Doshi (Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f.1 February 2023} 

Jalpa Parekh (Company Secretary) 

iv) Directors of ATSL 
Deepa Rath 

Rajesh Kumar Dahiya 

Ganesh Sankaran 

[This space is intentionally left blank] 

Promoters of SEPL 

Promoters of ERAML 

Promoters ofERAML 

Promoters of ATSL 
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Ill. Related party transactions· 

Particulars 

Issue of units 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

Sekura Energy Private Limited 

Axis Bank Limited 

Issue of NCD 

Axis Bank Limited 

Interest expense on NCD 

Axis Bank Limited 

Project Implementation and Management 

Sekura Energy Private Limited 

Shared service cost 
Sekura Energy Private Limited 

Unit placement fees 
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 

Arranger fees for NCD facilities 

Axis Bank Limited 

Distribution to unit holders 
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Pfus 
Sekura Energy Private Limited 
Axis Bank Limited 

Reimbursement of expenses 

5ekura Energy Private Limited 

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 

Avinash Prabhakar Rao 

Investment rr,.anagem:<:nt fees 
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited 

Trustee fees 

Axis Trustee Services Limited 

IV. Related p.>rty balances: 

Particulars 

Trade payables 

Sel<ura Energy Private Limited 

Edelweiss Real Assets Ma,nagers Limited 

Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 

Other financial liabilities 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 
c, 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

Axis Bank Limited 

For the period from 

Vear ended November 01, 2021 

March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 35) 

9,380.00 
2,380.00 

500.00 

3,000.00 

79.66 

10.53 

18.83 

11.09 

8.89 

116.31 
29.51 
3.97 

102.45 

0.05 
0.07 

24.18 

0.26 

Asat Asat 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(Receivable/ (payable)) (Refer Note 35) 

(31.85} 
(10.49) 
(0.26) 
(0.05) 

(628.93} 

(0.66} 

Details in respect of related party transactions involving acquisition of lnvlT assets as required by Para 4.4(b)(iv) of Section A of Annexure A to SEBI 

Circular dated 20 October 2016 are as follow: 

For the year ended March 31, 2023: 
No acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2023. 

-
-

-

-

-
-
. 
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.. 

~ 
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(301 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Trust's Consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 

reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures and the disclosu_re of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty 

about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities 

affected in future years. 

Judgements 
In the process of applying the Trust's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements. which have the most significant effect on 

the amounts recognised in the financial statements, 

(a) Applicability of Appendix D- Servlce Concession Arrangements of Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers 

The Group through its subsidiaries acts as a transmission licensee under the Electricity Act, 2003 holding valid licenses for 25 year5, The subsidiaries 

have entered into Transmission Services Agreements {"TSA") with Long Term Transmission Customers ("LTTC") through a tariff based bidding process to 

Build, Own, Operate and Maintain ("BOOM"} the transmission infrastructure for a period 35 years., The management of the Company is of the view that 

the grantor as defined under Appendix D: of Ind AS 115 ("Appendix D") requires transmission licensee to obtain various approvals under the regulatory 

framework to conduct its operations both during the period of the license as well as at the end of the license period. However, in the view of 

management, the gran.tor's involvement and approvals are to protect public interest and are not intended to control, through ownership, beneficial 

entitlement or otherwise, any significant residual interest in the transmission infrastructure ;it the end of the term .of the arrangement Accordingly, 

management is of the view that Appendix· D to Ind AS 115 is not applicable to the Group,_ 

lb) Classification of Unitholders' funds 

Under the provisions of the lnvlT Regulations, Anzen is required to distribute to Unithofders not less than ninety percent of the net distributable cash 

flows of Anzen for each financial year, Accordingly, a portion of the unitholders' funds contains a contractual obligation of the Trust to pay to its 

Unitholders cash distributions. The Unitholders' funds could therefore have been classified as compound financial instrument which contain both equity 
and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32. Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circulars (N~ 

CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20-0ct-2016 and No.. CIR/lMD/OF/127/2016 dated 29-Nov-2016) issued under the lnvlT Regulations, the unitholders' funds 

have been classified as equity in order to comply with the mandatory requirements of Section H of Annexure A to the SEBL Circular dated 20-0ct-2016 

dealing with the minimum disclosures for key financial statements. In line with the above, the dividend ~ayable to unit holders is recognised as liability 

when the same is approved by the Investment Manager. 

(cl Acquisition of Transmission SPVs clas:;ified as asset acquisitions 

The Group acquirllS.operational transmission SPVs. The purchase consideration primarily pertains to the fair value of the transmission assets, All such 

assets are operational assets with fixed tariff revenues under the Transmission Services Agreements {TSAs) for 35 years, The only key activity for these 

5PVs is the maintenance of the transmission assets which is outsC\Jrced to third parties. There are few emplcyees in these entities and no other 

significant precesses are performed for earning tariff revenues. 

Based on evaluation of the above fact pattern vis-a-vis the guidance on definition of business under Ind AS and also keeping in view the relevant 

guidance on similar fact pattern available under actounting standards applicable in other jurisdictions, the management has classified the .icquisition of 
transmission SPVs as asset acquisit,on. 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing 

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabiiities within the next financial year, are described below, The Trust based its 

assumotions and est:mates Otl parameters available when the financi,11 st.:itements were prepared, Ex,stlng circumstances and assumptions about future 

developments, however, may c!iange due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Trust- Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions wtien they occur. 

(a} Fair 11aluation and disclosures 

SEBI Circulars issued under the lnvfT Regulations require disclosures relating to net assets at fair vafue and total returns at fair value (refer note 

23A and 238). In estimating the fair value of investments in subsidiaries (which constitute substantial portion of the net assets), the Trust engages 

independent qualified externaf valuers to perform the valuation., The management works closely with the valuers to establish the appropriate valuation 

techniques and ;nputs to the model, The· management reports the valuation report and findings to the Board of the Investment Manager quarterly to 

explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the transmission projects. The inputs to the valuation models are taken from observable markets 

where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of Judgement is required in establis.'ling fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs 

such as WACC, Tax rates, lnfl.stion rates, etc. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect_ the fair value, 

(bl Defined benefit plans 

The cost of tne defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuitv obligation are determined using actuarial valuation.. An actuarial 

valuation involves making v.r'IOUS assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount 

rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the ~aluation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation 

is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions, Alf assumptions are reviewed at each reportrng date. 

Further details about gratuity obligation are given in Note 31: 

(c) Impairment cf non-financial assets 

Mon-financial assets of the Trust primarily comprise of property, plant and equipment: The provision for impairment/{reversal) of impairment of 

property, plant & equipment and service concession receivable is made based on the difference between the carrying amounts and the recoverable 

amounts- The recoverable amount of the property, plant & equipment and service concession receivable has been computed by external independent 
valuation 

experts based on value in use calculation for the underlying projects (based on discounted cash flow model). On a periodic basis, according to the 

recoverable amounts of individual portfolio assets computed by the valuation experts, the Trust tests impairment on the amounts invested in the 

respective subsidiar( companies. The valuation exercise so carried out considers various factors including cash flow projections, changes in interest 

rates, discount rates, risk premium for market conditions, Based on the valuation exercise so carried out. there is no impairment for the ~ear ended 

March 31, 4023. The key assumptions _used to determine the recoverable amount for the underlying projects are disdosed and further explained in Note 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
All amounts in Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

ldJ Taxes 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can 
be utilised, Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely 
timing and the level of future ta><able profits together with future tax planning strategies. For the calculation of deferred tax assets/liabilities, the Trust 
has not considered tax holiday available under the Income Tax Act, The management based on estimated cash flow workings for the SPVs, believes that 
since the~e witl be losses in the init:al vears of the SPVs, no benefit u:ider the Income tax Act would accrue· to those SPVs in respect of the tax holiday, 

[31) Disclosures for Employee Benefits 

a. Defined benefit plan - gratuity 
The Trust has a defined benefit plan (Gratuity) for its employees. The gratuity olan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, 

· employee who has completed five years of ser;ice is entitled to specific benefit, The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of 

service and salary at retirement age. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary 
(.last drawn) for each completed year of service as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The said gratuity plan is unfunded. 

The Trust periorms actuarial valuation of gratuity liability on an annual basis. 

The following table sets out the components of nee gratuity benefit expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss and amounts recognised in the 

Ba la nee Sheet for the tC'!i-P('(!'.iV!l ;:i:i;aris: 

Particulars 

l Elcpen~ recognized in Statement of Profit & loss for the year (included in Note 20 Employee 
Srn,iflt &Dense} 
Semcecost: 

Curr,mt service <C$t 

Iii l Rt~llcili3tloi, of defmlld benefit Qblli:alior, 

!Oµet,irili a.,,l;;rn:e-of dei1!'led benefit obii;i;itiml o:i JC(O<ll'lt of a~tNi5it;oo 

iv l Hit_ principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligat,ons for the 
!~up•~ plan are as under: 
I 

loiuou1>t R3~ /p . .ll 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

0.12 

004 
0.16 

001! 
0.01 

I 
I 

132 
0,12 

004 ! 

For th;; period from 

November 01, 2021 

to March 31, 2022 

(Refer Note 351 

For the period from 
November 01, 2021 Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

l 
to March 31, 2022 

_ I Refer Note 3S} 
7.1G% 

l Mon:ality Rates 

I I lnd,an Assured Lives I 
! Mortality (2012°14) ULT 

v Se1'.1'.14tMty analysts of impact on Defined benefit obligation (DBO) for changes in "1&nifl<:llnt! 
·.1ssU1T1p1icM is as under: I 

S.Svears 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

For the period from 
November 01, 2021 

to March 31, 2022 

(Reier Note 35) 

l 

t 

Ne~ii ible chan e Negli;!.ible chanRe l 

increase in expected lile by 3 years Negligible change Negligible change 

b. Cefined Contribution Plans 

The Group m~kes Provident Fund to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees .. Under the schemes, the group is required to contribute a 

specified percentage of oayroll costs to fund the benefits. The Group has recognised provident fund cor1tribution including administration charges 

for the year ended March 31, 2023 of Rs, 0 . .21 million as expense and contribut,on to pension fund for the year ended March 31, 2023 of Rs, 0,07 
million in Note 17 under the r>ead 'Contributions to Provident and Other Funds'. 

[This space is intentionally left blank] 
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Notes to consolidated fini1nclal sHtements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
All amounts In Rupees million unless otherwise stated 

(32) Ust of subsidiaries which .arc fndudcd in consolidation and Ante.n's effective holdinc therein ;1re as under: 

Ownenhip inte,est% 

Name of subsidiary 
As •• 

Country of As At Morch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Incorporation (Reier Note 35) 

Dir1ctly held by the TrllSt: 
Oarbh.ingil • Motihi1rl Transmission Company Umited l"OMTa "J India 100¼ 

NRSS XXXI (B) Trammission Limited rNRSS•) India 1001' 

Acquisition of Tr.11Mmission Assets 

(a~ During the yei1r. Anzen acqu1rcd 100% of the equity share capital of OMTCL and NRSS punu.int to the Securities Purchase Agreement dated November 01. 2022 vlz .1,62,96,667 

equity sh.ires of face value Rs. 10 each of OMTCl and 9B,32,143 equity share~ of f•c~ value Rs. 10 each of NRSS ftom EIY? in CJCChanie o f 83 million units issued by A.nten to EIYP 

and subseQutmt closinR, on November 11, 2022. 
lb) ru per the Securities Purchi1sc Aercement, anv .imounts due to Oarbh.inga - Motlhari Tr,1nsmission Company Limited l'OMTCL'J and NRSS )()()(1(8) Tr.msm1ssion Limited ('NRSS'I 

pursuant to anv future order passed by any competent authoniy pursuant to daims or appeals riled by Oarbhanc, · Motihin Transmission Company Umited (1DMTCL'J and NRSS 
XXIC\(8) Transmission Limited ('NRSS') until the Closins: Cate (1nclud1nc ""V claims or .ippeals llled 1n relation to th~ CERC Order such as lhc appeal flied by DMTCl dated June 24, 

2022) ("Future Receivables") Anten India Enercv Yield Plus Tru.st/Oarbhane.1 • Motiharl Transmi"lon Company Limited ('OMTO.') and NRSS XXXl(S) TranJmis.,ion Limi1ed ('NRSS') 

sh.ill pursuant to the receipt of final, non-appcalable orders of a court of competent jurisdiction, be transferred to Edelwcl" Infrastructure Yield Plus. Based o n the manacemen t 

a,sessment of the poss\ble outcome of these matters and tlminc thereof, the Hme is not considered u cont1nccnt consideration as per Ind AS 103 Bw iness Combin..tion. 

1331 Segment reportlnt 
The Tru.st's activities comprise of owninc .1nd investing fn transmiuion and renewable e nergy usets to generate cash nows for distribution to unitholde.rs. Based on the guiding 

prlnciple.s e1Yen in Ind AS - 108 "Opcratinr: Ser.mcnts•. this act ivity falls within a slngfc operating segment and accordinclv the disclosures of Ind AS-108 have not scpi1r3tely been 
given. 

Under Poin1 of Connection (PoC) mechanism. Power Grid COrporatlon of India limited ('PGCIL') Is designated as central transmission utility with 1hc responsibility for b1Ulng and 

collecting of usage charees from Inter-State Tra11smmlon Services (ISTSI users. Hence the entire amount of trade receivables pertaining to transmission c h arges Is receivable 

from PGCII 

(34) Subsequent event 

On May 25, 2023, the Board of directors of Ule lnvestmenc Manilct:r approved a dividend of Rs 2.42 per unit for the period fanuary 1, 2023 to M.1rch 31, 2023 to be paid on or 

before 1S days from the d.itc of declaratlon. 

(35} Pre'lllous year figures 

The Trwt was regiJtere:d as on irrevocable trust under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on No'llcmber 1, 2021 and as an Infrastructure Investment Trust under the Securities c1nd 
Exchange Soard of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Rcsulation.s. 2014 on January 18, 2022. However there were no u1n.sac1ions during the period ended NO\lember l , 

2021 to M.irch 31, 2022. Thi! financial statemer,ts of the Trust for the yeir ended March 31, 2022 Included as compu~ti'lle financial information in the.se financial statements. 
h;ave been approved by the Investment Manager's Board of Oirc<tors, but have not been subject to audit 

For S RSC &CD LLP 

Partner 
Membership Number: 4Q&a69 

Place : Pune 

Date : M•y 25, 2023 

For and on b ehalf o f the Doud of Olrcctors of 

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Umited 

(As ln'lltstmenl Manager to Anzen lndia Enert, Yield Plus Trus t) 

~ ~~? 
CIO & Whole-time Oirec.tor 

DIN No.: 09609160 

~ ~ 
Jol¢P,rckh 
Company Secretary 
Membership Number : A4-4507 

Plice : Mumbai 

Date : May 25. 2023 

Chief Flnand al Officer 
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Audited Standalone 
Financial Results of the Trust Pursuant to the Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure 
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended 

To 
The Board of Directors of 
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited, 
(as Investment Manager of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust) 
Unit 101, First Floor, 
Windsor Village, Kole Kalyan Off CST Road, 
Vidyanagari Marg, Santacruz (East) 
Mumbai - 400098 

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Results 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly and year to date standalone 
financial results of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust ("the lnvlT") consisting of the 
Statement of Profit or Loss, explanatory notes thereto and the additional disclosures as 
required in paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF /127 /2016 dated 
November 29, 2016 ("SEBI Circular") for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and for the year 
ended March 31 , 2023 ('the Statement'), attached herewith being submitted by the lnvlT 
pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) 
Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with the SEBI circular. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the Statement : 

i. is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI 
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to 
time read with the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 
2016 in this regard; and 

ii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting standards 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the net profit and 
other comprehensive income and other financial information of the lnvlT for the 
quarter ended March 31, 2023 and for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India . Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Results" section of our report. We are independent of the lnvlT in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results 

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the standalone annual financial statemen.i><!=-=:::::,-._ 
The Management of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited ('the Management') is res , 

S R BC & CO LL P, a l. 1m1ted L1 ab 1l 1ty Pa rtner st1 ip with L.l./"l ldr-nt1ty No. /\A B .r1J 18 
Regd, Offi ce : 2 2, Camdc Street , Block 'B', 3rd Floor, Kolka !J- 700 O 16 
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for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a true and fair view of the net 
profit and other comprehensive income and other financial information of the lnvlT in 
accordance with the requirement of SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 
2014, as amended from time to time ("the lnvlT Regulations"), Indian Accounting Standards as 
defined in Rule 2(1)(a)of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 
amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not 
inconsistent with the lnvlT Regulations . This responsibility includes design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Statement, the Management is responsible for assessing the lnvlT's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate 
the lnvlT or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Management is also responsible for overseeing the lnvlT's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion . Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Statement. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit . We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the lnvlT's internal controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the lnvlT's ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial 
results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions ac ~BC 
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based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor 's report. However , 
future events or conditions may cause the lnvlT to cease to cont inue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and t iming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in interna l control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matter 

The Statement includes the standalone financial results for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 
being the balancing f igure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year 
ended March 31, 2023 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to the third 
quarter of the current f inancial year, which were subjected to a limited review by us, as 
required under Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 
2014 as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular No CIR/ IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 
November 29, 2016. 

The financial results for the period ended from November 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 included 
as comparative financial information in the accompanying standalone f inancial results, have 
been approved by the Investment Manager's Board of Directors, but have not been subject to 
audit. 

For SR BC & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 

~ ~ 
)' t;,t• ~jr" pe Amit Singh ~( 

Partner 
Membership No.: 408869 ~-, 
UDIN:23408869BGXKKR3152 ~ ~ 

~ l • T 

Place: Pune 
Date: May 25, 2023 
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SEBI Registration Number: IN/lnvlT/21-22/0020 
AUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

Sr. No Particulars 

1 tncome 
Revenue from operations 

Interest income on investment in fixed deposits 

Income from investment in mutual funds 

Tota! income 

2 Expenses 

Finance costs 

Legal and professional fees 

Annual listing fee 

Rating fee 

Valuation expenses 

Trustee fee 

Audit fees 

- Statutory audit fees 

- Other services (including certification) 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

3 Profit before tax and exceptional item (1-2) 

4 Exceptiona1 items 

5 Profit before tax (3 ± 4) 

6 Tax expense 

(i} Current tax 

(ii) Deferred tax 

7 Net profit for the period/year after tax (5 ± 6) 

8 Other Comprehensive Income 

!terns that will not be reclassified to profiter loss 

9 Total Comprehensive Income for the period/year {7 ± 8) 

10 Unit Capital (net of issue expensesj (Face value of Rs. 100 per unit) 

11 Earnings Per Unit (Rs. per unit} {refer note D under additional disclosures) 

i) Basic 

ii) Diluted 

Additional disclosure as per SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/ClR/P/2018/71 dated April 13, 2018 

Sr. No. Partkulars 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Debt Equity Ratio {in times) (Refer note 10) 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) (Refer note 10) 

Interest Service Coverage Ratio (in times) (Refer note 10) 

Asset cover ratio [Refer note 101 
Net worth [Refer note 10} 
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{All amounts in INR m!Uions; e,u:::ei,t as statedj 

Quarter ended Quarter ended Year ended 

(Refer note 2) (Refer note 2) (Refer note 2) 
31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Mar-2023 

Audited Unaudited Audited 

524.84 143.45 668.29 

4.21 9.28 13.49 

3.78 20.55 24.33 
532.83 173.28 706.11 

156.56 53.75 210.31 

0.66 0.45 1.11 

- 2.62 2.62 

2.66 2.66 

0.29 0.61 0.90 

0.30 0.34 0.64 

0.61 2.36 2.97 

·0.15 - 0.15 

0.91 - 0.91 

159.48 62.79 222.27 

373.35 110.49 483.84 

- -
373.35 110.49 483.84 

3.11 11.94 15.05 

- -

370.24 98.55 468.79 

370.24 98.55 468.79 

15,624.79 15,624.79 15,624.79 · 

6.07 1.61 7.68 

6.07 1.61 7.68 

Quarter ended Quarter ended J Year ended I 
(Refer note 2) (Refer note 2) 1 (Refer note 2) i 

31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 I 31-Mar-2023 

Audited Unaudited 1 Audited 

0.47 0.47 0.47 

3.38 3.06 3.30 

3.38 3.06 3.30 

3.13 3.13 3.13 

15,897.66 15,721.63 15,897.66 



Notes 
1 The above Audited standalone financial resurts for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 and year ended 31 March 2023 has been reviewed by 

the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited ('Investment Manager') at their 

respective meetings held on 25 May 2023. 

2 The audited standalone financial results comprises of the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, explanatory notes thereto and the 

additional disclosures as required in paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 

("SEBI Circular'') of Anzen lndia Energy Yield Plus Trust (the "lnvlr' or "Trust"} for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2023 {"standalone 

financial results") being submitted by the Trust pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment 

Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular ("lnvlT Regulations). There are no transactions in 

Statement of Profit and Loss between 1 November 2021 to 10 November 2022 and accordingly comparative periods are not presented. 

The quarter ended 31 March 2023 standalone financial results are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year 

ended 31 March 2023 and the published year-to-date figures up to 31 December 2022, being the date of the end of nine months of the 

current financial year, which were subject to limited review.The financial results for the period ended from November 1, 2021 to March 

31, 2022 included as comparative financial information in the accompanying standalone financial results, have been approved by the 

Investment Manager's Board of Directors, but have not been subject to audit. 

3 The Trust has acquired the entire equity share capita! of Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company limited ('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXl(B) 

Transmission Limited ('NRSS') from Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus ('EIYP') pursuant to share purchase agreement dated on 1 

November 2022 and subsequent closing on 11 November 2022. The Trust issued its units amounting to INR 4,700 million and INR 3,600 

million to EIYP in exchange of 100% equity stake in DMTCL and NRSS respectively. 

4 The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager approved a distribution of Rs. 2.42 per unit for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 to be 

. paid on or before 15 days from the date of declaration. 

5 The Trust raised funds of INR 7,500 million through initial issue of units on 11 November 2022 on private placement basis. 

6 The Trust has allotted 7500 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of INR 1 million each for an 

aggregate amount of INR 7,500 million on 1 December 2022 on private placement basis. 

7 The Trust was registered as an irrevocable trust under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on 1 November 2021 and as an Infrastructure 

Investment Trust under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 on 18 January 

2022. 

8 The listed Non-Convertible Debentures are secured by the following 

(a) a first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all the Issuer's current assets and other assets (excluding DSR and DSRA), both 

present and future, including: (i) all the receivables, right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Issuer in, to and 

under all the loans and advances extended by the lssue.r to the SPVs and HoldCo(s), present and future (collectively, the "Issuer Loans"); (ii) 

the receivables, right, title and interest and benefits of the Issuer in, to and under all the financing agreements, deeds, documents and 

agreements or any other instruments (both present and future) which are now executed or may hereafter be executed by the Issuer with 

respect to the Issuer Loans; Step in rights on the Loans shall be with the Common Security Trustee. {iii) all bank accounts of the Issuer, 

including but not limited to the Escrow Account and the Sub-J\ccounts (including Cash Trap Sub Account} (if any) (excluding the disLribution 

account and the accounts opened to meet the debt service reserve requirements in respect of any Additional Debt) or any accounts in 

substitution thereof that may be opened in accordance with the Debt S~urities Documents, and in all funds from time to time deposited 

therein {including the reserves), all designated account opened with designated banks and the Permitted Investments or other securities 
reoresentine ail amounts credited to the Escrow Account: 
(b) a first and exclusive charge on the DSR and DSRA to be created in favour of the Common Security Trustee for benefit of Debt Securities 

under this Deed, and all amounts lying therein; 

(c} a first pari passu pledge over 100% (one hundred percent) of the equity share capital, compulsorily convertibfe debentures, optionally 

convertibfe deb~ntures, non-convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer in all the Project SPVs. 

(d) pari passu pledge over unencumbered equity share capital, compulsorily convertible debentures, optionally convertible debentures, 

non-convertible debentures and securities held by the Issuer and Holdco(s) in all the Other SPVs and Holdco(s) (as applicable). 

9 The Trust retained its credit ratings of "CRISIL AAA/Stable" from CRISIL as on 6 April 2023 and "IND AAA/Stable" from India Ratings as on 
20 April 2023. 

10 Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows: 

i. Asset cover= Total Assets having Pari-Passu charge/(Long Term Borrowings+ Interest accrued on Long term debt) 

ii. Debt Equity Ratio= long Term Borrowings/ (Unitholders' Equity+ Retained Earnings} 

iii. Debt Service Coverage Ratio= Earnings before Interest and Tax/ (Interest Expense+ Principal Repayments made during the period) 
iv. Interest Service Coverage Ratio= Earnings before Interest and Tax/ Interest expense 

v. Net worth = Unitholders' Equity+ Retained Earnings 
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11 ADDITIONAL DISCLOSUR£S AS REQUIRED BY PARAGRAPH 6 OF ANNEXURE A TO THE SEBI CIRCULAR NO. ClR/IMD/DF/127/2015 

A) Statement of Net Distributable cash Flows {NDCFs) of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Description 

inflow from f>rpject SPV Distdbutioos 
Cash ftowH~ceiveci from Sl>Vs in the form of inter:est /acp:ued interest I additional 
interest 
i\dd: Cash flows received from S?Vs fr1 the form or. dhth:lend 
Add: Cash flows from the SPVs tow:atl:fs the repayment of the debt provided to the 
SPVs hy the Anzen Trust arid/ or rec;l~mption of diWentures iisued by SPVs to the 
.Anz.enTrust 
Add: Cash flows fron, the SPVs thr~gb g3pit.ll fieth>cti<m. by way of i buy back or im'I 
ot.~r means as permitte:d/subje.ct to applicable law 
1.nflc_w·ftom tn~estrnan1$ f Asse~ 
Add: Cash flows fr.om sale of equity shares or any other investments in SPVs adjusted 
for amounts rciMested or pfanried. to be reinvested 
Add: Ca.sh flows from 1he $<lie of the:SPVs not distributed pursuant to an earlier pfan 
to reinliest, et if such proceeds are not intended to ~ invested subsequently 

tnflowfromt'iabnittes 

Atftk Cash flows frcm adi1ltiorlat bom.iwings {In.duding debe;,tures I other 
~uti~es},; fresh l:ssuanceofunits1etc. 
Other Inflows 
Add: Any other int-0me accruing ~ the Amen Trust and not captured abov.e, as 
deemed necessary by the Investment Marrager, lncluding but not. ijmlted to interest 
I ri.?tiim oiuuro,h;s rash invested by the ~nzen Trust 

Total cash inflow atthe Amen Trust level ,(A..) 
Outflow for Amen Trust ~enses/ Taites 
less: Any payment of fees, Jntet(!st ,md e-.:p~ses inct.irred at the Anzen Trust, 
li1elu<fmt but 110t Hmlted to the tffl ¢f tfit' ln~t Mer.aiW, &;;iject l'Jianager;, 
Trn.stee,.Aud!tor, Va!:.:er, Cr.etfil ?.ntlrig.Ager.c-1, etc. 
Less: income t.x llf a~ficabfelfor standalone Arizen. Trust andfrx payment of other 
statutory dues 
Outflow.for t.iaoJliUes 
tees$.: Re;:.avmem of third,µarry debt iprlm:.Jpa!) ! red~-Ymbh:- pteferen~Y thares J 
debentures, ere., net of any debt .raJsed by refinancing cl e':<i:S;ing debt 

Less: ~~t i::ash set asi.de i'O· compty with b<luowing requirements sudl as DSM, 
mmimum cas:h l:talan,:e, e14 
OUtfJow for Asset$. 

Less: Amo-unt 1:wested in anv of the SP'✓s 
l.ess: ~ounts :s.et asfde t~ be lr:'k:sted or plat1r1ei:i to be irwes-t~. as deemed 
necessary by !he Investment Manager in 1:.om;::Ham:e with the kwrr Regulations 

less: Jrwes~ments lm;lu(llng acquisltioo of other- S?Vs 

Other OutftoW:!li 
Less: Any prc~i® or res.erve li~ett nec6Sl3TY by the tmr~tmtmt Manager for 
expenses whlcb m::fy be due in future 
Add J Less: AmoL:nt:s added/ retained !n acc~dance with me transaction doi;uments 
or.theloan agreemf:'nts in relation to the Amen Trust 
less: Any orner e,(peose of the Amen Trust not captured herein as deeir.e:a 
necess.ary by the trives:tmenr. Manager 
Add / less: Arr, other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to :,ensure that 
there is no 4oub!e counting of tl:le same item for the above cafcu!atioos 

Total taih outflow/re~rttion ~t tl'le Mwiirurt t~'Jftt (8} 
Net Distributable Cash Rows (C}: (A+B} 

* Rs 195.92 million distribution has been made during the year. 

INITIAL FOR IDENTIFICATION 
BY 

~ 
~ 

·s. R. B. C. & CO .. LLP 

Quarter ended 

(Refer note 2) 

31-Mar-2023 

Audited 

527.40 

7.11 

534,51 

(321.45) 

(3.11) 

167.20 

(157.36) 
377.15 

Quarter ended 

(Refer note 2) 

31-Dec-2022 

Unaudited 

185.47 

626.00 

15,000.00 

27.98 

15,839.45 

(117.31) 

{11.94) 

(155.00) 

(15,071.00} 

(269.67} 

{15,624.92) 
214,53 

Year ended 

(Refer note 2) 

31-Mar-2023 

Audited 

712.87 

625.00 

15,000.00 

35.09 

16,373.96 

(438.76) 

(15.05) 

(1.55.00) 

(l5,07LOOJ 

(15,782.28) 
591.68 



B) Contingent liabilities 

The Trust has no contingent liabilities as on 31 March 2023. 

C) Statement of Commitments 
The Trust has no commitments as on 31 March 2023. 

D) Statement of Eamings per unit: 
Basic earnings per unit amounts are carculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to Unit holders by the weighted average number of units 

outstanding during the period. 

Diluted earnings per unit amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding 

during the period plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital. 

1
Particulars 

I 

Profit after tax for calculating basic and diluted earnings per unit attributable to unitholders 

Weighted average number of units in calculating basic and diluted earnings per unit (No. in million) 

Earnings Per Unit 

Basic and diluted (Rupees/unit) {Not annualised for the quarter) 

I
I ~~TIAL FO:DENTIFICATION 

~ 

_, S. R. B. C. & CO. LLP 

Quarter ended j Quarter ended 
i (Refer note 2) l (Refer note 2) 

31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 
Audited Unaudited 

370.24 98.55 

61.04 61.04 

6.07 1.61 

Year ended 
{Refer note Z) 
31-Mar-2023 

Audited 

468.79 

61.04 

7.68 



E} Statement of Related Party Transactions: 

1. List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24- Related Party Disclosures 

a} Entity with control over the Trust 
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

b) Entity with significant influence over the Trust 
Sekura Energy Private limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project Manager 

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited {ERAML) - Investment Manager 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - Ultimate holding Company of ERAML 

c) · Subsidiaries 

Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited (DMTCL) 

NRSS XXXI {B) Transmission Limited {NRSS) 

II. List of related parties as per Regulation 2(1l{zv) of the lnvlT Regulations 

a) Parties to Anzen 

b) 

Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEL) - Sponsor and Project manager 

Edelweiss Rear Assets Managers Limited (ERAML)- Investment Manager 

Axis Trustee Services Limited (ATSL) - Trustee of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Promoters of the parties to Anzen specified in {a) above 
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited {w.e.f. 29 March 2023} 
Edelweiss Securities and lnvestements Private Limited (upto 28 March 2023) 

Axis Bank Limited 

c} Directors of the parties to Anzen specified in (a) above 
i} Directors of SEPL 

Avinash Prabhakar Rao 

Sushant Sujir Nayak 

Tharuvai Venugopa! Rangaswami 

ii) Directors of ERAML 
Venkatchalam Ramaswamy 

Subahoo Chordia 

Su nil Mitra 

Prabhakar Panda (ceased to be director w.e.f. 1 April 2023) 
Ranjita Deo 

Shiva Kumar 
Bala C Deshpande (appointed as director w.e.f. 1 April 2023) 

iii) Key Managerlal Personnel of ERAML 
Ranjita Dea {Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer} 

Vaibhav Doshi (Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f. 1 February 2023} 

Jal pa Parekh {Company Secretary) 

iv) Directors of ATSL 
Deepa Rath 

Rajesh Kumar Dahiya 

Ganesh Sankaran 
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Ill. 

IV. 

Related ~ts.annai,ons: I Pa rtirulars Name of related party Quarter ended Quarter ended Year ended 
!Refer note 2) !Refer note 2) !Refer note 21 

! 31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Mar-2023 
Audited Unaudited Audited 

l!;!,UI:! 0Cf>.1blt$· · Ed11lweiss lnit.1:Htv~re Yield Plus 9,380.00 9,380.00 
n:.wi,afunl~ se:llur,i EneisY,l>riv~tl't Limited 2,380.00 2,380.00 

t.~eofo""t!> Axl:i.8.link Um.~ . 500.00 soo •. oo 
!.!.~l!ofNtO Axis.Bank LI~ 3,000..00 3,000.00 
!ntc:ro1st «JqlllMOeat\ NCO Ax~S.ink Llmhiid 59,25 20.41 79.66 

f<'ltl!'ri:st ir.com~ on w:.an Jiven D~bh:tnga - litlit~ti Transmission Company limited 259.69 53,56 313.25 

fowe$t,rn:n~ on l..(i;)l'I !liwn NRSSXXXI [8) Transmission Limited 18657 5682' 243.49 

trm.:.rmr il'>tomi, Qff.•OCO Darbhanga • Motihari Transmission Company limited 3893 19.,90 58.83 
mt2-re:i.t mcom,:-()nOCO NRSSXXXI (6) Transmission Limited 28.07 4,00 32..07 
ft1;t:n·r~::J~rn., ~-NCO Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 11-48 9,17 20$5 

Loon~ Darbhanga • Motihari Transmission Companv Limited 6,910,00 6.910,00 

U),'lflJlM!n NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited 5,030.00 5,030,0D 

foal!lritpaid Oarbhanga. Motihari Transmission Company limited 327.50 327.50 

U:<illl t1!$l<lid NRSSXXXI (B) Transmission Limited 298,50 29850 

Reimllur~i'r"'nt of i!xpe,Ii$1!'S Sekura Energy Pri11ate Limited 14,60 86.99 101.59 

il:e:lmbur:urmentof.t-Jcpe·l\.16 Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0,05 0,05 

UM pl.iC()ll'Hlfit fol!!~ Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 11.09 lt09 

Arr,;~❖t fae~ for r,ia, fo.i':ili~$ Axis Bank Limited 8.89 8 89 

·,,u,Ufc.\fff Axis Trustee Services Limited 0.02 Q,24 0,26 

thtriblitfQcl tG u:iit haldt.,rs Edelweiss Infrastructure 'fiefd Plus 116.31 116,31 

Oi,i.tef.Wttt);ll to •JM i'ioide:~ Sekura Energy Private Limited 29,S1 2951 
(fl$t,ib-Jti® :iru:iit boldt>rs Axis Bank Limited 3--97 - 3.97 

hvJ1CS1m1mt \n &;t.,ity loi.ttul'llimts of o.-.rra.. Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 5,453,00 5,453,00 

I.we,-~ fn !:quity irut!\>fflt:ltlU.¢:f HitSS Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 4,132,87 4,132.87 

in..,.e~tment rn oco l:lf OMTCL Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus ~ sn.10 gn,10 

t~s:mem ir, OCO :,f N'ltSS Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 632.44 632.44 · 

!nve~tmM~ in NCO of OMn:t Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 291'00 29LO0 

Related patty balances: 

Particulars Name of related party Asat I Asat 
31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 

[Receivable/ {Pavablell l [Receivable/ (Pavable)l 

[Refer ncte 2} (Refer note 21 

Audited Unaudited 

Loan to subsidiaries Oarbhanga • Motihari Transmission Company limited 5,582.50 6,582.50 

Loan to subsidiaries NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited 4,731.50 4,731.50 

Interest receiv.lblc on NCO Oarbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 2.57 

Trade payables Sekura Energy Private· limited (19..59) (86,99) 

Trade payables Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (11.09) 

Trade payables Axis Bank limited (8 89) 

Trade payables Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors limited (O .. OS) 

Trade payables Axis Trustee Se,vlces limited (0,26} (0,24) 

Interest acaued but not due on borrowings Axis Bank Limited (0.66) (0.66) 

Outstanding OCD Oarbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 877.10 877.10 
Outstandir.g CCD NRSS XXXI (BJ Transmission Limited 632.44 6324'l 

Outstanding NCO Darbhan~a - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 291.00 291.00 

Details In respect of related party transactions involving acquisition of Inv IT assets as required by Para 4.4(b)Ov) of Section A of Annexure A to SESI Circular dated 20 October 2016 are as 

follow: 

For the quarter and year ended 31 March 2023: 
An2en India Energy Yield Plus Trust has acquired Darbhanga • Molihari Transmission Company Limited {'DMTCL') and NRSS XXXl(BJ Transmission Limited {'~IRSS') from Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield 

Plus ['!:IYP') pursuant to share purchase agreement dated on 1 November 2022 and subsequent closing on 11 November 2022., The Trust issued its units amounting to Rs. 4,700 million and Rs., 3,600 

million lo EIYP In exchange of 100% eq_uity stake in LlM I CL and NRSS respectively. 

omo. 
lfot>fm,/1~ value as at 30 June 2022 

IMl'!ih<ld of valuation. . 
, O,,-,:ew.,l rntl! (WAC,.:! 

12,907.CO / 

Discounted Cash ;1Qwj 
<'!4S¼! 

9,897,00 

Discounted ushflow 
a::,15. 

Enterprise value as disclosed abov-e are based solely on the fair valuation report dated 18 October 2022 cf the independent valuer appointed by the Investment manager under the lnvlT 

Regulations. 

12 Changes in Accounting pollcies 

There is no change ir. the Accounting poficy of the Trust fer the quarter and year ended 31 March 2023. 

13 Figures for previous periods have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever considered necessary. 

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of Edelweiss Real Assets Mana11:ers Limited 

las Investment Manager cf Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust) 

~ 
Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer 

DIN No. : 09609160 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 25, 202.3 

INITIAL FOR IDENTIFICATION 
BY 

V /., 

5. R. B. C. & CO. LLP 
~ 



S R BC & CO llP 
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Gro und Fl oor 
Panchshil Tech Park, Yerwada 
r Nea r Don Bosco Sc hool l 
Pune · 41 l 006, India 

Tel : +9 1 20 6603 6000 

Independent Auditor's Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Consolidated Financial 
Results of the Trust Pursuant to the Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment 
Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended 

To 
The Board of Directors of 
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited, 
(as Investment Manager of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust) 
Unit 101, First Floor, 
Windsor Village, Kole Kalyan Off CST Road, 
Vidyanagari Marg, Santacruz (East) 
Mumbai - 400098 

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Results 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly and year to date consolidated 
financial results of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust ("the lnvlT") and its Subsidiaries 
(together "the Group") consisting of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, 
explanatory notes thereto and the additional disclosures as required in paragraph 6 of 
Anne xure A to the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 2016 ("SEBI 
Circular") for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and for the year ended March 31, 2023 ('the 
Statement '), attached herewith being submitted by the lnvlT pursuant to requirement of 
Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended 
from time to time read with the SEBI circular . 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the Statement: 

i. includes the results of the following entities; 

a. Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company Limited 

b. NRSS XXXI (B) Transmission Limited 

ii. are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI 
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations , 2014, as amended from time to 
time read with the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 29, 
2016 in this regard; and 

iii . gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting standards, 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consol idated net 
loss and other comprehensive income and other financial information of the Group 
for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and for the year ended March 31, 2023 . 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Results" section of our report . We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 'Code 
of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical respons ibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics . We believe that the audi SR 8 C 
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. re•- ~: 

t /.•, 
S R BC & CO LLP. a Ltrn ilcd Liabili ty Partnership with LLP ldc-nt 1ty No_ AA0-43 18 ,? /..V" ,/, 
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Management's Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Results 

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the consolidated annual financial 
statements. The Management of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited ('the Management') 
is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a true and fair 
view of the consolidated net loss and other comprehensive income and other financial 
information of the Group in accordance with the requirement of lnvlT Regulations, Indian 
Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a)of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, to the extent not inconsistent with the lnvlT Regulations. The respective Board of 
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the 
purpose of preparation of the Statement by the Management, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the Statement, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible 
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Statement. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of ----===:,--... 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of entity's internal control. 

~~/' 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including 
the disclosures, and whether the Statement represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial results/financial 
information of the entities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, 
to express an opinion on the Statement. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial information of such entities 
included in the Statement of which we are the independent auditors. For the other 
entities included in the Statement, which have been audited by other auditors, such 
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the lnvlT and such other entities 
included in the Statement of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide 
those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matter 

The Statement includes the consolidated financial results for the quarter ended 
March 31, 2023 being the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect ofthe full 
financial year ended March 31, 2023 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to 
the end of the third quarter of the current financial year, which were subjected to a limited 
review by us, as required under the Regulation 23 of SEBI (Infrastructure Investments Trusts) 
Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular No 
CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 date November 29, 2016. 

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
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The financial results for the period ended from November 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 included 
as comparative financial information in the accompanying consolidated financial results, have 
been approved by the Investment Manager's Board of Directors, but have not been subject to 
audit. 

For S R B C & CO LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 

.Ll::-
Partner 
Membership No. : 408869 
UDIN:23408869BGXKKT5790 
Place: Pune 
Date: May 25, 2023 



Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

SEBI Registration Number: IN/lnvlT/21-22/0020 

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND VEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

(Afl amounts in INR million except as stated} 

Sr. No Particulars Quarter ended Quarter ended Year ended 

(Refer note 2 and 3} (8efer note 2 and 3) (Refer note Zand 3-l 
31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 l 31-Mar-2023 

Audited Unaudited l Audited 

l l.m:ome 
Revenue from contracts with customers 597.84 338.85 936.69 

Income from investment in mutual fund 24.45 26.91 51.37 

Interest income on investment in fixed deposits 4.22 4.40 8.62 

Other income 1.78 0.74 2.52 

TotaJ rncome 628.30 370.90 999.20 

2 Expenses 

Operation and maintenance expense 23.31 7.29 30.60 

Employee benefits expense 4.59 220 6.79 

Fil'.afit~ costs 156.12 283.0S 439.20 

Dr!pfi'!c!;;tior; expense 491.62 .273,51 770.13 

!rwestment management fees 16.00 &.18 24.18 

Project management fees 5.17 5.36 10.53 

Insurance expenses 14.99 5.88 20.87 

Legal and professional fees 25.08 10.51 3S.59 

Annual listing fee - 2.62 2.62 

Rating fee - 2.66 2.66 

Valuation expenses o:w 0.62 o.so 
Trustee fee 0.30 0.34 0.64 

Payment to auditors 

• Statutory audit fees 1.23 2.50 3.73 

• Other services (including certifications) 0.02 . 0,02 

Other expenses 4,95 2.87 7.82 

Total expenses 743.66 612.62 1,356.23 

3 Loss before tax and exceptional item (1-2} (115.36) (241.72! {357.08) 
4 Exceptional items -
s loss before tax (3 ± 4) (115.36) (241.72) {357.08) 

6 Tax expense 

ti) Current tax i26.21) llL63) (37.84) 

iii) Deferred ta" 

7 N'f:t loss for the period/year after tax (5 ± 6) 1 (S9.1S}j (:U0.09)! {3lS.24tJ 
! i 

l I i Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss {{i.03} 0.02) 

9 Total Comprehensive Income for the period/year {7 ± 8) (89.18) (230.07)( 

Loss for the period/year 

Attributable to : 

Unit holders (89.15) (230.09) 

N::;r;~ Controlling interest . -

Total comprehensive income for the period/year: 

Attributable to : 

Unit holders (39.18) (230.07) 
Non- Controlling interest . ~ 

Earnings per unit (Rs. per unit) 

(re.fer note E under additional disclosures) 

-Sa!lii;. (1.46} (3.77) 

,Diluted (1.46) (3.77) 

Additional discloS1Jre as per SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated April 13, 2018 

Sr. No. Particulars 

1 Asset Cover (in timesj (Refer note 10) 

2 Debt Equity Ratio (in times) {Refer note 10) 

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) (Refer note 10) 

4 Interest Service Coverage Ratio (In times) (Refer note 10) 

5 Net worth (INR in Million) (Refer note 10) 
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Quarter ended Quarter ended 

(Refer note 2 and 3) (Refer note 2 and 3} 

31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 

Audited Unaudited 
3.14 3.28 
0.49 0.48 

3.41 1.13 

3.41 1.13 
15,109.60 15,393.01 

l 
l 

(0.01) 

(313.2St 

(319.24) 

(319.25) 

(5.23) 

{5.23) 

Year ended 

(Refer note 2 and 3) 

31-Mar-2023 

Audited 

3.14 

0.49 

1.94 

1.94 

15,109.60 



Notes 

1 The above Audited consolidated financial results for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 and period ended from 11 November 2022 to 31 

March 2023 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of Edelweiss Rear Assets Managers 

Limited {'Investment Manager') at their respective meetings held on 25 May, 2023. 

2 The audited consolidated financial results comprises of the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, explanatory notes thereto and the 

additional disclosures as required in paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 

("SEBI Circular") of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust (the "lnvlT" or "Trust") for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 and period ended 11 

November 2022 to 31 March 2023 ("consolidated financial results") being submitted by the Trust pursuant to the requirements of 

Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular 

("lnvlT Regulations)." The quarter ended 31 March 2023 consolidated financial results are the derived figures between the audited 

figures in respect of period ended from 11 Novemeber 2022 and 31 March 2023 and the published year to date figures upto 31 

December 2022, which were subjected to limited review.The financial results for the period ended from November 1, 2021 to March 31, 

2022 included as comparative financial information in the accompanying consolidated financial results, have been approved by the 

Investment Manager's Board of Directors, but have not been subject to audit. 

3 Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust has acquired the entire equity share capital of Darbhanga - Motihari Transmission Company limited 

('DMTCL') and NRSS XXXl(B) Transmission Limited ('NRSS') from Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus ('EIYP') pursuant to share purchase 

agreement dated on 1 November 2022 and subsequent closing on 11 November 2022. Accordingly, the audited consolidated financial 

information is presented for the year ended 31 March 2023 and comparative periods are not presented. 

4 Pursuant to the approval of Board of Directors of the Investment Manager, the Trust has appointed Sekura Energy Private Limited ('SEPL') 

as Project Manager for all Project SPVs. As per the Project Implementation and Management Agreement dated 1 November 2022, the 

Project Manager is entitled to fees at 15% of gross operation and maintenance expenses (excluding insurance and statutory costs) 

incurred by each SPV per annum plus Goods and Services Tax at rate as applicable effective from the closing date i.e. 11 November 2022. 

There are no changes in the methodology of computation of fees paid to Project Manager. 

5 Investment manager fee has been considered. based on the Investment Management Agreement dated 8 December 2021. The 

Investment manager fee is INR 55 mi!Hon per annum plus Goods and Services Tax at rate as applicable which is allocated to each Project 

SPV equally. There are no changes in the methodology of computation of fees paid to Investment Manager. 

6 The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager approved a distribution of Rs. 2.42 per unit for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 to be 

paid on or before 15 days from the date of declaration. 

7 The Trust raised funds of INR 7,500 million through initial issue of units on 11 November 2022 on private placement basis. 

8 The Trust has allotted 7500 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of INR 1 miflion each for an 

aggregate amount of INR 7,500 million on 1 December 2022 on private placement basis. 

9 The Trust was registered as an irrevocable trust under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on 1 November 2021 and as an Infrastructure 

Investment Trust under the Securities and Exchange Board of India {lnfrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 on 18 January 

2022. 

10 Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows : 

i. Asset cover= Total Assets/(Long Term Borrowings+ Interest accrued on Long term debt} 

ii. Debt Equity Ratio= long Term Borrowings/ (Unitholders' Equity+Retained Earnings) 

iii. Debt Service Coverage Ratio= Earnings before Interest, Depreciation and Tax/ (Interest Expense+ Principal Repayments made during the 

period) 

iv. Interest Service Coverage Ratio= Earnings before Interests, Depreciation and Tax/ Interest Expense 

v. Net worth= Unitholders' Equity+Retained Earnings 



11 ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY PARAGRAPH 6 OFANNEXURE A TO THE SEBI CIRCULAR NO. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 

. A) Statement of_ Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Description 

I nfiow from Project SPV Distributions 

Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of interest/ accrued interest/ additional interest 

Add: Cash flows received from SPVs in the form of dividend 

Add: Cash flows from the SPVs towards the repayment of the debt provided to the SPVs by the Anzen 

Trust and/ or redemption cf debentures issued by SPVs to the Anz.en Trust 

Add: Cash flows from the SPVs through capital reduction by way of a buy back or any other means as 

permitted, subject to applicable law 

Inflow from Investments/ Assets 

Add: Cash flows from sale of equity shares or any other investments in SPVs adjusted for amounts 

reinvested or planned to be reinvested 

Add: Cash flows from the sale of the SPVs not distributed pursuant to an earlier pian to reinvest, or if 

such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently 

Inflow from Liabilities 

Add: Cash flows from additional borrowings (including debentures/ other securities), fresh issuance of 

u·n its, etc. 

Other Inflows 

Add: Any other income accruing at the Anzen Trust and not captured above, as deemed necessary by 

the Investment Manager, including but not limited to interest/ return on surplus cash invested by the 

Anzen Trust 

Total cash inflow at the Anzen Trust level {A) 

Outflow for Anzen Trust Expenses / Taxes 

Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expenses incurred at the Anzen Trust, including but not limited 

to the fees of the Investment Manager, Project Manager, Trustee, Auditor, Valuer, Credit Rating 

Agency, etc. 

Less: Income tax (if applicable) for standalone Anzen Trust and/ or payment of other statutory dues 

Outflow for Liabilities 

Less: Repayment of third-party debt (principal}/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc., net 

of any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt 

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance, 

etc. 

Outflow for Assets 

Less: Amount invested in any of the SPVs 

Less: Amounts set aside to be invested or planned to be invested, as deemed necessary by the 

Investment Manager in compliance with the lnvlT Regulations 

Less: Investments including acquisition of other SPVs 

Other Outflows 

Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses which may 

be due in future 

Add / Less: Amounts added/ retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the loan 

agreements in relation to the Anzen Trust 

Less: Any other expense of the Anzen_ Trust not captured herein as deemed necessary by the 

Investment Manager 

Add / Less: Any other adjustment to be. undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double 

counting of the same item for the above calculations 

Net Distributable Cash Flows {C) = (A+B) 

* Rs 195.92 million distribution has been made during the year. 
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(AH amounts in INR million· except as stated) 

Quarter ended (Refer Quarter ended I Year ended 

note 2 and 3) (Refer note 2 and 3} I (Refer note 2 and 3) 

31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022 l 31-Mar-2023 

Audited Unaudited Audited 

527.40 185.47 712.87 

626.00 626.00 

15,000.00 15,000.00 

7.11 27.98 35.09 

534.51 15,839.45 16,373.96 

(321.45) (117.31) (438.76) 

(3.11} (11.94} (15.05) 

(155.00) (155.00) 

(15,071.00) (15,071.00) 

167.20 (269.67) (102.47) 

(157.36) t1s,624.92J ! {15,782.28} 

377.15 214.53 591.68 



B) Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs} of underlying SPVs 

i) Darbhanga - MotihariTransmission Company Limited ('DMTCL'} 

Description 

Profit after tax as per profit and loss account {standalone) (A} 

Reversal of Distributions charged to P&L 

Add: Interest (including interest on unpaid interest, if any) on loans availed from/ debentures issued 

to the Anzen Trust, as per profit and loss account 
Adjustment of Non-cash items 

Add: Depreciation, impairment (in case of impairment reversal, same will be deducted} and 

amortisation as per profit and loss acrnunt. 

Add / less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non-cash income (net of actual cash flows for these 

items), including but not limited to 

• Any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss 

account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value; 

• Interest cost as per effective interest rate method {difference between accrued and actual paid); 

• Deferred tax, lease rents, provisions, etc. 

Adjustments for Assets on Balance Sheet 

Add/ less: Decrease/ increase in working capital 

Add/ less: Loss/ gain on sale of assets/ investments 

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes} from sale of assets / investments adjusted for proceeds 
reinvested or planned to be reinvested. 

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of assets/ investments not distributed pursuant 

to an earlier plan to reinvest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently. 

Less: Capital expenditure, if any. 

Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any. 

Adjustments for Liabilities on Balance Sheet 

Less: Repayment of third-party debt (principal}/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc., net 

of any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt. 

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance, 

etc. 
Add: Proceeds from ad.ditional borrowings (including debentures/ other securities), fresh issuance of 

equity shares/ preference shares, etc. 

Less: Payment of any other liabilities (not covered under working capital) 

Other Adjustments 

Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses/ liabilities 

which may be due in future. 

Add / less: Amounts added or retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the loan 

agreements in relation to the SPVs. 
Add / less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double 

counting of the same item for lhe above .:.ak.ulc1Uum,. 

Add: Such portion of the existing cash balance available, if any, as deemed necessary by the 

Investment Manager in line with the lnvlT Regulations. 

Total Adjustments {B) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (CJ= {A+B) 
During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to Anzen. 
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Quarter ended 

31-Mar-2023 

Audited 
(136.89) 

310.10 

157.65 

(8.17) 

(1.68) 

(0.19) 

101.72 

(4.85) 

(2.93} 

(104.56) 

447.09 
310.20 

Quarter ended 

31-Dec-2022. 

Unaudited 

(111.81) 

81.84 

89.31 

(0.64) 

75.26 

3.69 

287.26 

(3.67) 

(4.09) 

(280.77} 

248.19 
136.38 

Year ended 

31-Mar-2023 

Audited 
(248.70) 

391.94 

246.96 

(8.81) 

73.58 

3.50 

388.98 

(8.52} 

(7.02} 

(385.33) 

695.28 
446.58 



ii) NRSS XXXl{B) Transmission Limited {'NRSS'} 

Description 

Profit after tax as per profit and loss account {standalone} {A) 

Reversal of Distributions charged to P&L 

Add: interest (including interest on unpaid interest, if any) on loans availed from/ debentures issued 

to the Anzen Trust, as per profit and loss account 

Adjustment of Non-cash items 

Add: Depreciation, impairment (in case of impairment reversal, same will be deducted) and 

amortisation as per profit and loss account. 

Add / less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non-cash income (net of actual cash flows for these 

items), including but not limited to 

• Any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss 

account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value; 

• Interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

• Deferred tax, lease rents, provisions, etc. 

Adjustments for Assets on Balance Sheet 

Add/ less: Decrease/ increase in working capital 

Add / less: Loss/ gain on sale of assets/ investments 

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes} from sale of assets/ investments adjusted for proceeds 

reinvested or planned to be reinvested. 

Add: Net proceeds (after applicable taxes) from sale of assets / investments not distributed pursuant 

to an earlier plan to reinvest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently. 

Less: Capital expenditure, if any. 

Less: Investments made in accordance with the investment objective, if any. 

Adjustments for Liabilities on Balance Sheet 

Less: Repayment of third-party debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc., net 

of any debt raised by refinancing of existing debt. 

Less: Net cash set aside to comply with borrowing requirements such as DSRA, minimum cash balance, 

etc. 

Add: Proceeds from additional borrowings (including debentures/ other securities), fresh issuance of 

equity shares/ preference shares, etc. 

Less: Payment of any ether liabilities (not covered under working capital) 

Other Adjustments 

Less: Any provision or reserve deemed necessary by the Investment Manager for expenses/ liabilities 

which may be due in future. 

Add / less: Amounts added or retained in accordance with the transaction documents or the loan 

agreements in relation to the SPVs. 

Add / less: Any other adjustment to be undertaken by the Board to ensure that there is no double 

counting of the same item for the above calculations. 

Add: Such portion of the existing cash balance available, if any, as deemed necessary by the 

Investment Manager in line with the lnvlT Rcgul;:itions. 

Total Adjustments (B) 
Net Distributable Cash Flows lC) = (A+B} 

During the penod, amount being at !east 90% has already been d1stnbuted to Anzen. 
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Quarter ended 

31-Mar-2023 

Audited 

(77.95) 
.. 

214.74 

89.41 

(3.73) 

{0 .. 13) 

31.45 

(3.93} 

(54.16) 

273.65 

195.70 

Quarter ended Year ended 

31-Dec-2022 31-Mar-2023 
j Unaudited Audited 

(89.41) (167.36) 

72.73 287.47 

50.67 140.08 

0.37 {3.36) 

58.50 58.50 
119 1.06 

167.62 199.07 

(2.42) (5.35) 

-

(142.47) (196.63) 

206.19 479.84 

116.78 312.48 



C) Contingent liabilities 

Particulars Asat Asat 

31-Mar-2023 31-Dec-2022. 

Audited Unaudited 

Other matters {refer note below} 78.43 78.43 

i) During the financial year 2016-17, land owners have filed a case with the District Court, Ludhiana, Punjab towards compensation for the value of rand over which the 

transmission line is passing. The Group is of the view that required amount of compensation to these landowners have already been paid and no further compensation is 

payable. Based on the legal advice, the Group does not anticipate any liability against the same and has disclosed a contingent liability of INR 61.65 million. 

ii) During the financial year 2020-21, land owners have filed a case with the Civir Court, Pehowa, Haryana to,.;.,ards compensation for costs incurred on account of transmission 

line passing. The Group is of the view that required amount of compensation to these landowners have already been paid and no further compensation is payable. Based on 

the legal advice, the Group does not anticipate any liability against the same and has disclosed a contingent liability of INR 2 million. 

iii) During the financial year FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20, Power Grid Corporation of India Limited claimed recovery of Interest During Construction (''!DC"), Incidental Expenses 

During Construction {"IEDC"} and transmission charges respectively on account of delay in commissioning of transmission lines by the Group. The Group is of the view that 

the delay in commissioning of transmission lines was due to force majeure events which were beyond the control of the Company. Central Electricity Regulatory Commission 

concluded in another matter through order dated 29/03/2019 passed in Petition No. 195/MP/2017 that delay in commissioning was not due to reasons attributable to the 

Company. Based on the legal advice, the Group does not anticipate any liability against the same and has disclosed a contingent liability of INR 14.78 million. 

D) Statement of Commitments 

The Group has entered into transmission services agreement (TSA} with long term transmission customers pursuant to which the Group has to transmit power of contracted 

capacity and ensure minimum availability of transmission !ine over the period of the TSA. The TSA contains provision for penalties in case of certain defaults. 

E) Statement of Earnings per unit: 

Basic earnings per unit amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the period attributable to Unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during 

the period. 

Diluted earnings per unit amounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period 

plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of ali the dHutive potential units into unit capital. 

Particulars 

Loss after tax for calcuiating basic and diluted EPU attributable to unitholders 

Weighted average number of units in calculating basic and diluted EPU (No. in million) 

Earnings Per Unit (Not annualised for the quarter) 

Basic and Diluted {Rupees/unit) 

INITIAL FOR IDENTIFICATION 
BY 

~ 
1/,. 

LS. R. B. C. & CO. LLP 

Quarter ended 

(Refer note 2 and 3) 

31-Mar-2023 

Audited 

(89.15) 

61.04 

(1.46) 

Quarter ended j Year ended 

(Refer note 2 and 3} I {Refer note 2 and 3) 

31-Dec-2022 j 31-Mar-2023 

Unaudited Audited 

(230.09) {319.24) 

61.04 61.04 

(3.77} {5.23) 



F} Statement of Related Party Transactions: 

I. list of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures 

a} Entity with control over the Trust 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

b) Entity with significant influence over the Trust 

Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project Manager 

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - Ultimate holding company of ERAML 

ll. List of related parties as per Regulation 2(1)(zv) of the lnvlT Regulations 

a) Parties of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

Sekura Energy Private Limited (SEPL) - Sponsor and Project manager 

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (ERAML) - Investment Manager 

Axis Trustee Services Limited (ATSL) - Trustee of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust 

b} Promoters of the parties to specified in (a) above 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited (w.e.f 29 March 2023) 

Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited {upto 28 March 2023) 

Axis Bank Limited 

c) Directors of the parties specified in {a) above 

i} Directors of SEPL 

Avinash Prabhakar Rao 
Sushant Sujir Nayak 

Tharuvai Venugopal Rangaswami 

ii) Directors of ERAML 

Venkatchalam Ramaswamy 

Subahoo Chordia 

Sunil Mitra 

Prabhakar Panda (ceased to be director w.e.f. 1 April 2023) 

Ranjita Deo 

Shiva Kumar 

Bala C Deshpande (appointed as director w.e.f. 1 April 2023) 

iii) Key Managerial Personnel of ERAML 

Ranjita Dea {Whole Time Director and Chief Investment Officer) 

Vaibhav Doshi {Chief Financial Officer} {w.e.f. 1 February 2023) 

Jal pa Parekh (Company Secretary) 

iv) Directors of ATSL 

Deepa Rath 

Rajesh Kumar Dahiya 

Ganesh Sankaran 
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Promoters of SEPL 

Promoters of ERAML 

Promoters of ERAML 

Promoters of ATSL 



Ill. Related party transactions: 
Particulars 

Issue of units 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 

Sekura Energy Private Limited 

Axis Bank Limited 

Issue of NCO 

Axis Bank Limited 

Interest expense on NCO 

Axis Bank limited 

Project Implementation and Management 

Sekura Energy Private Limited 

Shared service cost 

Sekura Energy Private Limited 

Unit placement fees 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 

Arranger fees for NCO facilities 

Axis Bank Limited 

Distribution to unit holders 
Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus 
Sekura Energy Private limited 
Axis Bank limited 

Reimbursement of expenses 

Sekura Energy Private Limited 

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 

Avinash Prabhakar Rao 

Investment management fees 

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited 

Trustee fees 

Axis Trustee Services Limited 
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Quarter ended 

{Refer note 2 and 3) 

31-Mar-23 

Audited 

-
-
-

-

59.25 

5.17 

13.60 

~-

-

116.31 
29.51 
3.97 

15.31 

0.05 
0.07 

16.00 

0.02 

(All amounts in INR million, except as stated) 
Quarter ended Year ended 

(Refer note 2 and 3} {Refer note 2 and 3) 

31-Dec-22 31-Mar-23 

Unaudited Audited 

9,380.00 9,380.00 
2,380.00 2,380.00 

500.00 500.00 

3,000.00 3,000.00 

20.41 79.66 

5.36 10.53 

5.23 18.83 

11.09 11.09 

8.89 8.89 

- 116.31 
- 29.51 
- 3.97 

87.14 102.45 
-~ 0.05 

0.00* 0.07 

8.18 24.18 

0.24 0.26 



IV. Related party balances: 

Particulars As at As at 

31-Mar-23 31-Dec-22 

(Receivable/ {payable)) {Receivable/ (payable)} 

Audited Unaudited 

Trade payables 

Sekura Energy Private Limited (31.85) (102.53) 

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited (10.49) (8.18) 

Axis Trustee Services Limited (0.26) (0.24) 

Ede!weiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited {0.05) -

Unit placement fees 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (11.09) 

other financial liabilities 

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus (628.93) (1,116.67) 

Interest payable on NCD 

Axis Bank Limited (0.66) (0.66) 

* amounts below INR 0.01 million 

Details in respect of related party transactions involving acquisition of lnvlT assets as required by Para 4.4(b){iv) of 

Section A of Annexure A to SEBI Circular dated 20 October 2016 are as follow: 

For the year ended March 31, 2023: 

No acquisition during the ye2r ended 31 March 2023. 

12 Changes in Accounting policies 
There is no change in the Accounting policy of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023. 

13 Figures for previous periods have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever considered necessary. 

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of Edelweiss Real Assets Managers limited 

{as Investment Manager of Anzen India Energy Yield Plus Trust) 

Ranjita Deo 

Whofe Time Director and Chief Investment Officer 

DfN No.: 09609150 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 25, 2023 
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